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Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This report includes forward-looking statements about Panasonic and its Group companies (the Panasonic Group).

To the extent that statements in this report do not relate to historical or current facts, they constitute forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on the current assumptions and beliefs of the
Panasonic Group in light of the information currently available to it, and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors. Such risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause the Panasonic Group's actual
results, performance, achievements or financial position to be materially different from any future results,
performance, achievements or financial position expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
Panasonic undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements after the date of this report.
Investors are advised to consult any further disclosures by Panasonic in its subsequent filings under the Financial
Instrument and Exchange Act of Japan (the FIEA) and other publicly disclosed documents.

The risks, uncertainties and other factors referred to above include, but are not limited to, economic conditions,
particularly consumer spending and corporate capital expenditures in the Americas, Europe, Japan, China and other
Asian countries; volatility in demand for electronic equipment and components from business and industrial
customers, as well as consumers in many product and geographical markets; the possibility that excessive currency
rate fluctuations of the U.S. dollar, the euro, the Chinese yuan and other currencies against the yen may adversely
affect costs and prices of Panasonic’s products and services and certain other transactions that are denominated in
these foreign currencies; the possibility of the Panasonic Group incurring additional costs of raising funds, because
of changes in the fund raising environment; the possibility of the Panasonic Group not being able to respond to
rapid technological changes and changing consumer preferences with timely and cost-effective introductions of
new products in markets that are highly competitive in terms of both price and technology; the possibility of not
achieving expected results or incurring unexpected losses in connection with the alliances or mergers and
acquisitions; the possibility of not being able to achieve its business objectives through joint ventures and other
collaborative agreements with other companies, including due to the pressure of price reduction exceeding that
which can be achieved by its effort and decrease in demand for products from business partners which Panasonic
highly depends on in BtoB business areas; the possibility of the Panasonic Group not being able to maintain
competitive strength in many product and geographical areas; the possibility of incurring expenses resulting from
any defects in products or services of the Panasonic Group; the possibility that the Panasonic Group may face
intellectual property infringement claims by third parties; current and potential, direct and indirect restrictions
imposed by other countries over trade, manufacturing, labor and operations; restrictions, costs or legal liability
relating to laws and regulations or failures in internal controls; fluctuations in market prices of securities and other
financial assets in which the Panasonic Group has holdings or changes in valuation of non-financial assets,
including property, plant and equipment, goodwill and deferred tax assets; future changes or revisions to
accounting policies or accounting rules; the possibility of incurring expenses resulting from a leakage of
customers’ or confidential information from Panasonic Group systems due to unauthorized access or a detection of
vulnerability of network-connected products of the Panasonic Group; as well as natural disasters including
earthquakes, prevalence of infectious diseases throughout the world, disruption of supply chain and other events
that may negatively impact business activities of the Panasonic Group. The factors listed above are not all-
inclusive and further information is contained in the most recent English translated version of Panasonic’s
securities reports under the FIEA and any other documents which are disclosed on its website.
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Part I Information on Panasonic Group
I Overview of Panasonic Group

1. Key Financial Data (Consolidated)
(Millions of yen, unless otherwise stated)

109th 110th 111th 112th 113th
Fiscal year business business business business business
term term term term term
Year end March 2016 | March 2017 | March 2018 | March 2019 | March 2020
Net sales 7,626,306 7,343,707 7,982,164 8,002,733 7,490,601
Profit before income taxes 227,529 275,066 378,590 416,456 291,050
Net profit attributable to 165212 149360 | 236,040 | 284,149 | 225707
Panasonic Corporation stockholders
Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to Panasonic Corporation (54,617) 174,892 292,381 278,477 172,443
stockholders
Total Panasonic Corporation 1444442 | 1,571,889 | 1,707,551 | 1,913,513 | 1,998,349
stockholders’ equity
Total equity 1,647,233 1,759,935 1,882,285 2,084,615 2,155,868
Total assets 5,488,024 5,982,961 6,291,148 6,013,931 6,218,518
Panasonic Corporation stockholders’ 622.34 673.93 732.12 820.41 856.57
equity per share (yen)
Earnings per share attributable to
Panasonic Corporation stockholders, 71.30 64.33 101.20 121.83 96.76
basic (yen)
Earnings per share attributable to
Panasonic Corporation stockholders, 71.29 64.31 101.15 121.75 96.70
diluted (yen)
Panasonic Corporation stockholders’
equity / total assets (%) 26.3 26.3 27.1 31.8 32.1
Return on equity (%) 11.1 9.9 14.4 15.7 11.5
Price earnings ratio (times) 14.50 19.56 15.03 7.83 8.53
Net cash provided by operating 419355 | 385410 423,182  203,677| 430,303
activities
Net cash used in investing activities (293,804) (420,156) (458,828) (193,387) (206,096)
Net cash ided b d i
et cash provided by (used in) (309,565)| 294,598 |  (128,763)|  (341,761) 48222
financing activities
h h equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents 1,012,666 | 1,270,787 | 1,089,585 772,264 | 1,016,504
at end of year
Number of employees (persons) 252,923 257,533 274,143 271,869 259,385

(Notes)

1. The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS)

2. Net sales do not include consumption tax, etc.




2. History

Month/Year Events
March 1918 Konosuke Matsushita founded Matsushita Denkikigu Seisakusho at Ohiraki-cho,
Fukushima-ku, Osaka and started to manufacture wiring instrument.
March 1923 Bullet-shaped bicycle lamp developed and marketed.
April 1927 Established "National" brand.
May 1933 Relocated new head office and factory in Kadoma. Instituted divisional system.

August 1935
December 1935

May 1949
September 1951
January 1952

December 1952

May 1953
February 1954
December 1955

May 1956

January 1958

September 1959

January 1961
August 1962

November 1969

December 1971
December 1975

January 1976

January 1977

February 1977

January 1979

Established Matsushita Electric Trading Co., Ltd.

Incorporated as Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. on December 15, 1935 (10
million yen in capital).
Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange.

Listed on Nagoya Stock Exchange.

Formed a capital alliance with Nakagawa Kikai Kabushiki Kaisha (subsequently
renamed Matsushita Refrigeration Company).

Established Matsushita Electronics Corporation through a technology alliance with
Philips in Netherlands, and transferred four lamp manufacturing factories to this
establishment.

Established the Central Research Laboratory.

Formed a capital alliance with Victor Company of Japan Ltd. (JVC).

Established Kyushu Matsushita Electric Co., Ltd. (subsequently renamed Panasonic
Communications Co., Ltd.).

Established Osaka Denki Seiki Kabushiki Kaisha (subsequently renamed Matsushita
Seiko Co., Ltd.).

Established Matsushita Communication Industrial Co., Ltd. (subsequently renamed
Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd.), and transferred communication
equipment manufacturing section to this establishment.

Established Matsushita Electric Corporation of America (currently Panasonic
Corporation of North America).

(Since then, established manufacturing and sales sites at various locations in the world.)
Masaharu Matsushita became President of the Company.

Formed a capital alliance with Toho Denki Kabushiki Kaisha (subsequently renamed
Matsushita Graphic Communication Systems, Inc.).

Established Matsushita Kotobuki Electronics Industries, Ltd. (subsequently Panasonic
Healthcare Co., Ltd.).

Listed on New York Stock Exchange.

Issued U.S. dollar-denominated convertible bonds (100 million U.S. dollars at face
value).

Established Matsushita Electronic Components Co., Ltd. (subsequently renamed
Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.), and transferred electronic device manufacturing
section to this establishment.

Established Matsushita Household Equipment Co., Ltd., and transferred household
equipment manufacturing section to this establishment.

Established Matsushita Industrial Equipment Co., Ltd. and transferred industrial
equipment manufacturing section to this establishment.

Toshihiko Yamashita became President of the Company.

Established Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd., and transferred battery
manufacturing section to this establishment.

-2




Month/Year

Events

July 1985

October 1985
February 1986
March 1987
April 1988
April 1989
December 1990
February 1993
May 1993

April 1995
June 1995

February 1999
April 2000

June 2000
April 2001
April 2002

October 2002

January 2003

April 2003

April 2004

April 2005
February 2006

June 2006

Established a finance subsidiary in U.S.
(In May 1986, established two finance subsidiaries in Europe.)
Established Semiconductor Fundamental Research Laboratory.

Akio Tanii became President of the Company.

Changed the fiscal year end from November 20 to March 31.

Absorbed Matsushita Electric Trading Co., Ltd.

The Company's founder Konosuke Matsushita passed away.

Acquired MCA INC. (MCA), a leading entertainment company in the U.S.
Yoichi Morishita became President of the Company.

Dissolved partnership with Philips regarding Matsushita Electronics Corporation and
purchased all shares of Matsushita Electronics Corporation which Philips held.
Absorbed Matsushita Household Equipment Co., Ltd.

Sold 80% equity interest in MCA shares, which a subsidiary of the Company in U.S.
held, to Seagram Company Ltd in Canada.

Cancelled 50 million shares of treasury stock by 98.8 billion yen of retained earnings
decided by resolution of 91st Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

Made Matsushita Refrigeration Company into a wholly-owned subsidiary through share-
exchange.

Kunio Nakamura became President of the Company.

Absorbed Matsushita Electronics Corporation.

Established a joint venture liquid crystal display panel manufacturing company, Toshiba
Matsushita Display Technology Co., Ltd. with Toshiba Corporation.

Made Matsushita Communication Industrial Co., Ltd., Kyushu Matsushita Electric Co.,
Ltd., Matsushita Seiko Co., Ltd. (currently Panasonic Ecology Systems Co., Ltd.),
Matsushita Kotobuki Electronics Industries, Ltd. and Matsushita Graphic
Communication Systems, Inc. into wholly-owned subsidiaries through share-exchanges.
Instituted business domain system through business restructuring.

Kyushu Matsushita Electric Co., Ltd. was merged with Matsushita Graphic
Communication Systems, Inc.

Established a joint venture cathode ray tubes manufacturing company, Matsushita
Toshiba Picture Display Co., Ltd. (subsequently renamed MT Picture Display Co., Ltd.,
liquidated in May 2019) with Toshiba Corporation.

Made Matsushita Electronic Components Co., Ltd. and Matsushita Battery Industrial
Co., Ltd. into wholly-owned subsidiaries through share-exchanges.

Unified its corporate brands as "Panasonic" worldwide.

Made Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. (subsequently renamed Panasonic Electric Works
Co., Ltd. (PEW)), PanaHome Corporation (subsequently became a wholly-owned
subsidiary in fiscal 2018 and renamed Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd. in April 2018.) and
their subsidiaries into consolidated subsidiaries of the Company through additional
purchase of shares of Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd.

Absorbed Matsushita Industrial Information Equipment Co., Ltd.

Sold the remaining shares of affiliated company of Universal Studios (formerly MCA),
which a subsidiary of the Company in U.S. held, to Vivendi Universal.
Fumio Ohtsubo became President of the Company.




Month/Year

Events

March 2007
August 2007

April 2008
October 2008

April 2009
December 2009

January 2010

April 2011

January 2012
April 2012
June 2012

October 2012
March 2013

April 2013

March 2014

June 2014

January 2020

Made Matsushita Toshiba Picture Display Co., Ltd. into a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Excluded JVC and its subsidiaries from consolidated subsidiaries of the Company due to
JVC's issuance of new shares and third party allotments. As a result, JVC became an
associated company accounted for under the equity method. (Subsequently, in January
2011, JVC was excluded from an associated company accounted for under the equity
method)

Absorbed Matsushita Refrigeration Company.

The Company changed its name from Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. to
Panasonic Corporation.

Absorbed Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd.

Sold all the shares of Toshiba Matsushita Display Technology Co., Ltd., which the
Company held, to Toshiba Corporation.

Acquired majority of the voting rights in SANYO Electric Co., Ltd. (SANYO) and made
SANYO and its subsidiaries into consolidated subsidiaries of the Company.

Transferred the business of System Solutions Company, the Company's internal division
company, to Panasonic Communications Co., Ltd., which was at the same time renamed
Panasonic System Networks Co., Ltd.

Made PEW and SANYO into wholly-owned subsidiaries through share-exchanges.

Absorbed PEW.

Reorganized domain system to 9 domains and 1 marketing section through business
restructuring.

Absorbed companies including Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.

Kazuhiro Tsuga became President of the Company.
Established the Corporate Strategy Head Office.

Panasonic System Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. absorbed companies including Panasonic
System Networks Co., Ltd., and was at the same time renamed Panasonic System
Networks Co., Ltd. (Subsequently, in April 2017, renamed as Panasonic System
Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. due to partial reorganization.)

Transformed to new basic group formation through business division system from
business domain system.

Absorbed Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd. subsequent to carrying out the
incorporation-type company split of mobile phone terminal business and transferring
mobile phone base station business to Panasonic System Networks Co., Ltd. in the
company split.

Delisted from New York Stock Exchange.

Transferred all the shares and other related assets of Panasonic Healthcare Co., Ltd.
(subsequently renamed PHC Corporation) to PHC Holdings Co., Ltd. and subscribed
20% of shares of PHC Holdings Co., Ltd. (subsequently renamed PHC Holdings
Corporation) Transferred a part of its shares in 2019.

Transferred semiconductor business to Panasonic Semiconductor Solutions Co., Ltd. in
the company split.

Established Prime Life Technologies Corporation, a joint venture related to a town
development business with Toyota Motor Corporation, and transferred all shares of
Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd., and other subsidiaries to the joint venture by a joint share
transfer.




3. Description of Business

The Panasonic Group is comprised primarily of the parent Panasonic Corporation and 528 consolidated
subsidiaries in and outside of Japan, operating in close cooperation with each other. As a comprehensive
electronics manufacturer, Panasonic is engaged in development, production, sales and service activities in a
broad array of business areas.

The Company supplies a full spectrum of electric/electronic equipment and related products, which is
categorized into the following five reportable segments, "Appliances," "Life Solutions," "Connected Solutions,"
"Automotive," "Industrial Solutions," and other business activities which are not included in the reportable
segments. The reportable segment classification was changed on April 1, 2019. For further details about each
segment and business transfers, please refer to "V Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 4."

The Company's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with IFRS, and the scopes
of affiliates are also disclosed based on the definition of those accounting principles. The same applies to " I
Business Overview" and "III Property, Plants and Equipment."

(Panasonic Group)
As of March 31, 2020

(Segments, main products and services) |(Major manufacturing companies) (Major sales companies)
Appliances (Japan) (Japan)
Room air-conditioners, large-sized air- Panasonic Corporation Panasonic Corporation
conditioners, refrigerators, washing machines, [(Overseas) Panasonic Consumer
vacuum cleaners, microwave ovens, rice Panasonic Appliances Air-Conditioning — Marketing Co., Ltd.
cookers, personal-care products, TVs, digital (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.
cameras, Video equipment, home audio Panasonic Appliances Washing (Overseas)
equipment, fixed-phones, showcases, Machine (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. Panasonic Corporation of
compressors, fuel cells Hussmann Corporation North America

Panasonic Marketing
Life Solutions (Japan) Europe GmbH
Lighting fixtures, lamps, wiring devices, solar |Panasonic Corporation Panasonic Asia Pacific
photowltaic systems, ventilation and air- Panasonic Ecology Systems Co., Ltd. » Pte. Ltd. —
conditioning equipment, air purifiers, kitchen & [KMEW Co., Ltd. Panasonic Corporation of n
bath, interior furnishing materials, exterior (Overseas) China o
finishing materials, bicycles, nursing care Panasonic Life Solutions India Pw., Ltd.
service o
Connected Solutions (Japan) E
Aircraft in-flight entertainment systems and Panasonic Corporation
communications services, electronic- Panasonic System Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. (@)
components-mounting machines, welding Panasonic Smart Factory Solutions Co., Ltd. |
equipment, projectors, professional AV (Overseas) e
systems, PCs and tablets, Panasonic Avionics Corporation (/2]
Solutions for various industries,
installation/operation/maintenance services S
Automotive 2 (Japan) > O
Automotive-use infotainment systems, Panasonic Corporation
automotive switches, automotive audio SANYO Electric Co., Ltd.
systems , Advanced driver assistance (Overseas)
systems (ADAS), Device and systems for Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
electric automobiles, automotive mirrors, Panasonic Automotive Systems Dalian Co., Ltd. |~ |
automotive-use batteries Panasonic Corporation of North America

Ficosa International, S.A.

Industrial Solutions (Japan)

Relays, switches, power supply, industrial Panasonic Corporation

motors and sensors, small lithium-ion SANYO Electric Co., Ltd.

batteries, capacitors, coils, resistors, Panasonic Industrial Devices SUNX Co., Ltd.
electronic circuit board materials, dry (Overseas) —
batteries, micro batteries, semiconductors, Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

LCD panels

*1 "Eco Solutions" was renamed as "Life Solutions" on April 1, 2019.
*2 "Automotive & Industrial Systems" was reorganized to "Automotive" and "Industrial Solutions" on April 1,
2019.



4. Information on Affiliates

(1) Principal Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2020

Ratio of Relationship
Name Location | Common stock | Principal businesses | voting rights | Interlocking Remark
in Japan  |(millions of yen) (Note 2) (%) directorate, | Advances Business
(Note 1) etc. to transaction
(Note 3)
Panasonic Ecology Kasugai-shi, . . Manufacture of
. 12,092 [Life Solutions 100.0 R
Systems Co., Ltd. Aichi Panasonic products
Panasonic Smart Factory Kadoma-shi, . 100.0 Manufacture of
R 9,000 | Connected Solutions R
Solutions Co., Ltd. Osaka (100.0) Panasonic products
Chuo-ku, . . Sale of Panasonic
KMEW Co., Ltd. . 8,000 | Life Solutions 50.0 Note 6
Osaka-shi products
Panasonic Liquid Crystal | Himeji-shi, . . 100.0 Manufacture of
. 500 | Industrial Solutions R Note 5
Display Co., Ltd. Hyogo (100.0) Panasonic products
Life Solutions, Manufacture anfi
i . i sale of Panasonic
. Daito-shi, Automotive, 100.0
SANYO Electric Co., Ltd. 400 X . Yes products and Note 5
Osaka Industrial Solutions, (100.0) .
supply of materials
Other, Corporate i
and merchandise
Panasonic Semiconductor [ Nagaokakyo R X 100.0 Manufacture of
. N 400 |Industrial Solutions Yes . Note 5
Solutions Co., Ltd. -shi, Kyoto (100.0) Panasonic products
Manufacture and
. sale of Panasonic
Panasonic System Hakata-ku, .
. . 350 [Connected Solutions 100.0 products and
Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. Fukuoka-shi .
provision of IT
services
Panasonic Consumer Chuo-ku, . 100.0 Sale of Panasonic
i i 100 | Appliances Note 4
Marketing Co., Ltd. Osaka-shi (100.0) products




Relationship

Ratio of
. Common stock | Principal businesses | voting rights | Interlocking
Name Location (millions) (Note 2) %) directorate, | Advances Business Remark
(Note 1) etc. to transaction
(Note 3)
Al Lif Manufacture and
ppliances, Life K
sale of Panasonic
Solutions, Connected ducts and
roducts an
Panasonic Corporation of [ New Jersey, Solutions, 100.0 P Note 4
. US$ 537 . management
North America U.S.A. Automotive, (100.0) ) Note 8
service
Industrial Solutions, toP .
o Panasonic
Other, Corporate K
P affiliates
Manufact d
Panasonic Avionics California, . 100.0 anulacture an4
. US$ 22 | Connected Solutions Yes sale of Panasonic
Corporation U.S.A. (100.0)
products
Mi X 100.0 Manufacture and
issouri, . . .
Hussmann Corporation US.A USs$ — |Appliances (100.0) sale of Panasonic Note 9
o ' products
Appliances,
X X Connected Solutions, Manufacture and
Panasonic do Brasil Amazonas, R .
Limitad Brazil BRL 1,157 [ Automotive, 100.0 sale of Panasonic Note 4
imitada razi
? Industrial Solutions, products
Other
Control of
investment and
fi i d
Panasonic Holding Amsterdam, {ancing an
USs$ 0.2 [Corporate 100.0 Yes management Note 4
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(2) Principal Companies under the Equity Method

(As of March 31, 2020)

R Relationship
Ratio of
. Common stock | Principal businesses | voting rights Interlocking
Name Location (millions of yen) %) directorate, | Advances Business Remark
(Note 1) etc. to transaction
(Note 3)
Design,
Kohoku-ku, Design, d es11gn ¢ and
evelopment, an
Socionext Inc. Yokohama- 30,200 [development, and 20.0 ) f[; .
sale of Panasonic
shi sale of system LSI
products
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust . . Lease and credit
L. Minato-ku, Total financial K
Panasonic Finance Co., Tok 25,584 . 15.1 sale of Panasonic Note 7
okyo services
Ltd. 4 products
Sale of P i
Prime Life Technologies Minato-ku, Housing-related ale o anasonlc'
X 100 . 50.0 products through its
Corporation Tokyo business .
subsidiaries, etc.
(Notes)

1. A number in the parenthesis represents the ratio of indirect voting rights, which is a part of the ratio of voting
rights.

2. The column "Principal businesses" indicates the segment in which the subsidiaries are classified. For
subsidiaries that do not belong to any segment, the segments handling the products are described if it is a
sales company, and "Corporate" is described otherwise.

3. Regarding the interlocking directorate, etc., other than what is disclosed above, the Company's employees
concurrently hold position of directors or officers in the most of the consolidated subsidiaries or companies
under the equity method.

4. Subsidiaries that meet the criteria of the specified subsidiaries or "Tokutei Kogaisya" defined in Cabinet
Office Ordinance on Disclosure of Corporate Affairs, etc. of Japan.

5. Subsidiaries in the list above with insolvency

The amount of liabilities in excess of assets as of March 31, 2020 are shown below:

Panasonic Liquid Crystal Display Co., Ltd. 568,689 million yen
SANYO Electric Co., Ltd. 542,344 million yen
Panasonic Semiconductor Solutions Co., Ltd. 90,049 million yen

6. Although the ratio of voting rights is 50.0%, KMEW Co., Ltd. is treated as a consolidated subsidiary because
the Company controls it by involving in its manufacturing and sale activities.

7. Although the ratio of voting rights is 15.1%, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Panasonic Finance Co., Ltd. is treated
as a company under the equity method because the Company holds significant influence over its decision on
operating and financial policies. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Panasonic Finance Co., Ltd. issues the annual
securities report.

8. Sales of Panasonic Corporation of North America excluding internal sales in the Panasonic group accounts
for more than 10% of consolidated sales. Its major financial data based on USGAAP are as follows:

(1) Sales 909,382 million yen
(2) Loss before income tax 16,253 million yen
(3) Net loss 15,628 million yen
(4) Equity 603,447 million yen
(5) Assets 945,062 million yen

9. Common stock of Hussmann Corporation is zero.



5. Employees

(1) Consolidated basis

As of March 31, 2020
Segment Number of employees

Appliances 67,789
Life Solutions 48,154
Connected Solutions 26,753
Automotive 31,363
Industrial Solutions 69,215
Other 13,260
Corporate 2,851

Total 259,385

(Notes)
1. The number of employees refers solely to full-time employees of the Company on a consolidated basis.
2. The number of employees decreased by 12,484, compared with the end of last fiscal year.

(2) Parent-alone basis

As of March 31, 2020
Number of employees Average age Average tenure (years) A:aelﬁ_%e(;gg;l al
60,455 45.7 22.7 7,546,379
Segment Number of employees

Appliances 12,776
Life Solutions 12,379
Connected Solutions 9,645
Automotive 8,402
Industrial Solutions 12,808
Other 1,594
Corporate 2,851

Total 60,455

(Notes)

1. The number of employees refers solely to full-time employees of the parent company.
2. Average annual salary includes bonuses and extra wages.

(3) Relationship with labor union

The total number of union members of the federation of Panasonic group labor union is 91,622 as of March 31,
2020, and most of the labor unions belong to the Japanese Electrical Electronic & Information Union except
some labor unions.
The followings are main labor unions which belong to federation of Panasonic group labor union.
Panasonic Life Solutions labor union (Belongs to the Japanese Electrical Electronic & Information Union)
Panasonic Appliances labor union (Belongs to the Japanese Electrical Electronic & Information Union)
Panasonic Industrial Devices labor union (Belongs to the Japanese Electrical Electronic & Information
Union)
Panasonic Connected Solutions labor union (Belongs to the Japanese Electrical Electronic & Information
Union)
The relationship between management and labor unions is quite stable and smooth.
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II Business Overview
1. Management Policy, Business Environment and Challenges of Panasonic Group

Future expectations included in this section are as of June 26, 2020, the filing date of this annual securities
report.

(1) Basic Management Policy

Since the Company’s foundation, Panasonic has operated as a public entity under its management philosophy
of "contributing to the progress and development of society and the well-being of people worldwide through its
business activities," with the aim of realizing "A Better Life, A Better World." Addressing changes in the
social environment, it seeks to pursue sustainable growth and higher corporate value by drawing on its
technological and manufacturing expertise, in combination with the strengths of external business partners, to
continue creating new value.

(2) Management Strategy and Challenges of Panasonic Group

1) Main initiatives for fiscal 2021
In the Mid-term strategy that started in fiscal 2020, Panasonic classified its businesses into three
classifications, "Core growth business," "Co-creation business," and "Revitalization business." The Company
aims for profit growth by focusing resources mainly into "Spatial Solutions," "Gemba (operational frontlines)
Process," and "Industrial Solutions," which are positioned as Core growth business, and aims to improve
profitability by enhancing competitiveness and others with Co-creation business.

In the management environment of fiscal 2021, it is difficult to have a clear outlook for the global economy,
given growing uncertainty over political and financial circumstances in other countries and increasingly
widespread protectionism, along with the novel coronavirus infection (COVID-19) situation (Note 1). The
Company projects that the impact of these events in the global economy would not be insignificant in Japan.

Amid these circumstances, Panasonic will continue to execute portfolio management and enhance its
management structure, based on the Mid-term strategy, monitoring the risks and impact on its businesses, as
well as deliberating the necessary countermeasures.

In Core growth business, Panasonic pursues profit growth through the expansion of solution-type businesses,
offering solutions to customers’ problems on the back of social issues, as well as management issues and
others. In Co-creation business, the Company aims to enhance competitiveness and improve profitability
through regional and business collaboration, leveraging the strength of the Panasonic brand, which has been
cultivated over many years. In addition, to achieve an efficient and competitive management structure, the
Company will continue to take radical measures on low-profitable businesses, and promote fixed cost
reduction.

Based on these initiatives, the Company will strive to thoroughly improve its profit structure, and furthermore,
to strengthen the competitiveness of each of the individual businesses. In addition, from a long-term
perspective toward 2030, Panasonic aims to become a company that continues to create contributions focusing
on people’s lives, through its "Lifestyle Updates" initiatives.

For fiscal 2022, which is the final year of the Mid-term Strategy, and onwards, Panasonic will aim towards
Company-wide management that can stably achieve the following targets: for Core growth business, the goals
are an EBITDA (Note 2) growth rate of 5-10% and an EBITDA margin (Note 3) of 10% or more, as well as
a Company-wide ROE (Note 4) target of 10% or more. EBITDA is a cash flow indicator that represents return
on investment. The Company has been setting these EBITDA targets to evaluate increases in corporate value
derived from Core growth business, where resources will be prioritized to drive profit growth. Panasonic aims
to raise overall corporate value by increasing the amount of profit mainly from Core growth business.
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Notes 1. COVID-19 situation: Refer to "(1) Risks Related to Economic Conditions" of "2. Risk Factors."
2. EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
3. EBITDA margin: EBITDA / Net sales
4. ROE (Return on Equity): Net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders / Average
Panasonic Corporation stockholders’ equity at the beginning and the end of each fiscal year

2) Major initiatives in each segment

Appliances

The area of air-conditioning and home appliances is considered a growth market, partly because of growing
concerns about the environment, energy savings, and indoor air quality. However, in the AV area such as
TVs, growth is expected to deteriorate as technological evolution slows and commoditization advances
further.

In the lifestyle infrastructure area centered on air-conditioning, which is considered a growth market,
Panasonic will make efforts to improve profitability in the commercial air-conditioner business on a global
basis. Meanwhile, in the lifestyle appliance area centered on consumer electronics, the Company will strive
to transform its profit structure through business restructuring in the areas of TVs and other products whose
business environment is severe. At the same time, it aims to be connected to each individual customer and
"become closer to customers" with products and services linking to value. Panasonic will also engage in
realizing optimal operations, which should enhance its competitiveness in China and other Asian markets,
in cooperation with China & Northeast Asia Company.

Life Solutions

In Japan, non-residential construction including renewal demand, such as for offices and shops, is expected
to remain firm, while new housing starts are expected to decline. Overseas, demand for urban development,
including housing and infrastructure, is expected to expand in the medium to long term, mainly in ISAMEA
(Note) and Southeast Asia.

In Japan, mostly in the non-residential field, Panasonic will expand the range of its contributions into the
areas of offering consulting services to provide solutions for customers and maintenance & customer
services after delivery in the medium term perspective, in addition to handling sales and installation of
systems linking multiple products. In India and Southeast Asia, it will also seek profit growth through sales
growth, with its electrical construction materials business, by enhancing its sales and production structure.
Through these efforts, Panasonic will engage in businesses that take the customer’s viewpoint in realizing
better and more comfortable lives, on a global basis.

Note: ISAMEA: India, South Asia, Middle East, and Africa

Connected Solutions

As the labor force declines and customers’ personal preferences diversify further, markets are expected to
continue growing in the business areas of manufacturing, logistics, and distribution.

Panasonic will contribute to resolving business challenges through operational process innovations at
customers’ "Gemba" (operational frontlines), where they "produce," "transport," and "sell," aiming to
transform into a sustainable and profitable enterprise with the Gemba Process business as its mainstay
pillar. In the supply chain area, centered on logistics and distribution, the Company will contribute to
customers who are increasing sales and reducing costs by communicating value from upstream processes,
such as consulting, and operational processes upgraded with digitalization and data coordination at the
Gemba. In the area of fine processing (manufacturing), Panasonic will deal with customers throughout the
entire set of processes from development to manufacturing, sales, and services, offering value continuously
in every process.
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Automotive

Due to advances in CASE (Note 1), the automotive industry is in an era of major transformation, which is
said to occur only once in 100 years. Technologies equipped on a vehicle have become more sophisticated,
supporting the needs for a comfortable mobile space and for reducing traffic accidents.

In Automotive Solutions, Panasonic will strengthen the following fields where it can leverage its existing
strengths, IVI (Note 2), HUD (Note 3), and ADAS (Note 4), in an effort to promote activities that support
automotive advances. For IVI, the Company has the software development capability to realize high
operational performance and functions by leveraging its knowledge and expertise cultivated in the digital
AV and consumer electronics business; for HUD, industry-leading technologies to realize downsized and
enlarged screen display; and for ADAS, highly accurate detection in vehicle peripheral systems, such as
emergency braking and parking support. The Company will continue to support the creation of a safe and
comfortable driving environment by developing and offering products primarily in these fields on which it
focuses. In Automotive Batteries, Panasonic will lead the industry in terms of high-energy density and
safety to accommodate customer demand, through further development of cylindrical lithium-ion battery
technologies and accelerating the development of prismatic lithium-ion batteries through joint ventures.

Notes 1. CASE: Connected, Autonomous, Shared & Services, and Electric

2. IVI: In Vehicle Infotainment (automotive solutions that provide audible/visual support for safe
[essential driving information] and comfortable [entertainment] driving)

3. HUD: Head-Up Display (a display device that supports safety when driving by projecting essential
driving information in the field of view of the vehicle driver so that he or she does not have to take
his or her eyes away from the road ahead)

4. ADAS: Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (safety-driving support systems, including automatic
braking and automatic parking, take over control of the vehicle to avoid an accident when a danger
is detected)

Industrial Solutions

In the wake of the developing IoT society and mobility, along with social issues such as a declining labor
force, the areas of information- and communication-infrastructure, automotive CASE, and labor-saving at
factories, which Panasonic positions as key areas, are expected to grow through continual evolution in the
medium to long term.

As demand for devices fundamental to those areas is expected to grow significantly, Panasonic will
contribute to resolving social issues by providing "competitive devices" and "systems centered on
competitive devices". This will involve targeting 5G base stations and data centers for information- and
communication-infrastructure, electrification and xEV (Note) for automotive CASE, and production
facilities etc. for labor-saving at factories, with the aim of growing sales of products in key areas. The
Company will also pursue profit growth by enhancing its management structure, in addition to expanding
products for which it has top shares, while further enhancing material and process technologies and
business creation in the module package product field where value provided can be maximized through
close relationships with customers.

Note: XxEV: electric vehicle [generic name for electric vehicles, hybrid electric vehicles, plug-in hybrid
(electric) vehicles, and (hydrogen) fuel cell vehicles]

3) Foundations toward sustainable growth
Corporate Governance
Panasonic recognizes that its corporate governance practices constitute the key foundation in its efforts to
enhance its medium- to long-term corporate value. As such, the Company promotes efforts to strengthen
the effectiveness of its corporate governance structure under the Board of Directors and the Audit &
Supervisory Board Member / Audit & Supervisory Board structure. The Board of Directors enhances the
effectiveness of its supervisory functions and corporate decision-making functions through active
discussions on M&A transactions, cooperation with external partners, and others. In addition, with the
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Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee and the system to evaluate the Board of Directors'
effectiveness, Panasonic is committed to activities for enhancing management flexibility and transparency.

Environment

Looking toward the "Panasonic Environment Vision 2050" which was formulated with the aim of helping
to realize both better lifestyles and sustainable global environment, Panasonic is taking steps to promote
efforts that involve reducing energy used, while generating energy in excess of such amounts consumed, by
developing products, technologies and solutions relating to creation, storage, and conservation of energy
and energy management. In order to accelerate these efforts, Panasonic participates in the global initiative,
RE100 (Note 1), aiming for zero-CO2 manufacturing by the year 2050 by switching its global electricity
consumption to 100% renewable energy. Furthermore, in view of the TCFD (Note 2) Recommendations,
the Company identifies risks and opportunities, including businesses assessed as vulnerable to climate
change, for scenario analyses.

Notes 1. RE100: a global initiative aiming to convert electricity consumed in business operations to 100%
renewable energy.
2. TCFD: Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, set up by the Financial Stability
Board.

Human Resources Strategy

Defining new portfolio classifications, the Panasonic Group aims for both profit growth and improved
profitability. As such, the Group is committed to creating an organizational climate where each individual
can take on challenges and fully deploy one’s talents. It has thus reformed its business management
structure and clarified the roles and responsibilities of management by dividing it into "executive officers,"
who will lead the reform of the business structure for the Group-wide optimization, and the "business
execution layer," which is responsible for strengthening and transforming individual businesses. The Group
will appoint personnel for the business execution layer who are required according to the future business
environment, flexibly and in a timely way based on the standpoint of having the right person in the right
place. In addition, a more achievement-oriented, transparent evaluation and compensation system is
adopted to nurture a corporate climate that encourages one to relentlessly take up challenges.

The Group has also constructed a global talent platform, as a way to strengthen the development of people
who can play global roles, regardless of age, years of service, or nationality. Using a global talent database,
which allows talent management information to be made visible and to be utilized, will allow postings or
appointments and career or skill development beyond the boundaries of nations, regions, and Group
companies, aiming to standardize talent management at a high level globally and improve its organizational
abilities.
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2. Risk Factors

Panasonic has established the "Global & Group Risk Management Committee" to promote overall risk
management in order to accurately understand risks and reduce their impacts on our business management. This
committee consists of members from the Corporate as well as Divisional companies and Regional headquarters
and the corporate-wide risk management officer will be appointed from the group management as its chairman.
Panasonic shall perform an annual risk assessment to identify potential risks that may affect our business
activities, to evaluate such risks according to the common criteria (degree of impacts on the business
management and likelihood of occurrence, etc.), and to determine risks that should be prioritized when taking
measures. With regard to risks that we judge as important based on the assessment, the committee in charge of
those risks plays a central role in formulating and executing countermeasures, monitoring the status of such
countermeasures, and implementing activities for improvement on an ongoing basis. The Global & Group Risk
Management Committee regularly reports elements of important risks, countermeasures and monitoring results
to the Board of Directors.

Described below are some of the potential risks to its business activities that may have a material impact on
investors' decisions. However, this is not an exhaustive list of all risks to Panasonic, and there can be
unforeseeable risks that are not described below. These risks may substantially and adversely affect Panasonic's
business, operating results, and financial condition.

Among the matters related to the business as well as accounting status stated in the securities report, below are
the risks that the management recognizes that they may have a significant impact on the financial status,
business performance and cash flow status of the consolidated companies. This section includes forward-looking
statements and future expectations as of June 26, 2020, the filing date of this annual securities report.

(1) Risks Related to Economic Conditions

Changing economic conditions
Demand for Panasonic's products and services may be affected by economic conditions in the countries or
regions in which its products and services are offered. Economic downturns and resulting demand shrinkage
in its major markets worldwide may thus adversely affect its business, operating results, and financial
condition. The global economy in FY2021 is highly uncertain due to the global political and financial
conditions in addition to the spread of protectionism and the novel coronavirus infections. Japan is not an
exception and its economy is likely to be affected by these global factors to a certain extent.
Regarding the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections in the first quarter of FY2021, an
adverse economic impact of sluggish markets resulting from the lowered demand in the automobile and
aviation industries as well as stay-at-home orders implemented worldwide is expanding from China to across
the globe. While supply chain issues in China are improving, the suspension of factories in other part of the
world including Asian countries as a result of the lockdown has started to affect our procurement and
manufacturing operations.
Taking a look by segment, at the Appliances business, we saw a fall in demand primarily in Japan, Europe and
Asia due to the lockdown or stay-at-home orders imposed in the respective regions. When looking at the
supply side, on the other hand, the temporary closure of factories in some countries such as Malaysia and
India caused a negative impact on the business (air conditioners, TVs, etc.).
With respect to the demand for Life Solutions business, some construction projects have been postponed due
to the sluggish domestic market conditions. Looking at the overseas markets such as India, on the other hand,
we saw a decrease in demand as a result of the lockdown measures. On the supply side of the business such as
wiring equipment and ventilation fans, the suspension of operations at factories in India, Malaysia, and
Mexico caused a negative impact on the business.
As for the Connected Solutions business, we experienced demand slowdowns in the entertainment industry
due to the sluggish market conditions in the aviation and automobile industries in addition to the cancellation
of events. On the supply side of this segment, production has been affected by difficulties in procuring parts
from suppliers due to lockdowns in Asia.
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On the demand side of Automotive business, we saw a sharp drop in demand following the temporary closure
of our customers’ factories as a result of the lockdown measures. With regard to the supply side of this
segment, a steep drop in demand was reported, affecting the production as well as utilization of factories,
which produce in-vehicle devices and cylindrical batteries, resulting in disruptions to procurement of parts for
in-vehicle devices.

Looking at the demand for the Industrial Solutions business, the impact was relatively limited in the area of
business for industrial use, however, we saw a drop in demand for the in-vehicle business. The supply side of
this segment (motors and capacitors, etc.) was also impacted by the lockdown and the temporary closure of
the factories in Asia, causing disruption to parts procurement.

In the second quarter of FY2021, depending on the novel coronavirus situation, the restrictions on leaving
home in each country may gradually be eased, and economic conditions may gradually recover, but in terms
of demand in the automobile and aviation industries, these effects may persist.

If it is necessary to implement new business structural reforms in order to deal with these situations, there is a
possibility that the costs will increase. In addition, if the global economy deteriorates more than expected, the
business environment surrounding our company may become more severe than it is currently expected, and as
a result, there is possibility that its business, business performance and financial position will be adversely
affected. Under such circumstances, we have been striving to strengthen our portfolio management and
management structure based on our mid-term strategy. We are determined to improve our profitability by
focusing our resources on the core businesses for profit growth and to enhance our competitiveness through co
-creation businesses. In addition, in order to achieve more efficient and competitive management structures,
we have been making the utmost efforts to take sweeping measures toward low-profit businesses and to
reduce fixed costs.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect Panasonic's business, operating results, and financial
condition because the costs and prices of its products and services and certain other transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies are affected by foreign exchange rate changes. In addition, foreign
exchange rate changes also affect the yen value of Panasonic's overseas assets and liabilities denominated in
local currencies because their amounts are translated and presented in Japanese yen in its consolidated
financial statements. Generally, the appreciation of the yen against the local currencies of the countries in
which Panasonic operates may adversely affect Panasonic's operating results. A weaker yen against a local
currency, on the other hand, may have a favorable impact on Panasonic's operating results. However, the
depreciation of the yen against certain currencies such as the RMB may adversely affect operating results in
certain business sectors on a Japanese yen basis due to the price increase of imported products. Excessive
foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect Panasonic's business, operating results, and financial
condition. With respect to these risks, we are working to reduce the impact on our business by using the
foreign currency "Marie" allocating foreign currencies gained through our business activities to spending in
the same foreign currencies, or "forward exchange contract transactions" designed to predetermine the selling
or purchase price as well as the quantity of foreign currencies on a future date. We are also aiming to mitigate
the impact on our business through the "local production for the local consumption type manufacturing,"
producing products in locations close to where they are consumed.

Interest rate fluctuations
Panasonic is exposed to interest rate fluctuation risks that may affect its interest expenses, interest income, or
the value of its financial assets and liabilities. Consequently, interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect its
business, operating results, and financial condition. In addition, our group raises business funds in the form of
interest-bearing debt in yen and other currencies, and if interest rates rise due to changes in economic
conditions and/or monetary policy, our funding costs may increase. As a consequence, this could have a
negative impact on our group’s business, as well as business performance and financial status.

Changing fund-raising environment
Panasonic raises funds for its business in various forms, such as bonds and commercial paper issued and
borrowings from financial institutions. If the financial market becomes unstable or deteriorates, financial
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institutions reduce lending to Panasonic, or rating agencies downgrade Panasonic Corporation's credit ratings,
Panasonic's fund-raising ability may be reduced to levels at which it is not able to raise the necessary funds at
the necessary times under appropriate conditions, and Panasonic may have to incur additional costs in raising
funds. This may adversely affect its business, operating results, and financial condition. In response to these
risks, we are striving to strengthen our ability to generate funds, by improving the ability to generate sufficient
cash flow coming in from businesses through measures such as strengthening business profitability and
reducing working capital, and to strengthen our ability to generate funds through balance sheets by thoroughly
looking into the assets held. Furthermore, we are also striving to mitigate the impact on our business
management by having signed commitment line contracts (Note) with a total of 700 billion yen with multiple
financial institutions, and ensuring to secure sufficient liquidity, including the balance of cash and cash
equivalents.
(Note) Commitment line contracts: A contract that allows us to receive a loan within the scope of the
predetermined contract period and credit line that we have agreed with a financial institution.

Decreases in the value of stocks
Panasonic's financial assets include stocks of other companies around the world including Japan. A shrinkage
in their value due to stock price declines or otherwise may reduce Panasonic Corporation stockholders' equity.

(2) Risks Related to Panasonic's Business Activities

Competition in the industry
Developing, producing, and selling a broad range of products and services, Panasonic faces many different
types of competitors, from large international companies to small but rapidly growing specialized enterprises.
Panasonic is strengthening its investments in strategically important businesses, but there may be business
sectors in which its investments may not be as large or timely as competitors' or may not happen at all. These
competitors may have greater financial strength, technological capabilities, and marketing resources than
Panasonic in the respective competitive business sectors.

Product price declines

Being subject to intense competition worldwide, Panasonic may have difficulties setting product prices at
levels at which it can secure sufficient profit. Although Panasonic makes efforts to reduce costs and develop
high value-added products, greater downward price pressure than it can cope with through such efforts
seriously affects Panasonic's ability to maintain or secure profits, especially when product demand is lower. In
business-to-consumer (BtoC) areas, amid accelerating changes in the structure of markets, such as a demand
shift to emerging markets and lower-priced products, Panasonic's product prices in digital electronics and
other business areas may decline. In business-to-business (BtoB) areas, on the other hand, in spite of
Panasonic's efforts, its business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected by
downward price pressure, decrease in demand for products, or pressure for capital investment from business
partners that Panasonic highly depends on.

Barriers in international business activities
One of Panasonic's business strategies is business expansion in overseas markets. In these markets, Panasonic
may be exposed to various risks other than foreign currency exchange risks, such as political instability
(including wars, civil disturbances, conflicts, riots, and terrorist attacks), economic uncertainty, cultural and
religious differences, and labor issues. Panasonic may also face barriers in the form of local commercial
customs overseas that may make it difficult for Panasonic to collect accounts receivable in a timely manner or
build or expand its relationships with business partners. Panasonic may also experience various political,
legal, or other barriers, including restrictions on foreign investment or profit repatriation, the nationalization
of local industries, changes in export or import regulations or foreign exchange controls, and changes in the
tax system, including tax rate changes, and transfer pricing and other international taxation risks. With respect
to products exported overseas, tariffs or other barriers or shipping costs may make Panasonic's products less
price-competitive. Overseas business expansion may require significant investments that may not yield returns
in the short term, and expenses involved in such investments may grow at a faster rate than the returns. As
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mentioned in the "Fluctuation risk of economic conditions," the declarations of state of emergency,
lockdowns, and stay-at-home orders imposed in the respective countries in response to the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus infections had an impact on our business. Although each country has started to ease such
restrictions in a phased manner, in the event of the number of the novel coronavirus infections trending
upward again, those restrictions once lifted would be placed back on again, and if that happens, the impact we
will have on our business, i.e., our business performance and financial position would be enormous.

Competition for innovation and de facto industry standards
Panasonic must develop and provide new products and services in a timely manner. In Panasonic's core
businesses in both BtoC and BtoB areas, technological innovation is the central competitive factor. In cases
where Panasonic fails to read future market needs and predict with reasonable accuracy and develop new
technologies that will meet such needs, or technology developed or provided by Panasonic does not lead the
market and, instead, one developed by a competitor is recognized as the de facto standard, Panasonic may lose
its competitive position in new markets.

Competition in recruiting and retaining skilled employees
Panasonic's future success depends largely on its ability to attract and retain talented personnel in such fields
as research, development, technology, manufacturing, and management. However, the number of qualified
personnel in each field is limited and Japan's working population is on the decrease; therefore, competition for
such resources is intensifying. In this context, an attractive corporate culture must be developed and
continuously pursued. If Panasonic is not able to retain its existing personnel and attract additional qualified
staff, its business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Alliances with other companies and corporate takeovers

Panasonic has formed strategic alliances such as business partnerships or joint ventures with, made strategic
investments in, and also purchased other companies in order to introduce new products and services.
Furthermore, the importance of such strategic alliances as well as corporate takeovers is increasing. In the
strategic alliances, Panasonic may not be able to successfully collaborate or achieve expected synergies with
its alliance partners, or recover some or all of its respective investments. Furthermore, the alliance partners
may make decisions regarding their business undertakings for Panasonic that may be contrary to Panasonic's
interests. In addition, if such partners change their business strategies, then Panasonic may find it difficult to
maintain these collaborative relationships. With respect to corporate takeovers, Panasonic may have to incur
substantial expenses in relation to such takeovers, or may not be able to fully achieve expected results or may
have to incur unexpected losses in connection with business integration or restructuring after such takeovers.

Risks in the Result of Restructuring
Panasonic owns a large number of subsidiaries and associated companies, etc., and may carry out group-wide
restructuring (including transferring certain businesses or shares to other companies and restructuring
organizations or sites within the group) in order to enhance its business management efficiency and
competitive strengths. However, Panasonic may not be able to fully achieve the expected results from ongoing
or future restructuring projects.

Shortage of and price hikes for raw materials etc.
For Panasonic's manufacturing operations, the ability to obtain raw materials, parts and components,
equipment, services, etc. in a timely manner in required quantities is essential, and Panasonic uses reliable
suppliers. However, in the case of disasters, accidents, or supplier bankruptcies leading to temporary short
supply or depleted stock, or increased industry demand, Panasonic may have difficulties finding alternative or
additional suppliers or substitute parts. This may adversely affect Panasonic's business. In response to the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus infections, we expanded the scope of the survey in line with the spread of
the virus, and conducted a comprehensive survey into all of our customers and relevant matters that could be
affected by the infections, including secondary purchasers. Through these efforts, we have identified
potentially problematic customers and matters, and ensured to secure alternative suppliers and locations. As a
result, we have overcome those difficulties initially experienced in procuring parts and managed to return to
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near pre-coronavirus levels on the supply side. Although Panasonic and its suppliers agree on purchase prices
in contracts, the prices of raw materials, including iron and steel, resin and non-ferrous metals, and parts and
components may increase due to changes in supply and demand conditions or the inflow of investment funds.
Some types of raw materials and components are only available from a limited number of suppliers.
Panasonic's business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected in such cases.
Further, there may be a significant negative impact on Panasonic's production activities etc. due to these
factors.

Customers' financial means and conditions
Some of Panasonic's customers may purchase products and services from it on credit. If customers who have
substantial accounts payable with Panasonic encounter financial difficulties and are unable to make payments
on time, Panasonic's business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

(3) Risks Relating to the Result of Panasonic's Management Targets Achievements

Panasonic will promote specific measures to execute its mid-term strategy, starting in FY2020. While these
strategies are based on the information, analysis, and other factors that we deemed appropriate at that time
when the strategy was formulated, we may not be able to achieve expected results due to various factors, such
as the deterioration of the business conditions. In order to press ahead with the mid-term strategy, we will
make our best efforts to minimize the risk of failure to achieve these results by regularly monitoring the
progress to identify issues, and reviewing those identified issues in light of trends in the global economy as
well as business environment to come up with appropriate measures on a timely manner.

(4) Risks Related to Legal Regulations and Litigations

Direct or indirect costs resulting from product liability or warranty claims
If quality problems occur because of product defects (including safety incidents), Panasonic may be held
liable for damage (including indirect damage) arising from such defects but not fully covered by product
liability insurance and may have to incur significant expenses to handle such problems. Due to the occurrence
of these problems, Panasonic may experience the deterioration of its image or reputation or may not be able to
retain its customers. As a result, its business, operating results, and financial condition may be adversely
affected.

Damage related to intellectual properties rights

Panasonic may not be granted patents for its patent applications and adequate protection in the form of
intellectual property rights. In addition, intellectual property rights may be unavailable or limited in some
countries in which Panasonic operates. Third parties may also develop technologies that are protected by
intellectual property rights, and such technologies may be completely unavailable or available only on terms
unfavorable to Panasonic. Panasonic has licenses for patents and other intellectual property rights from third
parties. However, such licenses may be made unavailable or the license terms may be modified to Panasonic's
disadvantage. In addition, Panasonic may be exposed to litigation etc. regarding intellectual property rights, or
it may have to initiate litigation etc. in order to protect its intellectual property rights. In such cases, Panasonic
may have to incur significant expenses and spend large management resources. Furthermore, if allegations of
Panasonic's infringement of a third party's intellectual property rights are approved, Panasonic may be
prohibited from using certain important technologies or held liable for heavy damages.

Changes, etc. in accounting standards and tax systems
The introduction of new accounting standards or tax systems, or changes thereof, which are applicable to
Panasonic, may have adverse effects on its operating results and financial condition. In addition, if tax
authorities have different opinions from Panasonic on its tax declarations, Panasonic may have to make larger
tax payments than estimated.
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Environmental regulations or issues

Panasonic is subject to environmental laws and regulations such as those relating to climate changes, natural
resources, water, biodiversity, chemical substances, waste materials, product recycling, and soil, groundwater
and air contamination, and may be held liable for certain related payments or compensation. If these
regulations become stricter to provide for an additional duty to eliminate the use of environmentally
hazardous materials etc., or if Panasonic decides to add to its ecological efforts in response to greater attention
to corporate social responsibility, Panasonic's business, operating results, and financial condition may be
adversely affected by the payment of compensation for the violation of these laws and regulations or
investments in such efforts.

Information security risks

In the ordinary course of business, Panasonic may obtain information regarding customers' privacy and credit
standing (including their personal information) and receive confidential information regarding other
companies etc. In addition to information regarding customers and other companies etc., Panasonic also
handles its own trade secrets (including Panasonic's technical information). This information may be leaked
due to intentional acts such as unauthorized access to Panasonic's systems and cyberattacks or negligence.
Furthermore, an increasing number of Panasonic's products, services, and production facilities are connected
to the Internet, and Panasonic has been implementing security measures to protect them from external threats.
However, Panasonic may be exposed to unexpected intrusions via networks to, or unauthorized operations of
its products or services, which may lead to the leakage of personal information, the release of information to
outside parties, the suspension of services, or adverse effects on the processes. Such events may result in
Panasonic becoming liable to pay compensation to the damaged parties or result in significant expenses to
manage these issues or otherwise negatively impact Panasonic's business and image.

Disadvantages and legal liability under other legal regulations etc.

Panasonic operates pursuant to the regulations of Japan and all other countries and regions of the world,
including legal regulations regarding commercial transactions, antitrust rules, intellectual property rights,
product liability, environmental protection, consumer protection, labor relations, financial transactions,
internal control and business taxation, as well as government permission required for business operation and
investment, legal regulations regarding telecommunications businesses and the safety of electric products,
national security and import/export. If, due to the implementation of stricter legal regulations or the
introduction of stricter interpretations by governmental authorities, Panasonic finds it difficult to comply with
these legal regulations for technical or economic reasons and continues the relevant business, then such
business will have to be limited. Panasonic may also have to incur additional expenses in order to ensure its
compliance with these legal regulations etc. In addition, in the event that governmental authorities find or
determine that Panasonic has violated such legal regulations or its internal controls for compliance are
inadequate, Panasonic may be subject to regulatory sanctions, including monetary penalties, as well as
criminal sanctions or civil lawsuits for damages, and may also suffer reputational harm.

(5) Risks Relating to Disasters, Accidents, and Unpredictable Events

Panasonic conducts manufacturing, sales, research and development, and other activities globally and has
facilities all over the world. If an earthquake, tsunami, flooding or other natural disaster (including those
caused by climate changes), fire, explosion, war, terrorist attack, epidemic, or the like occurs, Panasonic's
employees, facilities, information systems, or other assets may be seriously injured or damaged and part of its
operation may be brought to a halt, resulting in delays in production and shipment and repair expenses for
damaged facilities etc. In addition, if such natural disasters or accidents or other unpredictable events occur in
Panasonic's supply chain, including parts suppliers and product purchasers, Panasonic's production and sales
activities etc. may be adversely affected by temporary short supply or depleted stock from suppliers or a
temporary stoppage or limited production at the product purchasers. Furthermore, we encourage our
employees as well as those involved in our business to work from home in order to limit the risk of the novel
coronavirus infections. For those employees engage in operations that require them to come to the respective
offices or factories, such as manufacturing and shipment related tasks, we are taking all possible measures to
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ensure their safety while commuting and to prevent our employees from contracting the novel coronavirus at
work. Still, it is possible that the spread of infections could occur in the workplace, forcing us to suspend our
production activities and other business operations. If it happens, it could impact the continuity of some of our
businesses.

(6) Risks related to the novel coronavirus infections

Panasonic has established the rules on corporate-wide emergency measures in preparation for events such as
natural disasters and epidemics/pandemics that could have a major impact on the continuation of our business
management. Following the WHO declaration of global health emergency in response to the novel
coronavirus outbreak, we set up the corporate-wide emergency headquarters based on these rules on Jan.31,
2020. Subsequently, our Divisional companies established their own emergency headquarters in order to deal
with the possible emergency situation in collaboration with the corporate-wide headquarters. We focus on the
important matters, especially, safety of our employees and business continuity and issue notifications on these
important matters corporate-wide. Each function at the emergency headquarters has been working on these
matters in order to ensure business continuity. As already mentioned in section of the individual risks, various
types of risks may affect our business.

(7) Other Risks

Panasonic's pension plan benefit obligations

Panasonic has an externally funded retirement pension plan for employees in Japan who meet certain
eligibility requirements. Panasonic Corporation and its domestic subsidiaries made a transition from the
defined benefit pension plan to the defined contribution pension plan for the accumulated funds (future
portions) on and after the respective dates of transition. A part of the accumulated funds (past portions) held
by Panasonic Corporation and the aforementioned domestic subsidiaries prior to the transition date was also
switched from the defined benefit pension plan to the defined contribution pension plan on July 1, 2019. As
for those portions that have not been transferred to the defined contribution pension plan, it may need to lower
the discount rates applicable to the liabilities associated with the defined benefit pension plan due to a decline
in interest rates, and may also lead to a decline in the fair value of plan assets due to a decline in stock prices.
As a result, the retirement benefits liabilities may increase and the equity attributable to the owners of the
parent company may decrease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Panasonic has many non-financial assets, such as PPE (Property, Plant, and Equipment), goodwill, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets. With regard to non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax
assets etc.), an assessment is made for any indications of impairment in each such asset or cash-generating
unit ("Asset"). If any such indication exists, then the recoverable value of the relevant Asset is estimated and
impairment tests are performed. For goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, impairment
tests are performed annually, regardless of whether or not there are indications of impairment. Depending on
the results of impairment tests, it may be necessary to reduce the carrying amount of the relevant asset to its
recoverable amount and recognize an impairment loss. The estimate of the recoverable amounts includes
certain assumptions about the impacts of the novel coronavirus infections, but there is no precedent that can
be used as a reference for accounting estimates, and there is significant uncertainty with respect to the overall
severity and duration of the spread of the novel coronavirus disease in the future, Accordingly, actual results
and outcomes in future reporting periods may differ materially from the Company estimates.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
With regard to deferred tax assets, Panasonic recognizes only those that are probable to be utilized against
Panasonic's future taxable income. Recognized deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each period. Any
reductions on account of the reduced probability of tax benefits being realized may result in greater corporate
income tax expenses to Panasonic. The estimate of future taxable income includes certain assumptions about
the impacts of the novel coronavirus infections, but there is no precedent that can be used as a reference for
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accounting estimates, and there is significant uncertainty with respect to the overall severity and duration of
the spread of the novel coronavirus disease in the future. Accordingly, actual results and outcomes in future
reporting periods may differ materially from the Company’s estimates

Operating results and financial conditions of companies under the equity method
Panasonic Corporation has stocks in several companies to which the equity method applies. Each such
company operates pursuant to its own business and financial policies. Panasonic Corporation has significant
influence, but not control, over their policy making processes; therefore, Panasonic usually does not make
policies for them. If these companies' business results and financial condition worsen, then Panasonic's
operating results and financial condition may be adversely affected.
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3. Management Analyses of Consolidated Financial Position, Operating Results and Cash Flows
(1) Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with IFRS. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant estimates and assumptions are reflected in valuation and disclosure of net realizable value of
inventories, measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, recoverability of deferred tax assets,
measurement of defined benefit obligation, measurement of provision, measurement of the transaction price for
revenue, impairment of non-financial assets (including goodwill) and measurement of financial instruments.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The details of critical accounting policies and estimates are stated in "V Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 3. Significant accounting policies." Accounting estimates includes certain assumptions regarding the
impact of the novel coronavirus infections, but there is no precedent that can be used as a reference for
accounting estimates, and there is significant uncertainty with respect to the extent to which the novel
coronavirus disease would spread in the future, and the duration of the pandemic. Accordingly, actual results
and outcomes in the future reporting periods may differ materially from the Company's estimates.

(2) Production, Orders Received and Sales

The Company’s production and range of sales items is extensive and diverse. Even for the same type of
products, their capacity, structure and format are not necessarily uniform. Due to the nature of the products, in
principle, the Company adopts a production system that operates mainly based on projection.

Since the Company is engaged in production activities in a way that the product inventories are kept at a certain
level, production results are generally similar to the sales performance.

(3) Analyses of Operating Results for Fiscal 2020, ended March 31, 2020

During the year ended March 31, 2020 (fiscal 2020) under review, the global economy saw a moderate growth
trend in the first half of the fiscal year, supported by spending in the U.S. and favorable employment conditions
in Japan. However, there were also many sudden economic downside factors such as the slump in spending and
investment in China, and the slowdown of imports and exports from/to various countries, with a background of
trade friction between the U.S. and China. Moreover, the period saw an increase in Japan’s consumption tax,
and the worldwide spread of the novel coronavirus infection toward the end of the fiscal year.

Under such a management environment, in fiscal 2020, as the first year of the new Mid-term strategy, the
Company executed the portfolio management and enhancement of management structure with three business
classifications of "Core growth business," "Co-creation business" and "Revitalization business." Specifically,
Panasonic prioritizes its resources in areas where market growth is expected as well as the Company has
advantages, particularly, in Core growth business in BtoB fields, and have been making efforts for future profit
growth.

In addition, toward enhancing competitiveness through collaboration and co-creation with external partners, in
housing business, the Company established a joint venture with Toyota Motor Corporation related to town
development business, Prime Life Technologies Corporation on January 7, 2020. This aim is to generate a
unique added value by integrating "housing" and "mobility." In automotive prismatic battery business, the
Company decided to establish a joint venture, Prime Planet Energy & Solutions, Inc. with Toyota Motor
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Corporation. The aim is to develop highly competitive batteries that have excellent quality, performance and
cost-effectiveness, and to provide a stable supply of batteries. The joint venture has been in operation since
April 1, 2020.

In terms of profitability improvement, the Company decided to transfer the semiconductor business, which
faces extreme fierce competitive environment, to Nuvoton Technology Corporation, under the umbrella of
Winbond Electronics Corporation in Taiwan. This transfer will enable to lead sustainable growth by utilizing
the Company’s accumulated technical and product capabilities. Furthermore, in LCD panel business, the
Company decided to end its production by 2021 due to the increasingly competitive global market

environment.

1) Sales
The Company’s consolidated group sales for fiscal 2020 decreased by 6% to 7,490.6 billion yen from a year
ago. Domestic sales decreased due to the deconsolidation of housing related businesses, in addition to the
impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus infection, despite sales increases in PCs and Infotainment
Systems such as IVI (Note). Overseas sales decreased due mainly to sluggish sales in TVs and Automotive
Solutions, the effect of exchange rates and the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus infection, despite
significant sales increases in Automotive Batteries.

In addition, the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections occurred in each segment mainly in
Appliances and Connected Solutions.

Note: IVI: In Vehicle Infotainment (automotive solutions that provide audible/visual support for safe
[essential driving information] and comfortable [entertainment] driving)

2) Operating Profit
Operating profit decreased by 29% to 293.8 billion yen from a year ago. This is due largely to the impact of
decreased sales by weak capital investment demand in China, as well as the impact of the spread of the novel
coronavirus infections, in addition to recording of restructuring expenses, despite fixed cost reductions
through enhancing management structure by reducing various indirect costs and others, and rationalization
efforts at the automotive cylindrical battery factory in North America, as well as gains from business transfers.

3) Profit before Income Taxes
Finance income increased from 25.6 billion yen the previous fiscal year to 31.4 billion yen. Finance expenses
increased from 20.6 billion yen to 34.1 billion yen. As a result, profit before income taxes was 291.1 billion
yen, compared to 416.5 billion yen the previous fiscal year.

4) Net Profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation Stockholders
Income taxes were 51.0 billion yen, compared to 113.7 billion yen a year ago. As a result, net profit
attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders totaled 225.7 billion yen, compared to 284.1 billion yen a
year ago. Also, net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders per share was 96.76 yen, against
121.83 yen the previous fiscal year.

5) Operating Results by Segment for Fiscal 2020
The Panasonic Group is divided into seven companies for business management, and they support the
autonomy of each business division and execute businesses in their respective areas on a global scale. The
results of their performance are classified, evaluated and disclosed in the five reporting segments of
"Appliances," "Life Solutions," "Connected Solutions," "Automotive," and "Industrial Solutions". In
accordance with the organizational change, for the comparison of net sales and operating profit, segment
information for fiscal 2019 has been reclassified to conform to the presentation for fiscal 2020,

- 23 -



a. Appliances
Sales decreased by 6% to 2,592.6 billion yen from a year ago, declining overall as a result of struggling sales
of TVs and digital cameras primarily in Europe, and the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus
infection, despite increased sales of room air-conditioners in Asia and large air-conditioners in Japan.

As a result of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections, in terms of demand, regions mainly in Europe
and Asia with restrictions on movement and others were affected. In terms of supply, appliances such as air-
conditioners and washing machines were mainly affected due to temporary suspension or lower utilization at
some of the domestic and overseas factories caused by supply chain disruption, supply shortage of parts and
components, and other factors in China.

Looking at the main Business Divisions (BDs), sales in the Heating & Cooling Solutions BD increased from
the previous fiscal year, due to robust sales of room air-conditioners in Asia (India), as well as large air-
conditioners in Japan.

In the Smart Life Network BD, sales decreased as price competition over TVs and digital cameras intensified
with other companies, particularly in Europe.

In the Kitchen Appliances BD, sales decreased as sales of microwave ovens decreased in Europe and North
America.

In the Laundry Systems and Vacuum Cleaner BD, sales decreased due to weaker sales in China and Asia,
while washing machine sales increased due to brisk sales in Japan.

Operating profit decreased 29.9 billion yen to 55.7 billion yen from a year ago as a result of the impact of the
spread of the novel coronavirus infection and the recording of restructuring expense, despite strong sales of
home appliances in Japan.

b. Life Solutions
Sales decreased by 6% to 1,912.5 billion yen from a year ago, declining overall because Panasonic Homes
Co., Ltd. and the construction solution business were removed from the scope of consolidation due to
business transfers to Prime Life Technologies Corporation (PLT), a joint venture with Toyota Motor
Corporation. Excluding that effect, sales increased as a result of the spread of the novel coronavirus infection
related sales reductions in all BDs at the end of the fiscal year being covered by the domestic and
international electric materials, housing, bicycles, and nursing care service, which had been solid earlier on.

As a result of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections, in terms of demand, businesses such as Lighting
and Panasonic Ecology Systems were affected due mainly to restrictions on movement in China. In terms of
supply, in Japan, Housing Systems was affected by sales opportunity loss resulting from shortage of parts
and components. In India, production and shipment have been affected due to restrictions on movement
implemented in late March.

Looking at the main BDs, sales in the Lighting BD dropped due to weaker sales of existing light sources
such as devices and fluorescent bulbs for the European and the U.S. markets, although lighting fixtures sales
remained unchanged in Japan from the previous fiscal year.

In the Energy Systems BD, housing distribution boards, wiring devices, etc. sold well in Japan and sales of
the electric materials business also increased in the India, South Asia, Middle East, and Africa (ISAMEA
region). However, overall BD sales decreased because weak sales of the solar cell business were too large to
be offset.

At Panasonic Ecology Systems Co., Ltd., sales remained unchanged from the previous fiscal year due to the
struggling TAQ (Indoor Air Quality) business, although large project orders and sales were strong in the
environmental engineering business.
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In the Housing Systems BD, sales increased due to brisk sales of products for water-related equipment and
building materials in Japan.

Operating profit increased 115.2 billion yen to 179.8 billion yen from a year ago, as a result of higher profit
from sales, rationalization measures, along with a gain from stock transfers etc. in the housing business when
PLT was established.

c. Connected Solutions
Sales decreased by 8% to 1,035.7 billion yen from a year ago, decreasing overall, which was mainly due to
weaker sales in the process automation business and avionics business and a sales decline across the segment
triggered by the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus infection and other factors, although
Panasonic System Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. saw an increase in its sales.

As a result of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections, in terms of demand, mounting machines,
projectors, professional AV equipment, and others were affected by decreased demand in China, in addition
to restrictions on movement and event cancellations in Europe and the Americas. In terms of supply, PCs,
tablets, projectors, professional AV equipment, and others were affected by lower production caused by parts
and components procurement issues from China.

Looking at the main BDs, Panasonic Avionics Corporation saw a decrease in sales due to the significant
impact of a reduction in aircraft production on the in-flight entertainment and communication systems
business.

In the Mobile Solutions BD, exceptional demand related to the discontinuation of Windows 7 (Note) support
boosted notebook PCs sales for the domestic market, but the considerable impact of the spread of the novel
coronavirus infection on supply chains led to a decrease in sales.

In the Process Automation BD, a sales decline triggered by the spread of the novel coronavirus infection, in
addition to a slowdown in capital investment following the U.S.-China trade dispute, led to a decrease in
sales.

In the Media Entertainment BD, sales dropped due to weaker sales of lamp-model projectors and
professional AV cameras.

Panasonic System Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. saw an increase in sales, supported by expanded sales of
solutions for the domestic market and by Tokyo 2020 Projects.

Operating profit decreased 2.2 billion yen to 92.2 billion yen from a year ago, mainly due to losses on lower
sales in the process automation business and the avionics business, a sales decline triggered by the spread of
the novel coronavirus infection, and other factors, despite accrued capital gains from the transfer of the
security systems business.

(Note) Windows is a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. registered in the U.S. and other
countries.

d. Automotive
Sales decreased by 3% to 1,482.4 billion yen from a year ago.

The automotive solution business saw a decline in sales as a result of the effects of a period of product cycle
transitions, a deteriorating Chinese auto market, as well as the impact of the spread of the novel coronavirus
infection, despite increased sales of growth products such as cockpit systems following growing needs for
informatized automobiles.
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The automotive batteries business saw a significant increase in overall sales, benefiting from increased sales
of prismatic lithium-ion batteries, which was driven by investments in increased production in response to
growing demand for electric automobiles, as well as increased production of cylindrical lithium-ion batteries
following boosted production by U.S. electric auto makers.

As aresult of the spread of the novel coronavirus infections, in terms of demand, regions such as Japan,
Europe, the Americas, China, and Asia were affected in light of customers temporarily suspending
operations at factories worldwide. In terms of supply, although limited, production and utilization were
affected due to restrictions on movement mainly in China and supply shortages of certain parts and
components.

The segment recorded an operating loss of 46.6 billion yen, 34.5 billion yen down from a year ago, mainly
because of increases in development expenses in the automotive solutions business for challenging
development projects centered on battery chargers ordered from Europe, as well as recognition of
impairment loss on goodwill at Spanish subsidiary Ficosa International S.A. due to market deterioration. In
addition, there were increases in fixed costs in the automotive batteries business for the production launch of
high-capacity cells for prismatic lithium-ion batteries at the Himeji Factory in Japan, despite increases in
sales and profit in the automotive batteries business.

e. Industrial Solutions
Sales decreased by 10% to 1,282.7 billion yen from a year ago, declining overall as the U.S.-China trade
dispute led to a deterioration of the Chinese market and deterred investments, and the impact of the spread of
the novel coronavirus infection, which offset steady growth in sales in key fields (Note 1) primarily of
"automotive CASE (Note 2)" and "information communication infrastructure."

In terms of demand, businesses such as motors, sensors, relays were affected by the novel coronavirus, in
addition to weak conditions in automotive and industrial markets. In terms of supply, there was an impact of
lower utilization at Panasonic factories in China, being unable to organize workforce at an earlier stage.

Looking at the main businesses, sales of the systems business decreased, because strong sales of automotive
batteries and power storage systems for data centers were offset by weak sales of FA censors, motors, and
relays, which were triggered by a slump in the Chinese market and the downsizing of the lithium-ion
batteries business for ICT (Information and Communication Technology).

In the devices business, sales decreased as steady sales of substrate materials for 5G infrastructure and
automotive coils were offset by weak sales of capacitors and other passive components due to a slump in the
Chinese market.

The semiconductors, LCD panels, and other businesses recorded lower sales, affected by market downturn.
Operating profit decreased 64.0 billion yen to 4.6 billion yen from a year ago, because efforts to reduce fixed
costs and promote the rationalization of materials fell short of offsetting weak sales and profit triggered by

the market downturn and the spread of the novel coronavirus infection, and an impairment loss was also
accrued when the transfer of the semiconductors business was decided.

Notes 1. Key fields: the fields of "CASE for automotive use," "information communication infrastructure,"
and "factory labor saving," which are continuously evolving
2. CASE: Connected, Autonomous, Shared & Services, and Electric

(4) Risks Materially Affecting Panasonic’s Business, Operating Results and Financial Conditions

Refer to "2. Risk Factors."
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(5) Financial Conditions and Liquidity

1) Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Panasonic Group has a basic policy of generating funds needed for business activities from internal
sources. Funds generated are efficiently utilized through intra-Group financing. Based on this, when funds are
needed for working capital or business investment, external financing is obtained through appropriate means
based on financial strength and financial market conditions.

(Cash)
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2020 were 1,016.5 billion yen, increased by 244.2 billion yen
compared with the end of the previous fiscal year.
During fiscal 2020, Panasonic issued unsecured USD-dominated straight bonds of USD 2.5 billion in July
2019, and unsecured straight bonds of 100.0 billion yen in March 2020, in order to raise funds for bond
redemptions and securing funds necessary for future business operations. Panasonic mainly issued
commercial paper (CP) to secure working capital and others.

(Interest bearing debt)

Interest-bearing debt increased to 1,471.4 billion yen as of March 31, 2020 from 998.7 billion yen at the end
of the previous fiscal year. This is due to the issuance of U.S. dollar-denominated senior notes, unsecured
straight bonds and short-term bonds, in addition to an increase of lease liabilities by applying IFRS 16,
"Leases" from April 1, 2019, despite the repayments of straight bonds and other factors. Panasonic has been
entered into three-year commitment line agreements (Note) with several banks in June 2018, in order to
prepare for contingencies such as potential deterioration of the financial and economic environment. The
upper limit for unsecured borrowing based on the agreements is a total of 700.0 billion yen, but there is no
borrowing under these agreements.

Note: Commitment line agreements: Contracts made with financial institutions to secure financing subject to
pre-agreed limits on the time period and commitment line

(Ratings)
The Company has obtained credit ratings from Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I), S& P Global
Ratings Japan Inc. (S&P), and Moody’s Japan K.K. (Moody’s). The Company’s credit ratings as of March
31, 2020 are as follows.

R&I: A (Long-term, Outlook: Stable), a-1 (Short-term)
S&P: A- (Long-term, Outlook: Negative), A-2 (Short-term)
Moody’s: Baal (Long-term, Outlook: Negative)

2) Cash Flows
The Company recognizes the importance of increasing free cash flow by strengthening business profitability
and developing businesses over the mid- to long-term. The Company also works simultaneously to create cash
flows through continuous reductions of working capital, revisions of asset holdings and other measures.

Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2020 was 430.3 billion yen and net cash used in investing
activities was 206.1 billion yen. Free cash flow, the total of the two, was an inflow of 224.2 billion yen. The
free cash flow for fiscal 2020 improved by 213.9 billion yen from the previous year. This was due mainly to
improved working capital, capital investment controls and gains from business transfers, in spite of the
decreased collection of lease receivables from a year ago.

A detailed analysis of cash flows is as follows.
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(Cash flows from operating activities)
Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended March 31, 2020 amounted to 430.3 billion yen,
compared with an inflow of 203.7 billion yen a year ago. This is due mainly to improved working capital and
impact of applying IFRS 16, "Leases" from April 1, 2019.

(Cash flows from investing activities)
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 206.1 billion yen, compared with an outflow of 193.4
billion yen a year ago. This is due mainly to decreased collection of lease receivables from a year ago,
despite capital investment controls and gains from business transfers.

(Cash flows from financing activities)
Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to 48.2 billion yen, compared with an outflow of 341.8
billion yen a year ago. This is due mainly to an increased balance in short-term bonds as well as the issuance
of U.S. dollar-denominated senior notes totaling approximately 270.0 billion yen and unsecured straight
bonds in Japan in the aggregate principal amount of 100.0 billion yen, despite of the impact of applying
IFRS 16 and a reimbursement of bonds.

Taking factors such as exchange fluctuations into consideration, cash and cash equivalents totaled 1,016.5
billion yen as of March 31, 2020, increased by 244.2 billion yen, compared with a year ago.

3) Capital Investment and Depreciations
The Panasonic Group makes capital investment based on a policy of steady investments primarily in key
businesses for future growth. Capital investment in fiscal 2020 (tangible assets only) decreased 31.6 billion
yen to 268.9 billion yen from 300.5 billion yen a year ago. The main capital investments have been made in
production facilities in Japan and China for lithium-ion batteries for automotive use and in production
facilities for electronic components, etc. in the Industrial Solutions segment.

Depreciation (tangible assets only) decreased 21.8 billion yen to 205.0 billion yen from 226.8 billion yen a
year ago.

4) Assets, Liabilities and Equity
The Company’s consolidated total assets as of March 31, 2020 were 6,218.5 billion yen, an increase of 204.6
billion yen from March 31, 2019.

The Company’s consolidated total liabilities were 4,062.7 billion yen, an increase of 133.3 billion yen from
March 31, 2019. These are due mainly to an increase of right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities by applying
IFRS 16, in addition to an increase in cash and cash equivalents and long-term debt by issuing straight bonds,
despite the impact of the deconsolidation of housing related businesses.

Panasonic Corporation stockholders’ equity increased by 84.8 billion yen to 1,998.3 billion yen, compared to
March 31, 2019. This was due mainly to recording of Net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation

stockholders.

As a result, the ratio of Panasonic Corporation stockholders’ equity was 32.1%, increasing from 31.8% on
March 31, 2019.

With non-controlling interests added to Panasonic Corporation stockholders’ equity, total equity was 2,155.9
billion yen.

- 28 -



4. Material Agreements, etc.

(1) As Licensee
Licensor Country Contract description Contract period
License of patents relating to 3G From March 2001 to the
QUALCOMM INC.  |US.A. nseotp & expiration of the patents
mobile phone and base station
under contracts
(2) As Licensor
Licensee Country Contract description Contract period
License of patents relating to From January 2000 to the
MPEG LA LLC. U.S.A. MPEG-4 VIi)sual £ expiration of the patents
under contracts
(3) Cross License Agreement
Party Country Contract description Contract period
S . . . F March 2007 to th
Koninklijke Philips Netherlands Cross license of patents relating to eroril;atioagco fthe a?ent:
X
Electronics N.V. mobile phone and AV products P P

under contracts

(4) Conclusion of Business-integration Contract and Joint-venture Contract toward the Establishment of Joint

Venture Related to Town Development Business

The Company resolved at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 9, 2019, and concluded with Toyota
Motor Corporation ("Toyota"), a business-integration contract and a joint-venture contract toward the
establishment of a new joint venture ("joint venture") related to the town development business. The Main

points of the agreement are below.

1) The Company and Toyota will have the same ratio of equity participation in the joint venture. They
concluded a memorandum of understanding with Mitsui & Co., Ltd. ("Mitsui") for the creation of new
value related to the town development business, and are continuing discussions regarding the development

of the joint venture, including the possibility of Mitsui’s equity participation.

i1) The Company will transfer all of the shares owned by itself or indirectly through its subsidiaries in
Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd., Panasonic Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. ("Panasonic Engineering") and
Matsumura-gumi Corporation to the joint venture. With respect to Panasonic Engineering, such transfer
will take place after a Panasonic subsidiary succeeds to part of Panasonic Engineering’s business through
an absorption-type company split. Toyota will make Toyota Housing Corporation ("Toyota Housing") its
wholly-owned subsidiary, and thereafter transfer all of the shares in Toyota Housing to the joint venture.

The Company and Toyota will transfer the relevant shares to the joint venture by a joint share transfer.

ii1) From Toyota’s side, Toyota Housing will acquire approximately 49% of the shares in Misawa Homes
Co., Ltd. ("Misawa Homes") which are owned by Misawa Homes’ shareholders other than Toyota

Housing by conducting a so-called triangular share exchange.

iv) The joint venture will acquire the shares in Misawa Homes from Toyota Housing after the triangular
share exchange.

v) Outline of the joint venture
a) Corporate name: Prime Life Technologies Corporation
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b) Principal lines of business:
Town development, contracted new housing construction, home remodeling, real estate
transaction/management, housing interior decoration, energy-saving solutions, renovation, contracted
building construction, construction consulting, etc.

¢) Stated capital: 50 million yen (as of January 7, 2020)

d) Date of establishment: January 7, 2020
(subject to obtaining permissions and approvals from the relevant authorities in the relevant countries
required under competition laws and others)

In accordance with the above, the Company has established the joint venture on January 7, 2020.

(5) Agreement to Collaborate in the Photovoltaic Business

The Company resolved at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 9, 2019, to collaborate in the
photovoltaic business with GS-Solar (China) Company Ltd. ("GS-Solar"), a photovoltaic module
manufacturer based in China, and reached agreement with GS-Solar on the same day. The Company will
transfer its solar manufacturing subsidiary, Panasonic Energy Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (currently Sun Everywhere
Sdn. Bhd.) to GS-Solar, while separating its photovoltaic research and development function in order to
establish a new company with the Chinese partner. Panasonic and GS-Solar will jointly operate and invest in
this new company. (Equity ratio: 90% from GS-Solar, 10% from Panasonic.)

(6) Establishment of New Company to Operate Security Systems Business, Strategic Co-investment and
Company split
The Company resolved at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 31, 2019, and reached agreement on
the same day, to sign a share purchase agreement and shareholders agreement with Polaris Capital Group
Co., Ltd. regarding the transfer of its security systems business to a Special Purpose Company (SPC) which
will be established by Polaris. This transfer will take place by Panasonic establishing a new entity
("NewCo") and conducting an absorption-type company split (the "Company Split") with the intention to
transfer the shares to the SPC.

The main points of the Company Split are below.

1) Purpose of the Company Split
With Panasonic’s security systems business facing competitive environment changes, the Company will
transfer its security systems business to NewCo through an absorption-type company split, aiming to
realize a nimble and expedient solutions business, thereby growing the security systems business going
forward, with the leveraged strengths of Panasonic’s technological advantages and customer base, along
with Polaris’ investment resources and knowledge accumulated through their significant track-record of
establishing strategic capital alliances with various manufacturers and large enterprises.

i1) Summary of the Company Split
a) Schedule:
Resolution of the Board of Directors on the Company Split: July 31, 2019
Company Split (effective date): October 1, 2019

b) Method:
The Company-split will be an absorption-type company split in which Panasonic will be the splitting

company and NewCo will be the succeeding company (simplified absorption-type company split).

¢) Allotment of shares:
There shall be no allotment of consideration by the NewCo upon the Company Split.
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d) Assets and liabilities of the business succeeded:
Total assets: 11.4 billion yen / Total liabilities: 5.0 billion yen (as of September 30, 2019)

e) Outline of succeeding company through the absorption-type company split (date of establishment: July 1,
2019)
Corporate name of NewCo: Panasonic i-PRO Sensing Solutions Co., Ltd.
Stated capital: 1.5 million yen
Principal lines of business: Development, manufacture, sales, SI, installation and maintenance of
equipment, as well as providing solutions including services, for the security
and medical sectors

In accordance with the above, the Company has conducted the company split on October 1, 2019, and
subsequently, in November, transferred the shares of the NewCo to the SPC.

(7) Transfer Agreement of Semiconductor Business

The Company resolved at the Board of Directors meeting held on November 28, 2019, and reached
agreement on the same day, that it will transfer ("the Transfer") the semiconductor business mainly operated
by Panasonic Semiconductor Solutions Co., Ltd. ("PSCS"), which is a 100% consolidated subsidiary
company of Panasonic Equity Management Japan G.K. ("PEMI"), a 100% consolidated subsidiary company
of the Company, to Nuvoton Technology Corporation ("Nuvoton"), a Taiwan-based semiconductor company
under the umbrella of Winbond Electronics Corporation group, and enter into the Stock and Asset Transfer
Agreement (the "Agreement") with this company. Main points of the agreement are below.

1) Business restructuring before the Transfer: Just prior to the transfer, the Company will restructure the
semiconductor business as follows.

* All shares of Panasonic Industrial Devices Systems and Technology Co., Ltd. and Panasonic Industrial
Devices Engineering Co., Ltd., which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of PEMJ, will be handed over to
PSCS by way of company split.

* The semiconductor business-related intellectual property rights and certain business contracts held by the
Company and/or the Company’s subsidiaries and the semiconductor business-related assets and debt of
the Company will be handed over to PSCS by way of either company split or asset transfer.

+ All PSCS’s shares held by PEMJ will be handed over to a to-be-established, wholly-owned subsidiary of
PEMIJ ("PSCS Holding Company") by way of share transfer.

* The semiconductor related components (lead frame) business of PSCS will be handed over to a to-be-
established, wholly-owned subsidiary of PEMIJ by way of company split.

ii) Details of the transfer:

Upon completion of the business restructuring above, the Transfer will be carried out as per the details

below.

* PEMJ will transfer all PSCS Holding Company’s shares to Nuvoton.

* The business of Panasonic Industrial Devices Semiconductor Asia (an in-house company in charge of
development and sales of semiconductors) under Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. (a Singaporean entity
owned by the Company through its subsidiary) will be handed over to Singapore-based entity owned by
Nuvoton.

* Certain facilities and inventories attributable to the semiconductor business of Panasonic Semiconductor
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. will be transferred to China-based entity owned by Nuvoton.

The Agreement is based on the precondition of obtaining approvals from the authorities responsible for
competition laws and other government agencies of the respective country and region, and the Transfer is
scheduled to be carried out in September 2020. The planned date of the Transfer may differ in light of the
duration required for completing the procedures for obtaining approval and other procedures concerning
permissions, etc.
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5. Research and Development

The Panasonic Group concentrated on development of new technologies and new products to underpin the
future based on the growth strategies for the major business fields. In addition, the Group developed
technologies such as [oT (Note 1), artificial intelligence (Al), and big data, such that underpin achievement of
success in the Lifestyle Updates business (Note 2), and also actively worked to create new businesses that make
use of such technologies.

R&D expenditures totaled 475.0 billion yen in fiscal 2020.
Key development themes and achievement during fiscal 2020 were as follows:

(1) Enhancing structures for software-centric business model transformation and product development

The Panasonic Group had Yoko Matsuoka, former Google Vice President and Nest CTO, come on board as a
Fellow. She brings top level technical expertise of a global level and experience creating unconventional
products and services. Working with her, the Group enhanced its structures for software-centric business
model transformation and for developing new products and services from a user-first perspective, in Silicon
Valley, U.S.

The Group will leverage Ms. Matsuoka’s knowledge and expertise and co-creation activities among
Divisional Companies and Business Divisions to accelerate "Lifestyle Updates" beyond the existing
frameworks of businesses and organizations.

(2) Developing high-speed power-line communication technology "IoT PLC" that is embeddable in consumer
electronics and home devices

Under the demonstration scheme for new technologies (Regulatory Sandbox Scheme) approved by the
Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (METI), Panasonic conducted demonstration experiments for
embedding its proprietary IoT PLC into home devices. Based on the results, the Electrical Appliances and
Materials Safety Act was revised, which allows product development of IoT PLC-embedded consumer
electronics and home devices. This technology was also certified by the international standard, IEEE 1901a.
The Panasonic Group will further roll out IoT PLC as a fundamental technology for future [oT, which can be
used even in underground facilities or building spaces and houses with a lot of shields where radio waves are
hard to reach.

(3) Launching self-driving vehicle ride-share service for employees at head office premises (Kadoma, Osaka)
The Panasonic Group started a full-scale self-driving vehicle ride-share service for employees at head office
premises. It integrates two of its proprietary technologies—deep learning-applied high-precision human
recognition technology and low delay wireless communication-applied remote monitoring & control
technology—into a system. Concurrent operation of multiple human-friendly self-driving vehicles in an actual
environment where people are crossing makes the self-driving vehicle service more accessible.

In the future, the Group will further advance these mobility services and accelerate its efforts towards
launching the services in towns and communities.

(4) Providing management support for "smoother" and more "pleasurable" sporting events with high-tech
image analysis technology

In response to growing interest in sports, the Panasonic Group has developed various event management
solutions, which advance and apply image analysis technology it has cultivated in the consumer electronics
business.

For ticketless entry and exit, the Group has developed a deep learning-applied facial recognition solution,
which contributes not only to efficient entry and exit, but also to safe and secure event management.

In a volleyball game, one solution tracks the position of the ball in real time over three dimensions,
automatically calculates its trajectory, speed, height, and angle, and quantifies player-by-player and overall
team performance. In an archery competition, another solution measures the participants’ heartbeats from an
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image, without physical contact, and visualizes how tense players can get when competing seriously. The
Group will continue to use the image analysis technology and promote it for various applications.

Notes 1. IoT: Internet of Things refers to the connection of many things and devices to the Internet
2. Lifestyle Updates: This refers to the direction Panasonic is headed in terms of taking a customer-
oriented approach to increasingly achieving ideal solutions for individuals with respect to lifestyles

and society, encompassing software and services
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IT Property, Plants and Equipment

1. Summary of Capital Investment

Capital investment for the year ended March 31, 2020 is shown in the table below.

Amount Change from last . .
Segment . Main purpose of investment
(Billions of yen) | fiscal year (%)

Production of new products and streamlining of

Appliances 42.8 -5.6 | electric appliances for home use and video and
AV equipment

Life Solutions 18.9 73 Product'ion of n'ew produ.cts. and stre?mlining of
electronic material and building material, etc.

Connected Solutions 19.0 16.0 Productio.n of ne.w products and §treamlining of
B2B solution business related equipment, etc.
Increase in production capacity of rechargeable
batteries, and production of new products and an

Automotive 103.5 -4.8 | increase in production capacity of automotive-
and automotive infotainment-related equipment,
etc.
Production of new products and an increase in

Industrial Solutions 54.1 -14.7 | production capacity of electronic components,
etc.

Reportabl t

eportable segmen 2583 85 _
total

Other & Corporate 10.6 429 Capital investment by head office and regional

headquarter, etc.
Total 268.9 -10.5 -

(Notes)

1. Panasonic restructured its Group organization on April 1, 2019. In calculating the percentage of change from

the last fiscal year, the prior year's figure has been revised to conform to the presentation for fiscal 2020.
2. "Other & Corporate" includes capital investments, recorded in the "Other" and "Corporate" which are not
included in reportable segments, as shown above.

3. Amount shows investment in "Property, plant and equipment."
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2. Major Property, Plants and Equipment

(1) Panasonic Corporation

(As of March 31, 2020)
Book value (Millions of yen)
F acil%ty Segment Details of ma:ior facilities Machinery :a“d. . Number of
(Location) and equipment Buildings and (Area in case Others Total employees
. . thousands of assets
equipment i
Manufacturing facilities 5.941
Kusatsu Plant Appliances for air conditionersand | 16,396 | 9,034 724 679 | 32774 | 43846
(Kusatsu-shi, Shiga) R (564)
refrigerators, etc.
Manufacturing facilities 1,323
Hikone Plant . for personal-care
(Hikone-shi, Shiga) Appliances equipment and 4,017 3,088 (89) 75 93 8,596 891
healthcare equipment [5]
Manufacturing facilities
Kobe Plant Appliances, for cooking appliances 4,924
(Nishi-ku, Kobe-shi) | Connected Solutions | and information 2,168 2,352 (185) 45 70 9,559 628
equipment
Nara Plant . . 218
(Yamatokoriyama-shi, | Appliances Manufacturing facilities | = 5511 5 553 112 893 | 5797 373
for meter devices (128)
Nara)
Niigata Plant Manufacturing facilities 2,035
s Life Solutions s 1,743 2,892 3 12 6,685 490
(Tsubame-shi, Niigata) for lighting fixture (143)
Tsu Plant Life Solutions Manufacturing facilities 2,088
(Tsu-shi, Mie) Industrial Solutions for W‘mng dc?vlces and 3,330 2,725 o1 — 150 8,293 1,605
security equipment 9]
i i 1,495
Ritto Plant Life Solutions Manufacturing 1,146 | 1611 - 183 | 4435 184
(Ritto-shi, Shiga) facilities for rain gutters (59)
. e 77
Kadoma Plant Appliances Manufacturing facilities
(Kadoma-shi, Osaka) | Connected Solutions for Yldeo and audio 3314 3913 (215) 196 4,437 11,937 6,279
equipment
[147]
Saedo Plant . Manufacturing facilities 12.530
(Tsuzuki-ku, ii?:;?;‘j:"l““ms’ for car equipment, other | 7,483 | 8,020 207 410 | 28650 | 3,284
Yokohama-shi) facilities (122)
Yamagata 'Plant Appliances Manufacturing facilities 736 3.579 710 4 5.801 538
(Tendo-shi, Yamagata) for lens (85)
Ise Plant . . Manufacturing facilities 555
. . Industrial Solutions . 2,916 3,075 - 1,066 7,612 1,250
(Watarai-gun, Mie) for automation controls (152)
78
Tsuyama Plant . . s
(Tsuyama-shi, Automotive, Manufacturing facilities | ) 5| 5 ) (56) 14 858 | 4838 636
Industrial Solutions for input devices
Okayama)
[8]
Uji Plant . . Manufacturing facilities 359
. Industrial Solutions R 2,327 5,148 37 718 8,589 698
(Uji-shi, Kyoto) for capacitors (48)
Yamaguchi Plant . s 519
(Yamaguchi-shi, Industrial Solutions | Manufacturing facilities 553 | 3246 4 474 | 479 334
. for capacitors (48)
Yamaguchi)
Hokkaido Plant Manufacturing facilities 117
(Chitose-shi, Industrial Solutions for thermal management 1,431 2,932 — 80 4,560 321
Hokkaido) solutions devices (100)
93
Osaka Plant . . Manufacturing facilities _
(Moriguchi-shi, Osaka) Industrial Solutions for batterics 3,555 1,728 (65) 199 5,575 1,268
[3]
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Book value (Millions of yen)

Facil%ty Segment Details of maior facilities Machinery :anq ) Number of
(Location) and equipment Buildings and (Area in ease Others Total employees
i thousands of assets
equipment R
m)
Suminoe Plant Manufacturing facilities -
(Suminoe-ku, Osaka- | Automotive . & 9,877 913 (116) 150 39 10,979 898
shi) for batteries
[116]
Yokkaichi Plant =~ 1 1 irial Solutions | Manufacturing facilities | =5 03 15 5 - 212 | 10,596 288
(Yokkaichi-shi, Mie) for electronic materials (209)
Koriyama Plant . s 1,284
(Koriyama-shi, Industrial Solutions | Manufacturing facilities | =, 5501 5 g0, - 685 | 7342 668
. for electronic materials (159)
Fukushima)
Fukuoka Office . 7,758
Appliances, s
(Hakata-ku, Fukuoka- . Other facilities 423 355 (54) — 26 8,562 1,388
shi) Connected Solutions
[4]
Technology Innovation
ivisi 197
Division Head Office | (o ate, etc. R&D facilities 2541 | 1208 147 —| 409 832
Area (3 8)
(Moriguchi-shi, Osaka)
Technology Innovation
. . 3,706
Division Kethanna | 0 rate, ete. R&D facilities 1,976 111 - —| 5793 38
Area (53)
(Soraku-gun, Kyoto)
Manufacturing
; ivisi 708
Innovation Division, | o orate, ete. R&D facilities 3219|1770 19 53| 5769 | 1135
etc. (87)
(Kadoma-shi, Osaka)
Branch Office and Appliances, Life 3,126
Sales Office Solutions, Connected | Equipment for sales and
(Minato-ku, Tokyo, Solutions, Automotive,| marketing 6,455 721 @1 6 4 10,312 3,389
etc.) Industrial Solutions [55]
Management
department of Life 25216
Solutions Company Life Solutions Other facilities 25,860 3,483 (522) — 153 54,712 1,845
(Moriguchi-shi, Osaka, 65]
etc.)
Management
department of
; ; 907
Industrial Solutions | 1 4 \cirial Solutions | Other facilities 2256 | 1316 61 9| 4s49| 4974
Company, etc. (78)
(Kadoma-shi, Osaka,
etc.)
Head Office, etc. Head office, employee 7,430
(Kadoma-shi, Osaka, | Corporate, etc. housing and welfare 13,943 6,082 (421) 161 92 27,728 3,857
etc.) facilities, etc. [16]
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(2) Domestic subsidiaries

(As of March 31, 2020)
Book value (Millions of yen)
o Details of major Land
. Number of
Company Facﬂ{ty Segment facilities and Machinery ) umbero
(Location) R S (Area in employees
equipment Buildings and i ds of Others Total
equipment ousa:1 50
m)
Manufacturing
Tokyo plant e
. facilities for 1,865 3
((i(;ra;—gun, Gunma, | Appliances industrial equipment, 9,902 1,670 (885) 292 13,729 <1.020>
) etc.
. Manufacturing
. Tokushima plant . o
SANYO Electric (Matsushige-cho, Autom(.mve, ) facilities for 6217 3.392 1,770 425 11,804 519
Co., Ltd. . Industrial Solutions | rechargeable (177)
Tokushima) .
batteries
Suminoe plant ?:jﬁ;if:?g;ng
(Suminoe-ku, Automotive 123 8,266 — 1,032 9,421 612
. rechargeable
Osaka-shi,) .
batteries
Manufacturing
facilities for
Panasonic Ecology | (Kasugai-shi, . . . 3,764
Systems Co., Ltd Aichi) Life Solutions equipment relates to 3,803 1,976 (197) 311 9,854 996
ecology system
business
Manufacture _
KMEW Co, Lid, | (Chuo-ku Osaka= ) ter o tions facilities of exterior | goe | 16204 | (201 4736 | 22768 | 1,710
shi) building and housing
[291]
related products
Panasonic Liquid o Manufacturing —
Crystal Display gh:l?)”h" Industrial Solutions | facilities for LCD 36,365 817 (361) 122 37304 <;‘;i>
Co., Ltd. yog panels, etc. [361]
Manufacturing
Panasonic System facilities for 1,899
Solutions Japan | (Hakataku, Connected information 4,996 1,168 | (185) 8721 | 16784 | 310
Fukuoka-shi, etc.) | Solutions . <3,187>
Co., Ltd. communication [50]
equipment, etc.
Panasonic Smart . Manufacturing
. (Kadoma-shi, Connected . 739
Factory Solutions Osaka, etc.) Solutions facilities for 3,871 4,484 (108) 393 9,487 1,390

Co., Ltd.

mounter, etc.
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(3) Overseas subsidiaries

(As of March 31, 2020)

Book value (Millions of yen)
. . s ] Land Number of
(]iomp?lny Segment Details gf major facilities Machinery in umber o
(Location) and equipment Buildings and ) Others Total employees
. thousands of
equipment .
m)
. . App 11-ances, Life Manufacturing and sales
Panasonic Corporation of Solutions, Connected facilitics for 2045
North America Solutions, Automotive, R . 5,758 10,727 ’ 27,973 46,503 14,615
. . various electric and (160)
(New Jersey, U.S.A.) Industrial Solutions, N
electronic products
Other, Corporate
Panasonic Avionics Manufacturing facilities _
Corporation Connected Solutions for aircraft-in-flight 2,588 10,944 @ 13,395 26,927 4,286
(California, U.S.A.) entertainment systems
Manufacture facilities of
Hussmann Corporation . commercial-use 1,431
. R Appl . 4,263 4,037 ’ 4,570 14,301 6,372
(Missouri, U.S.A.) pphiances refrigerated and freezer (624)
showcases
Panasonic do Brasil Appliances, Automotive, ?:jﬁ;if:?;;mg and sales 230
Limitada Industrial Solutions, . . 1,667 3,194 833 5,924 2,316
. various electric and (540)
(Amazonas, Brazil) Other X
electronic products
Ficosa International S.A Manufacture facilities of 4,491
K o Automotive automotive components 7,165 12,419 (1,060) 8,621 32,696 8,602
(Barcelona, Spain) L
such as electric mirrors [26]
App 11'ances, Life Manufacturing and sales
Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte Solutions, Connected facilities for 55
. " | Solutions, Industrial . . 101 8,160 1,701 10,017 2,185
Ltd. (Singapore) . various electric and (209)
Solutions, Other, .
electronic products
Corporate
Panasonic Wanbao -
Appliances Compressor Appliances Manufacturing facilities 1,241 6,350 (131) 181 7,772 2,348
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. of compressor [131]

(Notes)

1. The above amounts do not include the consumption tax, etc.

2. Some plants or offices are rented to affiliated companies. Regarding rented plants and offices to affiliated
companies, the number of employees of the company, which rents the related plants or offices, are shown
with parenthesis notation of <> in the "Number of employees" column.

3. Parenthesis notation of [ ] in the "Land" column shows the size of land rented from a party other than
consolidated companies.

4. In addition to the above, the Company accounted for some machinery, etc. as finance leases as a lessor.

5. The Company applies IFRS 16, "Leases" from April 1, 2019. The Company includes the book value of right-
of-use asset in "Others" except "(1) Panasonic Corporation' from fiscal 2020.
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3. Plans for Capital Investment, Disposals of Property, Plants and Equipment, etc.

Plans for capital investment, disposals of property, plants and equipment, etc. for the year ending March 31,
2021 are still undecided due to a great uncertainty caused by the impact of the further spread of the novel
coronavirus infections. Accordingly, the plans will be disclosed once it is decided.

There is not any plan of other material disposals or sales of principal facilities, with the exception of disposing
and selling facilities due to routine upgrading.
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IV Information on the Company

1. Information on the Company's Stock, etc.

(1) Total number of shares, etc.

1) Total number of shares

Total number of shares authorized to be issued
Class
(shares)
Common stock 4,950,000,000
Total 4,950,000,000

2) Issued shares

Class

Number of shares issued

as of the end of fiscal year
(shares)

(March 31, 2020)

Number of shares issued
as of the filling date
(shares)

(June 26, 2020)

Stock exchange on which
the Company is listed

Description

Common
stock

2,453,326,997

2,453,326,997

Tokyo stock exchange
(the first section)
Nagoya stock exchange
(the first section)

The number of
shares per one
unit of shares is
100 shares.

Total

2,453,326,997

2,453,326,997

- 40 -




(2) Information on the stock acquisition rights, etc.

1) Details of stock option plans

Resolution date of the Board of Directors

July 31,2014

July 29, 2015

Category and number of persons granted

Directors of the Company
(excluding Outside
Directors) : 13

Executive Officers and
certain other officers
(excluding Directors who
concurrently serve as
Executive officers) :14

Directors of the Company
(excluding Outside
Directors) : 13

Executive Officers and
certain other officers
(excluding Directors who
concurrently serve as
Executive officers) : 17

Number of stock acquisition rights
Note 6

1,264

1,188

Class, details and number of shares to be
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights

Common stock of Panasonic
126,400 shares

Common stock of Panasonic
118,800 shares

of the stock acquisition rights and the amount
capitalized as common stock

Amount capitalized as
common stock
Note 3

Note 6 Note 1 Note 1
Subscriptic?n' gmount to be paid upon exercise of One (1) yen One (1) yen
stock acquisition
. . C From August 23, 2014 From August 21, 2015
E d of stock t ht
xercise period of stock acquisition rights fo August 22,2044 to August 20,2045
Issue price : 1,055 yen Issue price : 1,125 yen
Issue price for shares issued through the exercise Note 2 Note 2

Amount capitalized as
common stock
Note 3

Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition
rights

Note 4

Matters regarding transfer of stock acquisition
rights

The stock acquisition rights cannot be acquired through
transfer, unless such acquisition is expressly approved by
a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Matters regarding grant of stock acquisition

rights accompanying reorganization

Note 5

(Notes)

1. The number of shares to be acquired upon exercise of each stock acquisition right (the "Number of Shares
Acquired") shall be 100 shares (1 unit:100 shares); provided, however, that in the case that Panasonic
conducts a share split (including an allotment without consideration (musho-wariate) of shares of common
stock of Panasonic; the same shall apply to all references to the share split herein) or share consolidation on
and after the date on which the stock acquisition rights shall be allotted, the Number of Shares Acquired
shall be adjusted in accordance with the following formula, rounding down any fraction of less than one (1)
share resulting from such adjustment.

Number of Shares Acquired after adjustment = Number of Shares Acquired before adjustment

x Ratio of share split or share consolidation
The Number of Shares Acquired after adjustment shall become effective, in the case of a share split, on and
after the day immediately following the record date of the relevant share split (if the record date is not set
forth, on and after its effective date) or, in the case of a share consolidation, on and after its effective date;
provided, however, that, in the event that a share split is conducted on the condition that a proposal to
increase the capital or reserves by reducing the amount of surplus is approved at a general meeting of
shareholders and that the record date for such share split is prior to the date of closing of such general
meeting of shareholders, the Number of Shares Acquired after adjustment shall be applicable retroactively
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from the day immediately following the relevant record date, on and after the day immediately following the
date of closing of the relevant general meeting of shareholders.

In addition to the above, in any event that makes it necessary to adjust the Number of Shares Acquired,
including a merger and company split, Panasonic may make appropriate adjustment to the Number of Shares
Acquired within a reasonable range.

When the Number of Shares Acquired is adjusted, Panasonic shall give notice of necessary matters to each
holder of the stock acquisition rights registered in the register of stock acquisition rights (the "Holder") or
give public notice thereof, no later than the day immediately preceding the date on which the Number of
Shares Acquired after adjustment shall become effective; provided, however, that, if Panasonic is unable to
give such notice or public notice no later than the day immediately preceding such applicable date,
Panasonic shall thereafter promptly give such notice or public notice.

2. Issue price is the total of the fair value of the stock acquisition rights in allotment date and the subscription
amount to be paid upon exercise of stock acquisition (one (1) yen per share).

3. The amount of capital to be increased due to the issuance of shares upon exercise of the stock acquisition
rights shall be a half of the maximum amount of capital Increase, etc. which is calculated in accordance with
Article 17, Paragraph 1 of the Ordinance on Company Accounting, and any fraction less than one (1) yen
arising therefrom shall be rounded up to the nearest one (1) yen.

4.(1) During the period when the stock acquisition rights may be exercised, the Holder may exercise the stock
acquisition rights on and after the day immediately following the date on which such Holder loses the
status of Director, Executive Officer, Audit & Supervisory Board Member or any status equivalent
thereto, of Panasonic.

(ii) Notwithstanding (i) above, the Holder may exercise the stock acquisition rights within the respective
periods prescribed below if either (a) or (b) below occurs (provided that the case mentioned in (b) below
excludes where the allotment of stock acquisition rights by the reorganized company to the Holder in
accordance with "Matters regarding grant of stock acquisition rights accompanying reorganization" above
is stipulated in a merger agreement, a share exchange agreement, or a share transfer plan):

(a) If the Status Losing Date does not occur on or before the date that is one year prior to the expiration
date of "Exercise period of stock acquisition rights":

From the next day of the date that is one year prior to the expiration date of "Exercise period of stock
acquisition rights" to expiration date of "Exercise period of stock acquisition rights"

(b) If proposal for approval of a merger agreement under which Panasonic shall become a dissolving
company or proposal for approval of a share exchange agreement or share transfer plan under which
Panasonic shall become a wholly-owned subsidiary is approved at a general meeting of shareholders
(or, if a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders is not required, is approved by a resolution of
the Board of Directors):

During a 15 day-period commencing from the day immediately following the date (inclusive) when
the proposal is approved.

(ii1) (i) and (i1) (a) above shall not be applicable to those who have succeeded to the stock acquisition rights by
inheritance.

(iv) If the Holder waives the stock acquisition rights, the relevant stock acquisition rights may not be
exercised thereafter.

5. If Panasonic conducts a merger (limited to the case where Panasonic is dissolved due to the merger), an
absorption-type or incorporation-type company split (both, limited to the case where Panasonic is split), or a
share exchange or transfer (both, limited to the case where Panasonic becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary)
(collectively, the "Structural Reorganization"), Panasonic shall, in each of the above cases, allot stock
acquisition rights of any of the relevant companies listed in "a" through "e" of Article 236, Paragraph 1, Item
8 of the Companies Act (the "Reorganized Company") to the Holders holding the stock acquisition rights
remaining at the time immediately preceding the effective date of the relevant Structural Reorganization (the
"Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights") (the effective date of the relevant Structural Reorganization shall
mean, in the case of a merger, the date on which the merger becomes effective; in the case of a consolidation,
the date of establishment of a newly-incorporated company through consolidation; in the case of an
absorption-type company split, the date on which such absorption type company split becomes effective; in
the case of an incorporation-type company split, the date of establishment of a newly-incorporated company
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through such incorporation-type company split; in the case of a share exchange, the date on which the share
exchange becomes effective; and in the case of a share transfer, the date of establishment of a wholly-owning
parent company through the share transfer; hereinafter the same shall apply). In this case, the Remaining
Stock Acquisition Rights shall be extinguished and the Reorganized Company shall issue new stock
acquisition rights; provided, however, that the foregoing shall be on the condition that transfer of such stock
acquisition rights by the Reorganized Company in accordance with each of the following items is stipulated
in a merger agreement, a consolidation agreement, an absorption-type company split agreement, an
incorporation-type company split plan, a share exchange agreement or a share transfer plan.

(i) Number of stock acquisition rights of the Reorganized Company to be allotted:

A number equal to the number of the Remaining Stock Acquisition Rights held by the Holder shall be

transferred to such Holder.

(i1) Class of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights:
Common stock of the Reorganized Company.

(ii1) Number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition rights:
To be determined in accordance with "Numbers of shares to be acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition
rights " above, taking into consideration, among others, the conditions of Structural Reorganization.

(iv) Value of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right:

The value of assets to be contributed upon exercise of each stock acquisition right to be allotted shall be

the amount obtained by multiplying (x) the exercise price after reorganization set forth below by (y) the

number of shares of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of the relevant stock
acquisition rights as determined in accordance with (iii) above. The "exercise price after reorganization”
shall be one (1) yen per share of the Reorganized Company to be acquired upon exercise of each of its
stock acquisition rights.

(v) Exercise period of stock acquisition rights:

From and including whichever is the later of (x) the commencement date of the period during which the

stock acquisition rights may be exercised as provided for in " Exercise period of stock acquisition rights "

above or (y) the effective date of the Structural Reorganization, to and including the expiration date of the
period during which the stock acquisition rights may be exercised as provided for in " Exercise period of
stock acquisition rights " above.

(vi) Matters concerning capital and capital reserve to be increased due to issuance of shares upon exercise of
stock acquisition rights:

To be determined in accordance with " Issue price for shares issued through the exercise of the stock

acquisition rights and the amount capitalized as common stock " above.

(vii) Restrictions on acquisition of stock acquisition rights by transfer:

The stock acquisition rights cannot be acquired through transfer, unless such acquisition is expressly

approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Reorganized Company.

(viii) Provisions concerning acquisition of stock acquisition rights:

If any of the proposals set forth in (a), (b), (¢), (d) and (e) below is approved at a general meeting of

shareholders of Panasonic (or, if a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders is not required, is

approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors of Panasonic), Panasonic may acquire the stock
acquisition rights without consideration on the date to be separately determined by the Board of Directors:

(a) Proposal for approval of a merger agreement under which Panasonic shall become a dissolving
company;

(b) Proposal for approval of split agreement or split plan under which Panasonic shall be split;

(c) Proposal for approval of a share exchange agreement or share transfer plan under which Panasonic
shall become a wholly-owned subsidiary;

(d) Proposal for approval of an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation in order to establish the
provision that an acquisition by way of transfer of any shares issued or to be issued by Panasonic shall
require the approval of Panasonic; and

(e) Proposal for approval of an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation in order to establish the
provision that an acquisition by way of transfer of a class of shares to be acquired upon exercise of the
stock acquisition rights shall require the approval of Panasonic or that Panasonic may acquire all of
such class of shares upon a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders.
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(ix) Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition rights:
To be determined in accordance with " Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition rights" above.

6. The contents are described as of the end of fiscal 2020 (March 31, 2020). The items which changed during
the period from the end of fiscal 2020 to the end of the month previous to the filing (May 31, 2020), the
contents described in [ ] as of the end of the month previous to the filing. No other contents changed from
the end of fiscal 2020.

Resolution date of the Board of Directors July 29, 2016

Directors of the Company (excluding Outside Directors)
13

Executive Officers and certain other officers (excluding

Directors who concurrently serve as Executive officers)
23

Former Directors of the Company and Former Executive
Officers and certain other officers

Category and number of persons granted

12
Number of stock acquisition rights 3,524
Note 6 [3,098]
Class, details and number of shares to be Common stock of Panasonic
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition 352,400 shares
rights [309,800 shares]
Note 6 Note 1

Subscription amount to be paid upon exercise of
P . P P One (1) yen
stock acquisition

From August 24, 2016

Exercise period of stock acquisition right
XETCISe perlod OF STock acquISTHON TIEAts to  August 23, 2046

i i : Issue price : 714 ye
Issue price for shares issued through the exercise Ssue pri yen

e Note 2
of the stock acquisition rights and the amount oo
. Amount capitalized as common stock
capitalized as common stock
Note 3
Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition
Note 4

rights

: L The stock acquisition rights cannot be acquired through
Matters regarding transfer of stock acquisition C
transfer, unless such acquisition is expressly approved by

rights . .
£ a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Matters regarding grant of stock acquisition
& g8 d Note 5

rights accompanying reorganization

(Notes)

1-3, 5, 6. Same as respective notes of resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 31, 2014 and
resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 29, 2015.

4. (i) During the period when the stock acquisition rights may be exercised, the Holder may exercise the
stock acquisition rights on and after the day immediately following the date on which such Holder
loses the status of Director, Executive Officer, Audit & Supervisory Board Member or any status
equivalent thereto, of Panasonic, or the day immediately following the day when three (3) years have
transpired since the day immediately following the day the stock acquisition rights were allotted,
whichever falls earlier.

(i) Notwithstanding (i) above, if proposal for approval of a merger agreement under which Panasonic
shall become a dissolving company or proposal for approval of a share exchange agreement or share
transfer plan under which Panasonic shall become a wholly-owned subsidiary is approved at a
general meeting of shareholders (or, if a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders is not
required, is approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors), stock acquisition rights can be
exercised only in a 15 day-period commencing from the day immediately following the date
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(inclusive) when the proposal is approved. Provided it excludes where the allotment of stock
acquisition rights by the Reorganized Company to the Holder in accordance with "Matters regarding
grant of stock acquisition rights accompanying reorganization" above is stipulated in a merger

agreement, a share exchange agreement, or a share transfer plan.

(iii)
inheritance.
(iv)

exercised thereafter.

(i) above shall not be applicable to those who have succeeded to the stock acquisition rights by

If the Holder waives the stock acquisition rights, the relevant stock acquisition rights may not be

Resolution date of the Board of Directors

July 31, 2017

June 28, 2018

Category and number of persons granted

Directors of the Company
(excluding Outside
Directors) : 8

Executive Officers and
certain other officers
(excluding Directors who
concurrently serve as
Executive officers) : 31

Former Executive Officer :

1

Directors of the Company
(excluding Outside
Directors) : 7

Executive Officers and
certain other officers
(excluding Directors who
concurrently serve as
Executive officers) : 34
Former Executive Officer :

1

Number of stock acquisition rights
Note 6

3,151
[3,122]

3,236

Class, details and number of shares to be
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition
rights

Common stock of Panasonic

315,100 shares
[312,200 shares]

Common stock of Panasonic

323,600 shares

Exercise period of stock acquisition rights

to  August 23, 2047

Note 1
Note 6 Note 1 ot
Subscriptic?n. émount to be paid upon exercise of One (1) yen One (1) yen
stock acquisition
From August 24, 2017 From July 19, 2018

to  July 18, 2048

Issue price for shares issued through the
exercise of the stock acquisition rights and the
amount capitalized as common stock

Issue price : 1,129 yen
Note 2
Amount capitalized as
common stock
Note 3

Issue price : 1,065 yen
Note 2
Amount capitalized as
common stock
Note 3

Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition
rights

Note 4

Matters regarding transfer of stock acquisition
rights

The stock acquisition rights cannot be acquired through
transfer, unless such acquisition is expressly approved by
a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Matters regarding grant of stock acquisition
rights accompanying reorganization

Note 5

(Notes)

1-3, 5, 6. Same as respective notes of resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 31, 2014 and
resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 29, 2015.

4. (1)

During the period when the stock acquisition rights may be exercised, the Holder may exercise the

stock acquisition rights on and after the day immediately following the date on which such Holder

loses the status of Director, Executive Officer, Audit & Supervisory Board Member or any status

equivalent thereto, of Panasonic, or the day immediately following the day when three (3) years have

transpired since the day immediately following the day the stock acquisition rights were allotted,

whichever falls earlier.
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(i1))  Notwithstanding (i) above, if proposal for approval of a merger agreement under which Panasonic

shall become a dissolving company or proposal for approval of a share exchange agreement or share

transfer plan under which Panasonic shall become a wholly-owned subsidiary is approved at a

general meeting of shareholders (or, if a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders is not

required, is approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors), stock acquisition rights can be

exercised only in a 15 day-period commencing from the day immediately following the date

(inclusive) when the proposal is approved. Provided it excludes where the allotment of stock

acquisition rights by the Reorganized Company to the Holder in accordance with "Matters regarding

grant of stock acquisition rights accompanying reorganization" above is stipulated in a merger

agreement, a share exchange agreement, or a share transfer plan.
(iii)) (i) above shall not be applicable to those who have succeeded to the stock acquisition rights by

inheritance.

(iv)  If the Holder waives the stock acquisition rights, the relevant stock acquisition rights may not be

exercised thereafter.

(Resolution contents after the end of fiscal 2020)

The following stock acquisition rights did not exist on the end of fiscal 2020 (March 31, 2020) and the end of the
month previous to the filling (May 31, 2020). The Board of Directors approved to allot the stock acquisition

rights on June 25, 2020.

Resolution date of the Board of Directors

June 25, 2020

Category and number of persons granted

Former Executive Officer: 1

Number of stock acquisition rights

58

Class, details and number of shares to be
acquired upon exercise of stock acquisition
rights

Common stock of Panasonic
5,800 shares
Note 1

Subscription amount to be paid upon exercise of
stock acquisition

One (1) yen

Exercise period of stock acquisition rights

From July 14, 2020
to  July 13,2050

Issue price for shares issued through the exercise

Issue price

rights

e ) Note 2
of the stock acquisition rights and the amount -
- Amount capitalized as common stock
capitalized as common stock
Note 3
Conditions for exercise of stock acquisition
Note 4

Matters regarding transfer of stock acquisition
rights

The stock acquisition rights cannot be acquired through
transfer, unless such acquisition is expressly approved by
a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Matters regarding grant of stock acquisition

rights accompanying reorganization

Note 5

(Notes)

1, 3, 5. Same as respective notes of resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 31, 2014 and
resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 29, 2015.
4. Same as respective notes of resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on July 31, 2017 and

resolution of the Board of Directors meeting held on June 28, 2018.

2. Issue price is the total of the fair value of the stock acquisition rights in allotment date and the

subscription amount to be paid upon exercise of stock acquisition (one (1) yen per share). The fair value
of the stock acquisition rights is the option price per share calculated by the Black-Sholes Model on the
day of the allotment.
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2) Details of rights plans
Not applicable.
3) Other share acquisition rights
Not applicable.
(3) Information on moving strike convertible bonds, etc.
Not applicable.

(4) Changes in the total number of issued shares and the amount of common stock, etc.

Change in Balance of the | Change in
the total | b
number of | total number common .
Date issued of issued stock Balance of Change in Balance of
sh;es shares o common stock | capital reserve | capital reserve
(shares) (millions of | - o
(shares) yen) (millions of yen)|(millions of yen)|(millions of yen)
A t 30
) (;llg;s ’ 273,500 | 2.453,326,997 127 258,867 126 126

(Notes) Increase for issuance of new shares as restricted stock compensation.
Issue price * = * 924.7 yen per share
Capitalization amount = = * 462.35 yen per share
Individuals that received the shares = = -
Panasonic Directors (excluding Outside Directors), Executive Officers not concurrently serving as
Panasonic directors, Panasonic Fellows. 44 individuals in total.

(5) Composition of Issued Shares by Type of Shareholders
As of March 31, 2020

Status of shares (one unit of stock: 100 shares) Number of
Class National and Financial ilfsltlrl{allr;c::?llts Other Foreign sharcholders Individual S}tll?;isplg:s
local institutions| business |institutions| Non- L and others Total unit
governments operators individuals Individuals (shares)

Number of
shareholders — 176 72 3,277 965 531 433,758 438,779 —
(persons)
Share
ownership — 17,992,339 521,123 { 1,492,331 | 7,423,921 11,478 | 7,020,848 | 24,462,040 | 7,122,997
(units)
Percentage of
shares — 32.67 2.13 6.10 30.35 0.05 28.70 100.00 —
(%)
(Notes)

1. Of 120,365,301 shares of treasury stock, 1,203,653 units are included in "Individual and others," and 1
shares are included in "Number of shares less than one unit."

2. Of the shares registered in the name of Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc., 127 units are included in
"Other institutions," and 89 shares are included in "Number of shares less than one unit."
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(6) Major shareholders

As of March 31, 2020

Percentage of

Share total issued
ownership shares
Name Address (in thousands (excluding
of shares) | treasury stock)
(%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, 11-3, Hamamatsucho 2-chome,
Ltd. ) 188,150 8.06
Minato-ku, Tokyo
(trust account) Note 2
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 8-11, Harumi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, 177.805 762
(trust account) Note 3 Tokyo
. . 5-12, Imabashi 3-chome, Chuo-ku,
Nippon Life Insurance Company Osaka-shi, Osaka 69,056 2.96
25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf,
JP Morgan Chase Bank 385151 London, E14 5JP, United Kingdom 54.945 235
(Standing proxy: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.) | (5-5, Otemachi 1-chome, Chiyoda- ’ '
ku, Tokyo )
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 8-11, Harumi 1-chome, Chuo-ku,
46,536 1.99
(trust account 5) Note 3 Tokyo
Panasonic Corporation Employee 1006, Oaza Kadoma, Kadoma-shi,
. _ 41,573 1.78
Shareholding Association Osaka
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 8-11, Harumi 1-chome, Chuo-ku,
41,454 1.77
(trust account 7) Note 3 Tokyo
4- hiromi 1-ch huo-k
Sumitomo Life Insurance Co. 33. Shiromi I-chome, Chuo-ku, 37,465 1.60
Osaka-shi, Osaka
1776 Heritage Drive, North
State Street Bank West Client - . cittage “rive, SO
Quincy, MA 02171, U.S.A.
Treaty 505234 . . 33,340 1.42
(Standing proxy: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.) (5-5, Otemachi 1-chome, Chiyoda-
& proxy: 77| ku, Tokyo )
. 4-27, Dojima 2-chome, Kita-
Matsushita Real Estate Co., Ltd. ’ ’ 29,121 1.24
atsushita Keal bstate L0, ku,Osaka-shi, Osaka ’
Total — 719,449 30.83

(Notes)

1. Holdings of less than 1,000 shares have been omitted.
2. The number of shares held by The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) reflects the shares
entrusted by Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation and other corporations, which have been

originally entrusted in their trust services.

3. The numbers of shares held by Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account), Japan Trustee Services
Bank, Ltd. (trust account 5) and Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account 7) reflect the shares
entrusted by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc. and other corporations, which have been originally

entrusted in their trust services.
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4. Amendment to Report of Possession of Large Volume was submitted by BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. and its
five joint holders dated March 22, 2017. Panasonic Corporation can not confirm the actual status of
shareholdings on the standard date of voting exercise.
The shareholding status as of March 15, 2017 according to the report is as follows.

Number of share certificates, Percentage of share certificat
Name of Shareholder etc. held (in thousands of ereetitage of stato certiticates
held (%)
shares)
BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. 42,283 1.72
BlackRock Life Limited 5,403 0.22
BlackRock Asset Management
Ireland Limited 8,843 0.36
BlackRock Fund Advisors 28,729 1.17
BlackRock Institutional Trust
41 L.
Company, N.A. 33,0 35
BlackRock Investment Management
4,409 0.18
(UK) Limited ’
Total 122,710 5.00

(7) Information on voting rights

1) Total number of shares issued

As of March 31, 2020

Classification

Number of shares

(shares) rights

Number of voting

Description

Shares without voting right

Shares with restricted voting right
(treasury stock, etc.)

Shares with restricted voting right
(others)

Shares with full voting right
(treasury stock, etc.)

(Treasury stock)
Common stock
120,365,300

Standard common stock of
— [ the Company without any
restriction

(Crossholding stock)

Common stock

— | Same as above

14,838,300
Shares with full voting right Common stock
(others) 2.311,000,400 23,110,004 | Same as above
Shares less than one unit Common stock Shares less than one unit
ares anonct 7,122,997 (100 shares)
Number of issued shares 2,453,326,997 — —

Total number of voting rights

— 23,110,004 —

(Notes)

1. 12,700 shares (127 voting rights) and 89 shares registered in the name of Japan Securities Depository Center,
Inc. are included in "Shares with full voting right (others) " and "Shares less than one unit," respectively.

2. Treasury stock and crossholding stock described below are included in "Shares less than one unit."

Treasury stock: Panasonic Corporation (1 shares)

Crossholding stock: Panasonic Employee Cooperation Society, Inc. (7 shares), Asahi Plating Co., Ltd. (71
shares), AC Techno SANYO Co., Ltd. (75 shares)
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2) Treasury stock, etc.

As of March 31, 2020

Number of Number of
shares held Percentage
shares held under the Total shares of total
Name of shareholder Address under own held .
name of issued shares
name (Shares) o
(shares) others (%)
(shares)
(Treasury stock)

1006, Oaza

Panasonic Corporation Kadoma, Kadoma- | 120,365,300 — 120,365,300 4.90
shi, Osaka

(Crossholding stock)

1006, Oaza

Panasomc.: Emplqyee Ka}doma, Kadoma- 14,798.800 — | 14,798,800 0.60

Cooperation Society, Inc. shi, Osaka
5-16, Shinmori 4-

. . chome, Asahi-ku, .

Asahi Plating Co., Ltd. Osaka-shi, Osaka 23,400 23,400 0.00
7-21, Imagawa 8-

Osaka National Electric Ic{hiogl;’i mivoshi

Works Co., Ltd. gasaisumiyos 10,000 — 10,000 0.00
-ku, Osaka-shi,
Osaka
597-1, Nisshincho

AC Techno SANYO Co., 3-chome, Kita-ku,

Ltd. Saitama-shi, 5,100 — 5,100 0.00
Saitama
416,
Watarihashicho,

Sanin Panasonic Corporation | Izumo-shi, 1,000 — 1,000 0.00
Shimane

Crossholding stock total — 14,838,300 — | 14,838,300 0.60
Total — 135,203,600 — 1 135,203,600 5.51
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2. Information on Acquisition of Treasury Stock, etc.

Class of shares
Acquisition of common stock under Article 155, Item 7 of the Companies Act.

(1) Acquisition of treasury stock resolved at the general meeting of shareholders
Not applicable.

(2) Acquisition of treasury stock resolved at the Board of Directors meetings
Not applicable.

(3) Details of acquisition of treasury stock not based on the resolutions of the general meeting of shareholders or
the Board of Directors meetings

Classification Number of shares (shares) Total amount (yen)

Treasury stock acquired during the fiscal year

ended March 31, 2020 35,904 35:219,525

Treasury stock acquired during the current period 1,602 1,286,103

(Note)
With regard to "Treasury stock acquired during the current period," the number of treasury stock acquired due
to requests to purchase stock less than one unit shares from June 1, 2020 to the filing date is not included.

(4) Status of the disposition and holding of acquired treasury stock

Fiscal year ended .
March 31, 2020 Current period

Number of  |Total disposition| Number of [Total disposition
shares (shares) | amount (yen) | shares (shares) | amount (yen)

Classification

Acquired treasury stock which was
offered to subscribers

Acquired treasury stock which was
canceled

Acquired treasury stock which was
transferred due to merger, share — — — —
exchange or company split

Others Note 2 333,628 582,757,031 46,177 80,653,864
Total numbers of treasury stock held 120,365,301 — 120,320,726 —
(Notes)

1. With regard to "Number of shares (shares)" and "Total disposition amount (yen)" of the current period, the
number of treasury stock which was sold or acquired due to requests from shareholders holding less than one
unit shares to purchase or sell additional shares from June 1, 2020 to the filing date are not included.

2. The breakdown of "others" in "Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020" are selling due to requests from

shareholders holding shares less than one unit shares to sell additional shares (Number of shares 2,128
shares, Total disposition amount 3,717,092 yen) and exercise of stock acquisition rights (Number of shares
331,500 shares, Total disposition amount 579,039,939 yen)
The breakdown of "others" in "Current period" are selling due to requests from shareholders holding shares
less than one unit shares to sell additional shares (Number of shares 677 shares, Total disposition amount
1,182,466 yen) and exercise of stock acquisition rights (Number of shares 45,500 shares, Total disposition
amount 79,471,398 yen)
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3. Dividend Policy

Since its foundation, Panasonic has managed its businesses under the concept that returning profits to
shareholders is one of its most important policies. From the perspective of providing returns on the capital
investment made by shareholders, the Company, in principle, distributes profits to shareholders based on its
business performance and strives to provide stable and continuous dividends, targeting a dividend payout ratio
of approximately 30% with respect to consolidated net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation
stockholders.

Panasonic pays dividends twice a year, an interim and a year-end. Dividends are resolved at the Board of
Directors meeting under articles of incorporation.

In view of this basic policy as well as its current financial position, Panasonic expects to pay an annual
dividend of 30 yen per share for fiscal 2020, which includes the interim dividend of 15 yen per share and a year

-end dividend of 15 yen per share.

The Company will utilize its internal reserve funds for further enhancing the management structure and future
business development.

Dividends for the 113th term are as follows.

Total amount of dividends

Resoluti t Divi h
esolution date (Millions of yen) ividends per share (yen)
The Board of Directors meeting
4 15.
held on October 31, 2019 34,993 30
The Board of Directors meeting 34.994 15.0

held on May 18, 2020
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4. Corporate Governance, etc.

This section includes the matters of consolidated companies. This section refers to the matters as of June 26,
2020, the date of the filing of this annual securities report, unless otherwise indicated.

(1) Corporate Governance

1) Basic Policy of Corporate Governance
The Company, since its establishment, has operated its business under its business philosophy, "contributing
to the progress and development of society and the well-being of people worldwide through its business
activities." Also, the Company believes it is important to increase corporate value by fulfilling accountability
through dialogue with various stakeholders such as shareholders and customers, making effort to execute
transparent business activities, and swiftly conducting business activities with fairness and honesty based on
its basic philosophy of "a company is a public entity of society."

The Company recognizes that corporate governance is the important basic structure for the aforementioned
purpose, and endeavors to establish and strengthen the effective corporate governance structure based on the
Audit & Supervisory Board System composed of the Board of Directors which is responsible for deciding
important operational matters for the whole Group and monitoring the execution of business by Directors,
and Audit & Supervisory Board Member (A&SB Member) / Audit & Supervisory Board (A&SB) which are
independent from the Board of Directors and responsible for auditing the performance of duties by Directors.

The Company conducts the following activities to enhance effectiveness of its corporate governance.

1. Secures the rights and equal treatment of shareholders.

2. Endeavors to appropriately cooperate with stakeholders such as employees, customers, business partners
and local societies with the recognition that its sustainable growth is brought about as a result of receiving
resources and contributions from such stakeholders.

3. Appropriately discloses corporate information and ensure transparency of the management.

4. Given its fiduciary responsibility and accountability to shareholders, the Board of Directors set the broad
direction of corporate strategy, establish an environment where appropriate risk-taking is supported and
carry out effective oversight of Directors and management from an independent and objective standpoint.

5. Engages in constructive dialogue with shareholders in order to contribute to the sustainable growth and
the increase of corporate value over the mid- to long-term.

2) Overview and background of corporate governance structure
(a) Overview of corporate governance structure

In the Company, each of thirty-four (34) business divisions of basic management units, autonomously
manages R&D, production and sales as well as its cash and profit on a global and regional basis.

In order to support these business divisions, the Company introduced divisional company system. The five
(5) business-based companies (Appliances, Life Solutions, Connected Solutions, Automotive, and
Industrial Solutions) and the two (2) region-based companies (China & Northeast Asia and US) have been
promoting the divisions’ evolution and change in the area in which they have responsibility and taking a
leading role to realize growth strategy. The Company also established Corporate Strategy Division, which
is responsible for the strategic management throughout the group, to promote enhancement of the
corporate value by formulating mid- and long-term group-wide strategies. In addition, the Company
incorporated Professional Business Support Sector which assumes the function of the group-wide
management control in terms of developing and improving the Company wide rules and systems
infrastructure, implementing internal audit, internal control and compliance activities required to the listed
company and the legal entity, and responding to the stakeholders. Also the Company established
Innovation Promotion Sector which assumes the function of creating new business projects and business
models focused on Al/IoT technologies, contributing to the business with its innovation technologies and
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production technologies, and overseeing the Company-wide technology development, manufacturing and
designing.

[The Board of Directors and Executive Officer System]|

The Board of Directors, which is composed of thirteen (13) Directors including six (6) Outside Directors,
of which two (2) is a woman (at least one-third of its Directors are Outside Directors), seeks to ensure the
diversity of the knowledge, experience and qualifications of the Board of Directors as a whole. Chairman
of the Board who is not involved in execution of business takes on the position of a chairman.

In accordance with the Companies Act of Japan and related laws and ordinances (collectively, the
"Companies Act"), the Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for administration of the Company’s
affairs and monitoring of the execution of business by Directors.

Under the seven (7) Divisional Company-based management structure, the Company has empowered each
of seven (7) Divisional Companies and business divisions through delegation of authority. At the same
time, the Company employs an Executive Officer system, under which Executive Officers lead the reform
of the Panasonic Group’s business structure for the total optimization. This system facilitates the
development of corporate strategies that integrate the Group’s comprehensive strengths. The Company has
sixteen (16) Executive Officers (including those who concurrently serve as Directors), which include
President, Vice President, senior managements of each of seven (7) Divisional Companies, senior officers
responsibly for certain foreign regions and officers responsible for corporate functions. The Company has
two (2) foreign Executive Officers out of sixteen (16) Executive Officers.

In addition, in order to ensure swift and strategic decision-making, along with sound and appropriate
monitoring at the same time, the Board of Directors, as a decision-making body for Group-wide matters,
concentrates on decisions about the corporate strategies and the supervision of the seven (7) Divisional
Companies. Taking into consideration the diverse scope of its business operations, the Company has opted
to maintain a system where Executive Officers, who are most familiar with the specifics of the operations,
take an active part in the Board of Directors. Moreover, to clarify the responsibilities of Directors and
build a structure of the Board of Directors flexibly, the Company limits the term of each Director to one

(1) year.

[Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members) and Audit & Supervisory Board (A&SB)]
Pursuant to the Companies Act, the Company elected five (5) A&SB Members (one (1) of them is a
woman member) including three (3) Outside A&SB Members, with majority of them being Outside
A&SB Members, and established A&SB made up of A&SB Members. The A&SB Members and A&SB
monitor the status of corporate governance and audit the day-to-day activities of management, including
the performance of duties by Directors. Additionally, the Company elected A&SB Members who have
substantial finance and accounting knowledge.

[Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee]

The Company established the Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee in 2015. Upon
receiving inquiries from the Board of Directors, the committee deliberates on the results of internal
reviews regarding the nomination of candidates for Director, Executive Officer, and Audit & Supervisory
Board Member, and also on the appropriateness of the remuneration system for Directors and Executive
Officers.

As of the date of submission of this report, the Committee consists of five (5) members; Outside Director
Hiroko Ota (Chairperson), Outside Director Kazuhiko Toyama, Outside Director Yoshinobu Tsutsui,
Director and Chairman of the Board Shusaku Nagae, and Representative Director and President Kazuhiro
Tsuga. The Company has been enhancing objectivity and transparency of the committee by ensuring that
Outside Directors constitute a majority of its membership with one of them serving the chairperson.
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[Conduct and utilization of evaluation of the Board of Directors effectiveness]
The Company, to enhance effectiveness of the Board of Directors, conducts a survey to all the Board
members who attend the meeting annually, and reports the results and evaluations of the survey at the
Board. Drawing on a third-party point of view, the Company conducted interviews this year in addition to
a survey.

Items and results of the survey in fiscal 2020
1) Items of the survey
* Verification of the Board of Directors operation policy for fiscal 2020
* How discussions/deliberations should be carried out at Board of Directors meetings
(discussions/deliberations the Board of Directors should ideally have)
* Unity of the Board of Directors
* The Board of Directors-shareholders (investors) relations, how they should be
* The Board of Directors’ operations and others
ii ) Results of the survey
Upon analyzing the results of the survey and interview, the Company’s findings with respect to the
effectiveness of the Board of Directors are such that the current state of the Board is essentially
appropriate in terms of its monitoring and decision-making function. Findings with respect to
strengthening functions of the Board of Directors, however, included opinions that in order to strengthen
functions of the Board of Directors, discussions and information sharing with Outside Directors/Audit &
Supervisory Board Members should be further activated and promoted in Board of Directors’ meetings.

[Group Strategy Meeting]

The Company holds, approximately twice a month in general, the Group Strategy Meeting to discuss and
set the direction of the Company’s mid- to long-term strategies and important issues from 2012.Chaired by
Representative Director, President, Kazuhiro Tsuga, Members of "Group management team," which
consist of approximately ten (10) people in managerial position, including the President and presidents of
seven (7) Divisional Companies, and a non-Japanese Executive Officer, attend the Group Strategy
Meeting, and the responsible persons of the related businesses and functions also participate in the
meeting, depending on the matter to be discussed. Presidents’ names of seven (7) Divisional Companies
etc. are listed in the (Notes) 9 of the Names List for "(2) Member of the Board of Directors and Audit &
Supervisory Board Members."

(b) Background of corporate governance structure
The Company determined that it is appropriate to build and enhance its corporate governance structure
based on the Board of Directors and the Audit & Supervisory Board System composed of A&SB Members
and A&SB, leveraging Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee and the scheme of Evaluation
of the Board of Directors Effectiveness.
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3) Basic Policy on Internal Control Systems and Status of the Operation of the System

The Company’s Board of Directors made the following resolution concerning the Company’s basic policy
regarding the development of internal control systems. It was decided at the Board of Directors’ meeting
held on July 31, 2019 that this basic policy should be continued with some amendments made to it to reflect
the business environment, status of the Company, etc. The details are as follows:

[Basic Policy Regarding the Development of Internal Control Systems]
(a) System for ensuring legal compliance in the performance of Directors’ duties
The Company shall ensure legal compliance in the performance of Directors’ duties by developing
effective corporate governance and monitoring systems, as well as by ensuring total compliance
awareness among Directors.

(b) System for retention and management of information pertaining to the performance of Directors’ duties
The Company shall properly retain and manage information on the performance of Directors’ duties in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations and the internal rules of the Company.

(c) Rules and other measures for financial risk management
The Company shall establish rules for risk management, and identify material risk through assessment of
risks affecting management of the business. The Company shall also take countermeasures against each
material risk, while monitoring the progress of such countermeasures with the aim of seeking continual
improvement.

(d) System for ensuring efficiency of the performance of Directors’ duties
The Company shall ensure efficiency in the performance of Directors’ duties by clarifying business goals
based on its business strategies, and examining progress towards achievement of such goals, while
seeking to expedite decision-making.

(e) System for ensuring compliance with applicable laws in the performance of employees’ duties
The Company shall seek to increase employees’ awareness of compliance issues by clarifying the
Company’s compliance policy. The Company shall also ensure legal compliance in the performance of
employees’ duties by developing effective monitoring systems.
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(f) System for ensuring the properness of operations across the Panasonic Group
While respecting the autonomy of each Group company’s management practices, the Company shall
fully ensure that Group companies adhere to the Company’s management policy, management
philosophy and basic policy regarding the development of internal control systems, and shall develop a
system for reporting to the Company to thoroughly ensure proper operations of the Panasonic Group as a
whole.

(g) Employees who assist A&SB Members in auditing, and such employees’ independence from Directors
The Company shall establish a body independent from Directors, tasked with enhancing the effectiveness
of audits by A&SB Members and facilitating the smooth performance of audits.

(h) Ensuring effectiveness of instructions given by A&SB Members to employees who assist A&SB
Members
Staff members assisting the A&SB Members, while still subject to the internal rules of the Company,
shall be under the instruction and supervision of the respective A&SB Members, and personnel-related
matters shall be undertaken upon prior discussion with A&SB Members.

(i) System for Directors, employees and other staffs of the Company and its subsidiaries to report to the
Company’s A&SB Members
The Company shall ensure opportunities and systems that enable Directors, employees and other staffs of
the Company and Group companies to properly report to the respective A&SB Members, and moreover
shall ensure opportunities and systems that enable audit & supervisory officers, who are non-statutory
full-time auditors, of Divisional Companies and other such bodies, and A&SB Members of Group
companies to report to the Company's A&SB Members.

(j) System for ensuring that parties who have reported to A&SB Members do not incur unfavorable
treatment as a consequence of such reporting
In ensuring opportunities and systems for Company and Group company employees and other staffs to
report to A&SB Members, the Company shall make sure that employees and other staffs who have duly
reported do not incur unfavorable treatment as a consequence of such reporting.

(k) Policy on management of expenses and debt incurred in execution of A&SB Member duties
The Company shall calculate budgets on an annual basis for expenses arising with respect to the
execution of duties of A&SB Members to ensure effectiveness of audits, and moreover shall provide pre-
payment or reimbursement in accordance with laws and regulations with respect to expenses incurred
beyond amounts budgeted.

(1) Other systems for ensuring effective performance of audits by the A&SB Members
The Company shall have audit & supervisory officers assigned to Divisional Companies and other such
entities to assist with audits by A&SB Members. Moreover, the Company shall develop a system
enabling effective performance of audits, including mutual cooperation with the accounting auditors and
the internal auditing group, in accordance with the Audit Plan established by the A&SB Members each
year.

[Status of Basic Policy Implementation in the Company]
(a) System for ensuring legal compliance in the performance of Directors’ duties

* The Company has established internal rules such as the Panasonic Code of Conduct and the Code of
Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers, and endeavors to ensure that its Directors act in accordance
with laws, regulations and the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. Additionally, when Directors
assume their positions, the Company provides them with opportunities to acquire the knowledge
necessary to fulfill their roles and obligations, and during their terms of office it continues to provide
Directors with opportunities to acquire the knowledge they need, including presentations on
management and compliance by external experts as required.
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* The Company strengthens its supervisory functions by making the composition of Outside Directors of
the Board of Directors Meeting to be one third or more and by providing opportunities for the Outside
Directors to actively communicate through Board of Directors’ meetings and other such occasions. The
Company has also established a Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee whose
composition ratio of Outside Directors to be majority, and whose chairperson to be an Outside Director
to ensure objectivity and transparency in the process of determining the nomination and remuneration of
Directors.
Audits are conducted by A&SB Members and the Audit & Supervisory Board. In addition, at the
Divisional Companies, management committees have been established and audit & supervisory officers
have been appointed, which correspond in function to the Board of Directors and the A&SB Members,
respectively.
* The Company aims to resolutely prevent any association with anti-social forces (such as organized
criminal networks) through initiatives that include implementing training for members of the Board of
Directors, partially revising the Regulations of Executive Officers, and obtaining written pledges with

regard to combating organized crime within the Company.

(b) System for retention and management of information pertaining to the performance of Directors’ duties
The minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors are prepared after each meeting of the Board of
Directors and retained permanently by the section responsible for administration relating to the Board of
Directors. Records of approval by the President are also retained permanently by the responsible
department.

(c) Rules and other measures for financial risk management
Based on Basic Risk Management Regulations, the Company identifies material risks by collecting and
assessing information on risks in an integrated and comprehensive fashion through the Global and Group
(G&Q) Risk Management Committee, and takes countermeasures proportionate to the materiality of each
risk.

(d) System for ensuring efficiency of the performance of Directors’ duties

* The Company expedites decision-making through Rules of Approval for Decision-making in Important
Matters, the clarification of roles between Directors and Executive Officers, the delegation of authority
to entities such as Divisional Companies and business divisions, the holding of Group Strategy
Meetings, and the implementation of an IT system that ensures the rapid and accurate collection and
transmission of important management information.

* The Company plans and implements measures to achieve the business goals it sets based on its business
strategies by confirming and examining the status of progress towards the goals at the time of monthly
settlement of accounts.

(e) System for ensuring compliance with applicable laws in the performance of employees’ duties
* The Company has established internal rules such as the Panasonic Code of Conduct and implements
various awareness-building activities such as its Compliance Awareness Month on a Company-wide
basis as well as training tailored to specific employee levels and e-learning.

The Company seeks to detect improper acts at an early stage through "operational audits", "internal

control audits", and "compliance audits", and operating a global hotline that is available in multiple
languages in addition to other measures. In addition, the "Panasonic Code of Conduct" stipulates that
whistleblowers shall be protected from any retaliation as a consequence of having used the hotline or
other means to report violations of laws or regulations, or concerns otherwise in that regard.

* The Company is stepping up its efforts to implement fair business practices emphasizing compliance
and taking measures to change its business environments accordingly by establishing organizations that
perform the functions of promotion of fair business, business legal affairs, risk management,
administration of corporate governance, and compliance audits.

The Company aims to resolutely prevent any association with anti-social forces (such as organized
criminal networks) by assigning an employee in the division overseeing such preventative measures
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specifically to the task of blocking any relations with such forces, and through initiatives that include
partially revising the Employee Work Regulations, and obtaining written pledges with regard to
combating organized crime within the Company.

(f) System for Ensuring the Properness of Operations across the Panasonic Group

* The Company ensures that basic policy for internal control systems is fully implemented by Group
companies, and disseminates relevant information among Group companies. Initiatives to that end
include: implementing the Panasonic Code of Conduct and the Rules of Approval for Decision-Making
in Important Matters; establishing group-wide regulations respecting individual professional functions;
dispatching Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members to Group companies and exercising the
Company’s shareholder rights thereof; establishing rules of governance that are to be observed by Group
companies; conducting regular operational audits, internal control audits, and compliance audits of
Group companies through the internal auditing group, and; sharing and disseminating information on
business objectives through management policy announcements.

= The framework described above ensures the properness of operations, thereby enabling the Panasonic
Group to establish the internal controls necessary for financial reporting based on the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act.

(g) Employees who assist A&SB Members in auditing, and such employees’ independence from Directors
The Company has established the Audit & Supervisory Board Member’s Office, whose dedicated staff is
under the direct control of the Audit & Supervisory Board and separate from any operating function of the
Company’s business. The Company assigns A&SB Member assistant staff members who possess
appropriate capabilities and knowledge as required by the A&SB Members.

(h) Ensuring effectiveness of instructions given by A&SB Members to employees who assist A&SB
Members
= Respective A&SB Members issue instructions to their staff members, and those staff members
accordingly assist the A&SB Members in performing their duties.
* The Company consults with A&SB Members in advance of undertaking personnel-related matters
including employee transfers and other affairs involving staff members who assist the A&SB Members.

(1) System for Directors, employees and other staffs of the Company and its subsidiaries to report to the

Company's A&SB Members

* Directors, employees and other staffs of the Company and Group companies report on business
operations and other issues at respective regular meetings held by A&SB Members and other such
occasions, and also report as necessary at other important meetings with A&SB Members, where their
attendance has been requested. Moreover, A&SB Members of Group companies report as necessary to
the Company’s A&SB Members regarding content of reports at respective Group companies. Audit &
supervisory officers conduct inquiries at respective Divisional Companies regarding business operations
and issues at such Divisional Companies, and report such matters as necessary to the Company’s A&SB
Members.

* The Company has established an Audit Report System by which employees of the Company and Group
companies directly report to the Company’s Audit & Supervisory Board about irregularities or concerns
in regards to accounting or auditing.

(j) System for ensuring that parties who have reported to A&SB Members do not incur unfavorable
treatment as a consequence of such reporting
The Audit Report System enables parties to report matters anonymously, while the Panasonic Code of
Conduct ensures that whistleblowers shall not be subject to unfavorable treatment as a consequence of
such reporting.
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(k) Policy on management of expenses and debt incurred in execution of A&SB Member duties

* To ensure effectiveness of audits, the Company calculates preliminary budgets with respect to
anticipated expenses required by A&SB Members in executing their duties, in accordance with Audit &
Supervisory Standards.

* The Company also provides pre-payment or reimbursement for expenses paid under urgent or
extraordinary circumstances in accordance with laws and regulations.

* In making payment of audit expenses, A&SB Members are required to remain mindful of efficiency and
appropriateness in that regard.

(1) Other systems for ensuring effective performance of audits by the A&SB Members

* Audit & supervisory officers tasked with monthly reporting and implementing liaison meetings are
assigned to Divisional Companies and other such entities. Any decisions on personnel-related matters
involving the audit & supervisory officers require the agreement of A&SB Members.
The Company has established and operates the Panasonic Group Audit & Supervisory Board Members’
Meeting chaired by the Company’s Senior A&SB Member, in order to facilitate cooperation among the

A&SB Members of the Company, the audit & supervisory officers of Divisional Companies and other
such entities, and the A&SB Members of Group companies.
* Representative Directors and A&SB Members exchange opinions regularly and whenever necessary.
Moreover, respective departments cooperate in implementing visiting audits of business offices inside
and outside Japan conducted by A&SB Members. Internal auditing groups also cooperate to enhance the
effectiveness of audits carried out by A&SB Members through collaboration with A&SB Members,
including reporting as appropriate to the A&SB Members.
When the accounting auditors formulate their audit plans, perform quarterly reviews, and conduct final

audits, the A&SB Members hold regular meetings with the accounting auditors at which they receive
explanations and reports, and exchange opinions with the accounting auditors as necessary.
Note: "Group companies" means subsidiaries as stipulated in the Companies Act.

4) The status of the Company’s internal system concerning disclosure of corporate information

Under its basic philosophy, "A company is a public entity of society," the Company has committed to highly
transparent business activities and endeavored to be accountable its accountability to its stakeholders. The
Company’s basic policy concerning information disclosure is set forth in the "Panasonic Code of Conduct,"
which prescribes specific items to be complied with in order to put the Group’s business policy into practice,
and the standards in the course of business is published on the Company’s website as "the Disclosure
Policy." The Company’s basic policy is to provide the Company’s fair and accurate financial information
and corporate information, including management policies, business activities and corporate ESG
(Environment, Social and Governance) activities, in a timely, appropriate and easily understandable manner.

In accordance with this basic policy, important matters concerning the management of the Group are
resolved or reported at the Board of Directors pursuant to the Regulations of the Board of Directors. These
important matters and other matters, which are required to be disclosed under relevant laws and ordinances
in Japan and overseas or any other regulations, are timely and accurately reported from each relevant
department, that has the important internal information, to the department that handles relevant information
under the monitoring of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), so that important information is gathered.
Further, matters required to be disclosed under the rules of financial instruments exchanges are also under
the monitoring of the CFO.

Also, if any of the matters which is required to be disclosed under relevant laws and ordinances in Japan and
overseas, and the rules of financial instruments exchanges or any other regulations, occurs at the Company’s
business divisions including subsidiaries, such matter shall be immediately reported to the "Financial &
Accounting Department” or the "Financial and, Finance & IR Department," depending upon the nature
thereof; Thus, the Company has established a structure whereby these matters can be collected.
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With respect to the information gathered or identified, the Company determines the necessity of disclosure
thereof in accordance with relevant laws and ordinances in Japan and overseas, and the rules of financial
instruments exchanges or any other regulations, and makes effort to disclose it at the time that the
organization, which effectively decides execution of the business of the Company, makes a resolution or
determination, or becomes aware of its occurrence.

In addition, the Company endeavors to confirm the contents and expressions of the disclosure with the
relevant departments within the Company and outside legal counsel to ensure the accuracy, fairness and
adequacy of the disclosure.

Moreover, the Company has established disclosure control procedures in order to comply with relevant laws
and ordinances in Japan and overseas, the rules of financial instruments exchanges and any other regulations,
and to implement the fair, accurate and timely disclosure of information about its Group, etc. In the process
of preparation and confirmation of documents such as annual securities reports and quarterly reports, the
Disclosure Committee, which is comprised of managers from principal departments that handle relevant
information, confirms the validity of the content of the descriptions and the appropriateness of the
procedures concerning the disclosure under the supervision of the President and the CFO, who are
responsible for establishing, maintaining and ensuring the effectiveness of the internal control and disclosure
control of the Company. The chairman of the Disclosure Committee is appointed by the President and the
CFO, and the members of the Disclosure Committee are appointed by the chairman of the Disclosure
Committee. The Disclosure Committee also develops, maintains, improves and evaluates the internal control
procedures concerning disclosure matters.

5) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company has documented the actual status of its internal control system, with integrated control
provided by the Internal Control Promotion Office, in order to ensure reliability in the financial reporting of
the Panasonic Group including its subsidiaries, ranging from the control infrastructure to actual internal
control activities. Specifically, the Company has reinforced its internal controls by implementing self-checks
and self-assessment programs at each of the Divisional Companies and business divisions, etc. Then, Internal
Auditing Managers of the Divisional Companies appointed by the Company at each of the Divisional
Companies, etc. conduct audits. Based on the audits, the Internal Control Promotion Office supervises the
group-wide internal control audits in order to confirm the effectiveness of each company’s financial
reporting. With the aim of further enhancing the Group’s internal control system, in fiscal 2019 Panasonic
had approximately 400 personnel assigned to conduct internal audits in the Internal Auditing Group.

6) Contract between the Company and Outside Directors / Outside A&SB Members (A&SB Members) under
Article 427, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act
The Company has entered into liability limitation agreements with all Outside Directors and Outside A&SB
Members, respectively, which limit the amount of their liability under Article 423, Paragraph 1 of the
Companies Act to the aggregate of the amounts specified in Article 425, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act,
if they perform their duties in good faith and without significant negligence.

7) Matters to be resolved at general meetings of shareholders that can also be resolved by the Board of
Directors
The Company stipulates in its Articles of Incorporation that unless otherwise provided by law, the Company
may determine, by a resolution of the Board of Directors, a distribution of surplus or any other matters set
forth in each item of Article 459, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act. This is to enable the Company to more
flexibly distribute profits to shareholders based on its consolidated business performance and to repurchase
and cancel its own stock under its basic policy of providing returns to shareholders.

The Company, pursuant to Article 426, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act, stipulates in its Articles of
Incorporation that it may, by a resolution of the Board of Directors, exempt a Director (including a former

Director) and a A&SB Member (including a former A&SB Member) from being held liable for his/her
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actions as set forth in Article 423, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act to the extent permitted by applicable
laws and ordinances, to enable the Directors and A&SB Members to perform their duties in a satisfactory
manner.

8) Requirements for the adoption of resolutions for the election of Directors
The Company stipulates in its Articles of Incorporation that the presence of shareholders representing one-
third or more of the voting rights held by the total shareholders entitled to exercise their voting rights and a
majority of the votes held by those shareholders are required for the adoption of resolutions necessary to
approve the election of Directors.

9) Requirements for the adoption of special resolutions of general meetings of shareholders
The Company stipulates in its Articles of Incorporation that the presence of shareholders representing one-
third or more of the voting rights held by the total shareholders entitled to exercise their voting rights and
two-thirds or more the votes held by those shareholders are required for the adoption of special resolutions of
general meetings of shareholders which are stipulated in Article 309, Paragraph 2 of the Companies Act. By
relaxing the requirements for a quorum for special resolutions of general meetings of shareholders,
resolutions for those resolutions can be made with certainty.

10) Policy on Control of the Company
(a) Efforts to boost corporate value of the Company

Since the Company’s foundation, Panasonic has operated its businesses under its management philosophy,
which sets forth that Panasonic’s mission as a business enterprise is to contribute to the progress and
development of society and the well-being of people through its business activities, thereby enhancing the
quality of life throughout the world. Honing strengths it has amassed in the manufacturing industry and
collaborating with a variety of partners, the Company will work to offer "A Better Life, A Better World"
for each customer. The Company will also work to sustainably grow its corporate value in order to satisfy
its shareholders, investors, customers, business partners, employees, and all other stakeholders, while being
committed to ESG activities, such as governance reforms, promoting human resources management, and
solving global environmental issues, as its corporate management foundation.

(b) Measures against large-scale purchase
Panasonic has a basic policy that shareholders should make final decision in the event that a large-scale
purchase of the Company’s shares is offered, regarding whether or not the offer should be accepted.
However, in such cases, there is a possibility that shareholders might not be provided with sufficient
information required to make appropriate decisions, and a concern that corporate value and shareholder
interest might be significantly damaged.
Panasonic will take appropriate measures within the scope permitted by the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act, the Companies Act, and other related laws and regulations, including requesting any party
proposing a Large-scale Purchase of the Company’s shares to provide sufficient information necessary to
assist shareholders in making appropriate decisions, expressing or disclosing opinions or other statements
from the Board of Directors, and endeavoring to secure sufficient time for shareholders to consider the
proposed purchase. Before the Board of Directors’ opinions or other statements are expressed or disclosed,
the Company will set up an independent committee comprising Outside Directors and Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Members and the Board of Directors will consult this committee regarding its opinion
and treat the committee’s verdict with the utmost respect.
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(2) Member of the Board of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members

1) List of Member of the Board of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Consisting of 15 men and 3 women (the ratio of women members in the Board of Directors and Audit &
Supervisory Board Members is 16.6%.)

Share

Term of [ownership
office (100

shares)

Title Name Date of birth Brief personal records

Apr. 1972 | Joined Matsushita Electric
Works,

Ltd. (MEW);

Dec. 2004 | Managing Executive Officer,
MEW;

June 2007 | Managing Director, MEW;

June 2010 | President, Panasonic Electric
Works Co., Ltd. (former MEW));
Apr. 2011 | Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company /

In charge of Lighting Company Note 4 850
and Panasonic Ecology Systems
Co., Ltd.;

Jan. 2012 | In charge of Solution Business /

Director, Chairman of the Shusaku January 30,
Board Nagae 1950

President, Eco Solutions
Company;

June 2012 | Executive Vice President of the
Company / In charge of
Corporate Division for Promoting
Energy Solution Business;

June 2013 | Chairman of the Board of
Directors (current position).

Apr. 1979 | Joined the Company;

June 2001 | Director, Multimedia
Development Center;

June 2004 | Executive Officer of the
Company / In charge of Digital
Network & Software
Technology;

Apr. 2008 | Managing Executive Officer of
the Company / President,
Panasonic Automotive Systems
Representative Director, Company;

Apr. 2011 | Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company / Note 4 1,934
President, AVC Networks
Company;

President/ Kazuhiro |November 14,
President/ Tsuga 1956
CEO

June 2011 | Senior Managing Director of the
Company;

June 2012 | President of the Company;

June 2017 | Representative Director,
President of the Company
(current position) /

President of the Company
(current position) / Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) (current
position).
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Title

Name

Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Representative Director/
Executive Vice President
CEO, US Company

Mototsugu
Sato

October 17,
1956

Apr. 1979

Apr. 2008

Apr. 2011

Oct. 2013

June 2014
Apr. 2015

Apr. 2016

Mar. 2017

June 2017

Apr. 2019

Aug. 2019

Joined Matsushita Electric
Works, Ltd. (MEW);
Executive Officer, MEW;
Senior Executive Officer,
Panasonic Electric Works Co.,
Ltd. (former MEW);

Executive Officer of the
Company / In charge of Planning;
Director of the Company;
Managing Director of the
Company;

Senior Managing Director of the
Company / In charge of Human
Resources;

CEO, Panasonic Holding
(Netherlands) B.V. ;
Representative Director of the
Company (current position) /
Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company / Chief
Strategy Officer (CSO) / Chief
Human Resources Officer
(CHRO);

Executive Vice President of the
Company (current position).
CEO, US Company (current
position)

Note 4

711

Representative Director/
Senior Managing Executive
Officer/

CEO, Connected Solutions
Company

Yasuyuki
Higuchi

November 28,
1957

May 2003

May 2005

Mar. 2007

Apr. 2008

July 2015

Apr. 2017

June 2017

President and Representative
Director, Hewlett-Packard Japan,
Ltd.;

President and Representative
Director, The Daiei, Inc.;

Representative Executive Officer
and COO, Microsoft Kabushiki
Kaisha (now Microsoft Japan
Co., Ltd.);

Representative Executive Officer
and President, Microsoft
Kabushiki Kaisha (now Microsoft
Japan Co., Ltd.) ;

Representative Executive Officer
and Chairman, Microsoft Japan
Co., Ltd;

Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company /
President (now CEO) ,
Connected Solutions Company
(current position);

Representative Director of the
Company (current position) /
Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company (current
position).

Note 4

369
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Title

Name

Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Representative Director/
Senior Managing Executive
Officer/

CEO, China & Northeast
Asia Company

Tetsuro

Homma

October 28,
1961

Apr. 1985
June 2012

Oct. 2013

Apr. 2015

June 2015

Apr. 2016

June 2017

Apr. 2019

June 2019

Apr. 2020

Joined the Company;

General Manager, Corporate
Planning Group;

Executive Officer of the
Company:

Managing Executive Officer of
the Company;

President, Appliance Company;
Managing Director of the
Company;

Senior Managing Director of the
Company;

Senior Managing Executive
Officer of the Company (current
position);

CEOQ, China & Northeast Asia
Company (current position);
Representative Director of the
Company (current position).
Chairman, Panasonic
Corporation of China (current
position)

Note 4

327

Director

Yoshinobu
Tsutsui

January 30,
1954

Apr. 2011

June 2015

Apr. 2018

President, Nippon Life
Insurance Company;
Director of the Company
(current position);

Chairman, Nippon Life
Insurance Company (current
position).

Note 4

Director

Hiroko Ota

February 2,
1954

Sep. 2006

Aug. 2008

June 2013

Apr. 2019

Minister of State for Economic
and Fiscal Policy;

Professor of National Graduate
Institute for Policy Studies ;
Director of the Company
(current position).

Senior Professor of National
Graduate Institute for Policy
Studies (current position).

Note 4

50

Director

Kazuhiko
Toyama

April 15,
1960

Apr. 2003

Apr. 2007

June 2016

Senior Representative Director
(COO), Industrial Revitalization
Corporation of Japan;
Representative Director (CEO),
Industrial Growth Platform, Inc.
(current position);

Director of the Company
(current position).

Note 4

200
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Title

Name

Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Director

Kunio Noji

November 17,
1946

June 2007

Apr. 2013

June 2019

President and Representative
Director, and CEO, Komatsu
Ltd.;

Representative Director and
Chairman of the Board, Komatsu
Ltd.;

Senior Advisor, Komatsu Ltd.
(current position)/ Director of
the Company (current position).

Note 4

50

Director

Michitaka

Sawada

December 20,
1955

June 2012

June 2020

Representative Director,
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Kao Corporation
(current position);

Director of the Company
(current position)

Note 4

Director

Yuko

Kawamoto

May 31,
1958

July, 2001

Apr. 2004

June 2020

Senior Expert, McKinsey &
Company (Tokyo);

Professor of Graduate School of
Finance, Accounting and Law,
Waseda University (now
Graduate School of Business and
Finance) (current position);
Director of the Company
(current position).

Note 4
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Title

Name

Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Director/
Managing Executive
Officer/

CFO

Hirokazu
Umeda

January 13,
1962

Apr. 1984
Oct. 2012

Apr. 2017

June 2017

Apr. 2018

Sep. 2019

Joined the Company;

General Manager, Corporate
Management Support Group,
Corporate Strategy Division;
Executive Officer of the
Company / In charge of
Accounting and Finance;
Director of the Company
(current position) / Executive
Officer of the Company / Chief
Financial Officer (CFO)
(current position);

Managing Executive Officer of
the Company (current position) /
President, Panasonic Equity
Management Japan Co., Ltd.
(now Panasonic Equity
Management Japan G.K.)
(current position);

CEO, Panasonic Holding
(Netherlands) B.V. (current

position).

Note 4

292

Director/
Managing Executive
Officer/

GC/

CRO/

CCO

Laurence W.
Bates

February 13,
1958

Mar. 1987

Sep. 1998

Apr. 2014

Apr. 2018

June 2018

Apr. 2019

Admitted to New York State Bar
(current position);

General Counsel-Japan, General
Electric Company, Tokyo;
Senior Managing Director and
Chief Legal Officer, LIXIL
Group Corporation, Tokyo;
Executive Officer of the
Company / General Counsel
(GC) (current position) / Chief
Risk Management Officer
(CRO) (current position) / Chief
Compliance Officer (CCO)
(current position);

Director of the Company
(current position);

Managing Executive Officer of

the Company (current position).

Note 4

130

- 67 -




Title

Name

Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Senior Audit & Supervisory
Board Member

Toshihide
Tominaga

August 3,
1957

Apr. 1980
Jan. 2013

June 2016

June 2018

June 2019

Joined the Company;

Senior Councilor, Accounting
Center, Industrial Devices
Company of the Company;
President, Panasonic Industrial
Devices SUNX Co., Ltd.;
Corporate Advisor , Panasonic
Industrial Devices SUNX Co.,
Ltd.;

Senior Audit & Supervisory
Board Member of the Company
(current position).

Note 6

152

Senior Audit & Supervisory
Board Member

Eiji Fujii

March 7,
1960

Apr. 1984
July 2015

Apr. 2017

Apr. 2019

June 2020

Joined the Company;
Managing Officer, Automotive
& Industrial Systems Company
of the Company/Director,
Engineering Division;
Executive Officer of the
Company/ Vice President,
Automotive & Industrial
Systems Company/

In charge of Technology and
Director, Engineering Division
Executive Officer of the
Company / Vice President,
Industrial Solutions Company /
In charge of Technology and
Director, Engineering Division /
In charge of Intellectual
Property;

Senior Audit & Supervisory
Board Member of the Company
(current position).

Note 7

120

Audit & Supervisory Board
Member

Yoshio
Sato

August 25,
1949

July 2007

July 2011

Apr. 2014

June 2014

July 2015

President and Director, Chief
Executive Officer
(Representative Director) of
Sumitomo Life Insurance
Company;

President and Representative
Director, Chief Executive
Officer of Sumitomo Life
Insurance Company;
Chairman and Representative
Director of Sumitomo Life
Insurance Company;

Audit & Supervisory Board
Member of the Company
(current position);

Chairman of the Board of
Sumitomo Life Insurance

Company (current position).

Note 5
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Title Name Date of birth

Brief personal records

Term of
office

Share
ownership
(100
shares)

Audit & Supervisory Board |  Toshio April 12,

Member Kinoshita 1949

July 1983

June 1994

July 1998

July 2007

July 2013

June 2014

Registered as Certified Public
Accountant (Japan) (current
position);

Senior Partner of Chuo Audit
Corporation;

Managing Partner for Japanese
Business Network of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
National Office;

Chief Executive of The Japanese
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants;

Council Member of The
Japanese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants;

Audit & Supervisory Board
Member of the Company
(current position).

Note 5

Audit & Supervisory Board March 28,

Setsuko Yuful
Member 1952

Apr. 1981

Sep. 1986

Jan. 2002

June 2020

Registered as Attorney at Law
(Japan) (current position);
Joined Loeff Claeys Verbeke
(Brussels) (now Allen & Overy
(Brussels);

Partner, Atsumi & Usui (now
Atsumi & Sakai Janssen Foreign
Law Joint Enterprise) (current
position);

Audit & Supervisory Board
Member of the Company
(current position).

Note 7

Total

5,186

(Notes)

1. "Share ownership" of less than 100 shares has been omitted.
2.

Y oshinobu Tsutsui, Hiroko Ota, Kazuhiko Toyama, Kunio Noji, Michitaka Sawada, and Yuko Kawamoto

are outside directors.

. Yoshio Sato, Toshio Kinoshita and Mitsuko Setsuko Yufu are outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members.
. The term of office of Directors, which commenced from the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2020, shall expire at the conclusion of the Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders for the year ending March 31, 2021.

. The term of office of Yoshio Sato and Toshio Kinoshita, Audit & Supervisory Board Members, which

commenced from the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ended March

31, 2018, shall expire at the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ending

March 31, 2022.

. The term of office of Toshihide Tominaga, Audit & Supervisory Board Member, which commenced from

the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2019 shall
expire at the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ending March 31,

2023.

. The term of office of Eiji Fujii and Setsuko Yufu, Audit & Supervisory Board Member, which commenced

from the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2020
shall expire at the conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for the year ending March

31,2024.
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9. Management execution of Panasonic group is mainly conducted by Executive Officers.

Title

Name

Responsibility

President

Kazuhiro Tsuga

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Executive Vice
President

Mototsugu Sato

Director, Corporate Strategy Division

CEO, US Company

In charge of General Affairs and Social Relations
Occupational Safety and Health Director

Senior Managing
Executive Officer

Yoshiyuki Miyabe

Chief Technology Officer (CTO)
Chief Manufacturing Officer (CMO)

Senior Managing
Executive Officer

Tetsuro Homma

CEO, China & Northeast Asia Company
Regional Head for China & Northeast Asia
Chairman, Panasonic Corporation of China

Senior Managing
Executive Officer

Masahisa Shibata

In charge of Automotive Sales

Senior Managing
Executive Officer

Yasuyuki Higuchi

CEO, Connected Solutions Company

Senior Managing
Executive Officer

Shinji Sakamoto

CEO, Industrial Solutions Company

Managing Executive
Officer

Takashi Toyama

Representative in Tokyo
In charge of Government and External Relations
In charge of Tokyo Olympic & Paralympic Business Promotion

Managing Executive
Officer

Hirokazu Umeda

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

In charge of Groupwide Cost Busters Project and BPR Project
CEO, Panasonic Holding (Netherlands) B.V.

President, Panasonic Equity Management Japan G. K.

Managing Executive
Officer

Yuki Kusumi

In charge of the Automotive Segment
CEO, Automotive Company

Managing Executive
Officer

Masahiro Shinada

In charge of the Appliances Segment

CEO, Appliances Company

In charge of Consumer Business and FF Customer Support &
Management

Managing Executive
Officer

Laurence W. Bates

General Counsel (GC)

Chief Risk Management Officer (CRO)
Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)
Director, Legal & Compliance Division

Managing Executive
Officer

Masaharu Michiura

In charge of the Life Solutions Segment

CEO, Life Solutions Company

In charge of Construction Safety Regulations Administration
Department

Managing Executive
Officer

Eiichi Katayama

Chief Strategy Officer (CSO)
In charge of Business Development

Executive Officer

Manish Sharma

President, Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd.

Executive Officer

Shigeki Mishima

Chief Human Resources Officer (CHRO)
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2) Outside Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members)
The Company elects six (6) Outside Directors and three (3) Outside A&SB Members.

Mr. Yoshinobu Tsutsui, an Outside Director of the Company, is a Chairman of Nippon Life Insurance
Company. Although Nippon Life Insurance Company is one of the Major Shareholders of Panasonic, Mr.
Tsutsui does not have any other noteworthy relationships with the Company.

Ms. Hiroko Ota, an Outside Director of the Company, as is described in "1) Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members," holds Panasonic shares, but does not have any other
noteworthy relationships with the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiko Toyama, an Outside Director of the Company, as is described in "1) Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members," holds Panasonic shares, but does not have any other
noteworthy relationships with the Company.

Mr. Kunio Noji, an Outside Director of the Company, as is described in "1) Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members," holds Panasonic shares, but does not have any other
noteworthy relationships with the Company.

Mr. Yoshio Sato, an Outside A&SB Member of the Company, is Chairman of Sumitomo Life Insurance
Company. Although Sumitomo Life Insurance Company is one of the Major Shareholders of Panasonic,
Mr. Sato does not have any other noteworthy relationships with the Company.

Note: Major Shareholders: Shareholders listed in (6) Major Shareholders of 1. Information on the
Company's Stock, etc.

As for the six (6) Outside Directors, the Company elects them based on the independency stated in the
Independence Standards for Outside Directors / Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members)
that the Company established, and the policy that the election will enhance and strengthen the effectiveness
of the monitoring performed by the Board of Directors regarding the execution of business by Directors,
from an objective and neutral standpoint. As for the three (3) Outside A&SB Members, the Company
appoints them based on the independency stated in the Independence Standards for Outside Directors /
Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members) that the Company established, and the policy that
the election will enhance and strengthen the effectiveness of the audits performed by A&SB Members
regarding the execution of business by Directors, from an objective and neutral standpoint.

The Company has established the Independence Standards for Outside Directors / Audit & Supervisory
Board Members (A&SB Members) based on the independence standard required by financial instruments
exchange such as Tokyo Stock Exchange. Accordingly, all of the Outside Directors and Outside A&SB
Members are notified to the financial instrument exchanges as "independent directors/audit & supervisory
board members" defined in article 436-2 and others of Securities Listing Regulations of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange, who is unlikely to have conflicts of interest with Panasonic's general shareholders.

[Overview of the Independence Standards for Outside Directors / Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(A&SB Members)]

The following persons are not considered independent.
(1) A person executing the operations of a parent company or a subsidiary of the parent company of the

Company. (Including a person who corresponds to the person recently or previously, hereinafter,
"executing person")
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(2) A person or an executing person of such person who has a major business relationship with the
Company, or a person or an executing person of such person with whom the Company has a major
business relationship.

(3) A consultant, accounting expert, or legal expert who receives a significant amount of money or other
property from the Company other than compensation as a Director / A&SB Member. If the person who
receives such property is an organization such as a legal entity or association, a person who belongs or
belonged to the organization corresponds to the relevant person.

(4) A principal shareholder of the Company (If a principal shareholder is a legal entity, an executing person
of such legal entity)

(5) A close relative listed in items numbered (1) to (4) above (A second-degree or closer relative applies.
The same applies, hereinafter) or a close relative of an executing person of the Company or subsidiary
of the Company (If an Outside A&SB Member is appointed to as an independent Director / A&SB
Member, the person who is or who was an non-executing director / accounting advisor is included in the
executing person).

(Notes)
i) In the items numbered (1), (2), (4) and (5) above, an "executing person" corresponds to any of the

following.

* A Director who is an executive director, an executive officer (shikkouyaku) or a director / A&SB
Member who executes business of a legal entity, etc.

= An employee who executes business, a person responsible of serving duties of an employee who
executes business of a legal entity in the case that the legal entity is an employee executing business, or
other such equivalent person.

* An employee

Also, the wording "recently" shall be assumed to be the point of time when the item of the agenda of the
shareholders’ meeting appointing the person as a Director or an A&SB Member are decided, and the
wording "previously" shall be assumed to be "within the last three years."

ii) In the item (2) above, "major" shall be applied to the case in which the amount of the transaction between
the Company and a person whom the Company has a business relationship, exceeds 2% of either of their
annual consolidated sales.

iii) In the item (3) above, "significant" shall be applied to the case in which the person (individual) or the
organization such as a legal entity or association to which a service provider belongs, in providing a
service to the Company, corresponds to any of the followings. A person "belongs or belonged" includes
not only a partner, but also an associate as it is so called.

* A person oneself who provides a service: Receives compensation of more than or equal to 12 million yen
per year from the Company.

* An organization to which a service provider belongs: The amount of the transaction between the
Company and the organization exceeds 2% of either of their annual consolidated sales. "A person who
belonged to an organization" shall be assumed to be identified based on whether the person belonged to
the organization within the last three years.

iv) In the item (4) above, "a principal shareholder" shall mean a shareholder holding 10% or more of the
voting rights of the Company.

v) In the item (5) above, "A person who was a non-executive director / an accounting advisor" shall be
assumed to be identified based on whether the person was in the position in the last three years.
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3) Mutual cooperation in monitoring or audit by Outside Director or Outside A&SB Members and internal
audit, audit by A&SB members and accounting audit, and relationship with internal control department

Outside Directors directly or indirectly cooperate with the internal audit, audit by A&SB Members and
accounting audit, receive reports from the Internal Control Department and conduct an effective monitoring
through reports on financial results at the Board of Directors and through reviews of the basic policy
regarding the development of the internal control systems and other methods.

Outside A&SB Members directly or indirectly cooperate with the internal audit, audit by A&SB Members
and accounting audit, receive reports from the Internal Control Department and conduct an effective
monitoring through reports on financial results at the Board of Directors, through reviews of the basic
policy regarding the development of internal control systems, exchanges of opinions and information at
A&SB and other methods.
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(3)Audit Status

1) Status of audit conducted by Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members)

A&SB Members participate in the general meetings of shareholders and the Board of Directors, receive
reports from Directors, Executive Officers, employees and Accounting Auditors, and exercise other auditing
authority granted to A&SB Members under the law. Full-time Senior A&SB Members also attend important
meetings and conduct visiting audits to business offices in order to ensure effective audits. In order to
augment the internal auditing functions in the Group, the Company assigns twelve (12) full-time Audit &
Supervisory Officers (A&SOs), who directly report to the Senior A&SB Members of the Company, to the
seven (7) Divisional Companies. The Company has also established the Panasonic Group Audit &
Supervisory Board Members’ Meeting (comprising Senior A&SB Members of the Company, A&SOs, and
A&SB Members of the Group Companies), chaired by the Senior A&SB Member of the Company, to
enhance coordination between the Company’s Senior A&SB Members, and A&SOs and audit & supervisory
board members of the Group companies, for effective functioning of the entire group corporate governance. In
addition, in the course of the performance of their duties, A&SB Members maintain mutual cooperation with
the Internal Audit Department and other departments, which perform business audits and internal control
audits, to conduct efficient audits. A&SB Members regularly receive, from the Internal Audit Department and
other sections, reports regarding the status involving the internal control system and results of audits. A&SB
Members may request the Internal Audit Group or Accounting Auditors to conduct an investigation, if
necessary. Also, in order to enhance the effectiveness of the audits conducted by A&SB Members and to
ensure the smooth implementation of audits, the Company has established a A&SB Member’s Office with
seven (7) full-time staff under the direct control of the A&SB.

Mr. Toshihide Tominaga, a Senior A&SB Member of the Company, has substantial finance and accounting
knowledge, having held the position of Managing Officer of the accounting sections in the Company.

Mr. Toshio Kinoshita, Outside A&SB Member of the Company, has substantial finance and accounting
knowledge, having held the career experiences with a corporate accounting in global companies in Japan and
overseas for long periods as a certified public accountant

Based on audit policies and plans the A&SB developed, the A&SB has received 14 reports from management
to confirm the status of execution of duties. The A&SB has also received reports on the results of audits
conducted by Senior A&SB Members of the Company and other activities, inspected the records of approval
of important decisions, and checked the contents of reports made to the Audit Report System and responses to
the reports. At the end of each quarter and fiscal year, the A&SB checks the Company's financial results and
report documentations on the reviews and the audits conducted by accounting auditors, and compiles an Audit
Report as the A&SB, evaluates the accounting auditors, determines re-election or non-reelection of each of
the accounting auditors, and confirms compliance with law and regulations regarding the agendas of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

The A&SB held total of the 13 A&SB meetings for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, and each meeting

took two (2) hours and twenty (20) minutes. The attendance rate was 95% (Senior A&SB Members: 100%,
Outside A&SB Members: 92%).
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The attendance rate of A&SB Members at the A&SB meetings

Number of
11 N f Att
Classification Name mee mgS umber o endance Remarks
held during | attendance Rate
the term
Senior A&SB Retired on
) ) 0
Member Hirofumi Yasuhara 3 3 100% June 27, 2019
Senior A&SB
entor Mamoru Yoshida 13 13 100% -
Member
Senior A&SB Elected on
Toshihide Tomi 1 1 1009
Member oshihide Tominaga 0 0 00% June 27, 2019
tside A&SB
Outside A&S Yoshio Sato 13 11 85% -
Member
Outside A&SB
uside Toshio Kinoshita 13 13 100% -
Member
Outside A&SB
) ) 0 i
Member Mitsuko Miyagawa 13 12 92%

2) Status of internal audits

Internal audits of the Company cover its overall management, including operations, organizations, and
systems, and include audits of management, operations, finance, and internal controls. The internal audits are
conducted based on an audit plan developed for each of the fiscal years under the approval of the President
and the Executive Officer in charge of Accounting and Finance. In accordance with the condition identified
from the audits, managers of the audit department reports the results of audits to the President, the Executive
Officer in charge of Accounting and Finance, the A&SB, and the departments concerned. The "Internal
Auditing Department" had 15 employees and the "Internal Control Promotion Office" which supervises
internal control over financial reporting had 16 employees.
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3) Status of accounting audit
a) Audit corporation
KPMG AZSA LLC

b) The length of years the Accounting Auditor has served
For 17 years

¢) CPA having executed accounting audit works

CPA having executed Audit corporation

accounting audit works to which CPA belongs
Masahiro Mekada KPMG AZSA LLC
Kengo Chida KPMG AZSA LLC
Masaki Hirota KPMG AZSA LLC

d) Audit assistance for Panasonic Corporation
Working with to assist the above accountants in conducting audit of the Company were 139 certified public
accountants and 115 other people.

e) Policies and reasons for selecting an auditing corporation and evaluation of an accounting auditor by A&SB
Members and A&SB
A&SB confirms and evaluates independency of the auditing system conducted by accounting auditors, its
quality, and accounting fees, and determines validity of election and reelection of accounting auditors.
Based on the thorough confirmation of the above mentioned points, the Company reelected KPMG AZSA
LLC as our accounting auditor for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020.In the event that dismissal of an
accounting auditor is valid pursuant to any of the provisions of Article 340, Paragraph 1 of the Companies
Act, A&SB may dismiss the accounting auditor with the approval of all A&SB Members. In addition, in the
event that appropriate audit by an accounting auditor is not expected for any reason, A&SB shall determine
the content of a proposal calling for dismissal or non-reelection of the accounting auditor, for submission to
a general meeting of shareholders.

f) Matters related to a disposition of suspension of services against accounting auditors
There is no item that falls under a disposition of suspension of services.

4) Accounting fees
a) Fees to Certified Public Accountants (KPMG AZSA LLC)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 Fiscal year ended March 31, 2019
Category Fees for audit Fees for non-audit Fees for audit Fees for non-audit
services services services services

(Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen)

Panasonic Corporation 772 26 738 25
Consolidated 385 14 389 17

subsidiaries
Total 1,157 40 1,127 42

Fees for non-audit services paid by Panasonic Corporation to the Company's accounting auditors, KPMG
AZSA LLC, are mainly paid for advisory services relating to accounting matters for the year ended March
31,2020 and 2019.

Fees for non-audit services paid by its consolidated subsidiaries to the Company's accounting auditors,
KPMG AZSA LLC, are mainly paid for advisory services relating to accounting matters for the year ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019.
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b) Fees to Certified Public Accountants (KPMG Group excluding above 1) KPMG AZSA LLC)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 Fiscal year ended March 31, 2019
Category Fees for audit Fees for non-audit Fees for audit Fees for non-audit
services services services services

(Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen)

Panasonic Corporation - 243 - 355
Consolidated 2,090 497 1,976 539
subsidiaries

Total 2,090 740 1,976 894

Fees for non-audit services paid by Panasonic Corporation to the Company's accounting auditors, KPMG
Group excluding KPMG AZSA LLC, are mainly paid for advisory services relating to accounting and tax
matters for the year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

Fees for non-audit services paid by its consolidated subsidiaries to the Company's accounting auditors,
KPMG Group excluding KPMG AZSA LLC, are mainly paid for advisory services relating to accounting
and tax matters for the year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

¢) Details of other important fees for audit services
There were no material audit fees paid by some of consolidated subsidiaries of Panasonic Corporation to
the accounting auditors other than the Company's accounting auditor, KPMG AZSA LLC and KPMG
Group for the year ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

d) Policy on determination of audit fees
In determining the amount of audit fees, the Company considers matters that include the number of days of
audit, taking into consideration of the size of the Company, the scope and characteristics of the audit, etc.

e) Grounds for approval of accounting auditors’ remuneration, etc. by Audit & Supervisory Board
A&SB reviewed matters including the content of the accounting auditors’ audit plan, progress made in
performing audits, and the basis on which remuneration estimates are calculated. After deliberating on these
matters, A&SB granted the consent required pursuant to Article 399, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act for
the compensation, etc. paid to the accounting auditors.
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(4) Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members (A&SB Members)

1) Policy on determining amount and process of Directors and A&SB Members
(a) Policy
The Company’s remuneration system for Directors comprises a fixed remuneration which is the "basic
remuneration,” a short-term incentive which is the "performance-based remuneration,” and a long-term
incentive which is the "restricted stock as remuneration," based on the duties of Directors. Outside Directors
and A&SB Members receive only a fixed compensation or the "basic remuneration."
The "performance-based remuneration” is provided to boost motivation to improve business performance,
and its amount is determined based on a single-year performance evaluation of the entire Company and a
specific business of which a Director is in charge. The Company has adopted more simple and
straightforward indicators for evaluation changing from the conventional indicators, including net sales,
operating income, free cash flow and CCM since the business performance of the fiscal year ended March
31, 2020. Specifically, the final evaluation is carried out putting a key priority on whether the plan of net
cash provided by operating activities was achieved, together with indicators including adjusted operating
income, net profit, and inventory. The "performance-based remuneration” is designed in a way that the range
of variation is large enough based on business performance. The payment rate of the basic remuneration
ranges from 0% to over 150% (when the standard value is achieved: 75%).
The "restricted stock as remuneration” is allocated for the purpose of providing incentives to pursue
improvement of the Company's corporate value and promoting further sharing of value with the Company’s
shareholders.
In accordance with its purpose of the system being introduced, the "restricted stock as remuneration" is
designed in a way that a Director in higher position receives higher portion to the total compensation based
on the position etc. of applicable Directors. Total amount for each individual is determined by
comprehensively considering different matters such as duties of Directors, balance with monetary
compensation, and others.
(Note)
CCM (Capital Cost Management): A management control index developed by the Company to evaluate
return on capital

The "restricted stock as remuneration"” is a system that a Director will pay out all of the monetary
compensation obligations provided as remuneration by Panasonic as stock investment property, and receive
issuance or disposition of Panasonic common share. Panasonic and each of applicable Directors shall sign a
restricted stock allocation agreement every fiscal year.

Specific details of the restricted stock allocation agreement

(1) Transfer restriction period
The Applicable Directors may not transfer, use as collateral or otherwise dispose of the common stock
allocated under the restricted stock allotment agreement (the Allotment Agreement) (the Allotted Shares)
for three years from the date of allocation or for a period of up to 30 years therefrom as determined by the
Panasonic Board of Directors.

(2) Handling in the case of retirement
If an Applicable Director retires from his/her position as preassigned by the Panasonic Board of Directors
before the expiration of the restriction period, Panasonic will at that time acquire the Allotted Shares
without consideration, expect in the cases of term of office expiration, death, or any other justifiable reason.

(3) Lifting of the restriction period
Notwithstanding the provision of (1) above, Panasonic shall lift the restrictions for all the Allotted Shares at
the end of the restriction period, provided that the Applicable Director remained in his/her position as
preassigned by the Panasonic Board of Directors during the restriction period. However, in the case of term
of office expiration, death or other justifiable reason, set forth in (2) above, if the Applicable Director
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retires from the position set forth in (2) above before the expiration of the restriction period, the number of
Allotted Shares to be freed from restriction and the timing of restriction lifting shall be reasonably adjusted
as necessary. In addition, Panasonic shall acquire without consideration, the Allotted Shares on which
restrictions were not lifted, upon the lifting of the restrictions in accordance with the above-mentioned
rules.

(4) Handling in the case of reorganization, etc.

Notwithstanding the provisions of (1) above, if a merger agreement that will eliminate Panasonic, or a share
exchange agreement or a share transfer plan to make Panasonic a wholly owned subsidiary, or any other
corporate reorganization measure is approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (or by the Board of
Directors in the case that such a reorganization measure does not require approval by the General Meeting
of Shareholders), with regard to the number of Allotted Shares reasonably determined by resolution of the
Board of Directors based on the period from the restriction period start date to the reorganization approval
date, the restrictions shall be lifted prior to the effective date of the reorganization, etc. In addition, as stated
above, Panasonic shall acquire without consideration, the Allotted Shares on which restrictions were not
lifted, upon the lifting of the restrictions.

(5) Other matters
Other matters relating to the Allotment Agreement shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

(b) Determination of remuneration amount
Remuneration for Directors is determined within the framework of the maximum total amounts of
remuneration for Directors which was determined by resolution of a general meeting of shareholders. In
November 2015, the Company established an optional Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee,
where majority of its members being comprised of independent Outside Directors and chaired by one of
them. In response to inquiries from the Board of Directors, the committee deliberates and reports to the
Board of Directors, on the results of internal reviews on the appropriateness of Company’s remuneration
system for Directors. To determine remuneration for Directors for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, four
times of the Nomination and Compensation Advisory Committee, chaired by Outside Director Hiroko Ota,
were held, and the result was reported to the Board of Directors Meeting in June. The Board of Directors
discussed the reported detail, and President, Kazuhiro Tsuga made the final determination based on the
Company’s remuneration system.
Remuneration for A&SB Members is determined through discussions among A&SB Members within the
framework of the maximum total amounts of remuneration for all the A&SB Members which was
determined by resolution of a general meeting of shareholders.
(Note)
The aggregated limit for all the Directors’ basic remuneration and the performance-based remuneration was
determined to be an annual amount of 1,500 million yen by resolution passed at the 100th Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders held on June 27, 2007. The aggregated remuneration limit for all the Outside
Directors was determined to be an annual amount of 80 million yen within the framework mentioned above
by resolution passed at the 109th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 24, 2016.
The Company introduced the "restricted stock as remuneration” system which is an alternative to the "stock
-type compensation stock options" in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020. The total limit amount of
remuneration that is paid to all the Directors (excluding Outside Directors) was decided to be 500 million
yen by resolution passed at the 112th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholder held on June 27, 2019.
(This amount is outside the framework of the remuneration limit of annual 1,500 million yen mentioned
above.)
The total remuneration limit for all the A&SB Members was concluded to be an annual amount of 140
million yen by resolution passed at the 100th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 27,
2007.
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(c) Plan and result of indicators for performance-based remuneration for fiscal 2020
Indicator for performance evaluation and target at the beginning of the year are determined based on duties
of Directors and their responsible areas. The performance-based remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2020 was provided by reflecting the result against the target at the beginning of the year. The list below

describes the targets and results for the major indicators.

(Reference)
(Unit: Billion yen)
Indicator for performance-based remuneration Pl
(previous year/consolidated business performance) .an Result
(announced in May 2018)
Net Sales 8,300.0 8,002.7
Operating Income 425.0 411.5

2) Amount of remuneration on classification, type of remuneration, and its number of persons
Amount of remuneration for Directors and A&SB Members

Amount (Million yen)
Classification Number of Basic Performance-| Restricted
persons . based stock as
remuneration . .
remuneration | remuneration
D}l)r.ectors (other than Outside 9 833 574 136 73
irectors)
A&SB Members (other than 3 80 R0 ) )
Outside A&SB Members)

Outside Directors 5 65 65 - -
Outside A&SB Members 3 39 39 - -

(Note) The above figures include three (3) Director and one (1) A&SB member who retired at the conclusion
of the 112th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 27, 2019.

Directors who received remuneration of 100 million yen or more

Amount (Million yen)
Name Classification Basic Performance-| Restricted
. based Stock as
remuneration . .
remuneration | remuneration
Shusaku Nagae Director 109 100 - 9

Kazuhiro Tsuga Director 186 104 48 34
Mototsugu Sato Director 121 78 31 12
Yasuyuki Higuchi Director 125 74 41 10
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(5) Information on shareholdings

1) Standards and policies on classification of investment securities
The Company classifies investment securities into two (2) categories of being held for pure investment
purpose and for purposes other than pure investment. Investment securities held for pure investment purposes
refer solely to those are held purposed for being benefited from fluctuation in the values of shares or from
dividend in relation to the shares. The Company did not hold any investment securities for pure investment
purposes in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, under the policy of not holding securities for pure
investment purposes.

2) Investment securities held for purposes other than pure investment
a. Examination method of the shareholding policies and its rationality and details of verification at the Board
of Directors, etc. concerning appropriateness of holding each of shares

[Policy on shareholding]
In addition to holding shares of affiliated companies, the Company acquires and holds shares or interests of
other companies, if it confirms the holding is necessary and meaningful to increase its mid- to long-term
corporate value, considering comprehensively its business strategies and business relations with such
partners, among other factors. Such holding is limited to strategic partners which the Company has a close
business relation to.

[Examination of rationality in holding]
For shares other than those of affiliated companies, the Company determines that shareholding shall be
limited to a minimum necessary, and every year at the Board of Directors Meetings, examines purpose of
acquisition and holding each share and cost and benefit with consideration of capital cost, and periodically
judges the appropriateness of holding. Based on its examination result, the Company considers disposing
and reducing the shares if it determines that the holding cannot be justified.

[Examination at the Board of Directors]
The Board of Directors examined the holding shares other than those of affiliated companies from
qualitative perspective such as holding under strategic alliances, holding for further expansion of business
transactions, and holding for stable raw materials procurement which is vital for the Company’s businesses.
In addition, the examination was made from quantitative perspective such as whether return on investment
ratio from shareholdings has surpassed capital cost of the Company. As a result, the Board of Directors
concluded that all shares have been appropriately held.
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b. Number of securities and amount recorded in the balance sheet

Number of Total amount recorded
shares held in the balance sheet
(Stock name) (Million yen)
Unlisted shares 116 23,729
Other than unlisted shares 28 21,237

(Increase in the number of securities held as of March 31, 2020)

Number of Total amount acquired due to
shares held | increase in number of share held Reasons of increase
(Stock name) (Million yen)
Unlisted shares 3 333 | Obtain information, knowhow
Maint d i f]
Other than unlisted shares 1 2 atnfenance anc expansion o

business competitiveness

(Decrease in the number of securities held as of March 31, 2020)

Number of Total amount sold due to
shares held |decrease in number of shares held
(Stock name) (Million yen)
Unlisted shares 7 17,560
Other than unlisted shares 5 4,326
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c. Number of securities per stock name for specified investment and for being regarded as holding, amount

recorded in the balance sheet

Specified investment securities

AsofMarch 31,2020 | Asof March 31,2019 | py)yge of holding, effect of |Ownership of
Stock name Number of shares (shares) | Number of shares (shares) qu?ntltatlve, hOlleg, reason of Panasonic
increase in the number of share:
Balance sheet amount Balance sheet amount shares held Y /N
(Million yen) (Million yen)
Tokyo Broadcasting 4,423,180 5,033,180 Maintenar.lce and. expansion of
Svstem Holdines. Inc broadcasting equipment N
Y &, Tne. 6,652 10,197 | related businesses
Daiwa House Industry 1,530,000 1,530,000 Main.tenance .and expansion of
Co. Ltd housing / equipment related Y
v 4,097 5,384 | pusinesses
3,744,000 4,214,000 | Stabl t of
Toray Industries, Inc. Stab e. procutemeit ot raw Y
1,756 2,979 materials
Renesas Electronics 4,166,600 4,166,600 | gtable procurement of raw N
Corporation 1,621 2,133 materials
Maintenance and expansion of
NIPPON TELEGRAPH 563,448 281,724 | broadcasting equipment
AND TELEPHONE related businesses N
CORPORATION Increase of the number of
1,451 1,325 .
shares for stock-split
KINDEN 740,257 740,257 Maintenance and expansion of
housing / equipment related Y
CORPORATION .
1,181 1,358 | pusinesses
1,388,000 1,388,000 Maintenance and expansion of
EPCO Co., Ltd. housing / equipment related N
1,148 1,235 | businesses
Sumitomo Real Estate 243,000 243,000 Main.tenance fmd expansion of
Sales Co.. Ltd housing / equipment related N
C 640 L1114 | businesses
Joshin Denki Co., Ltd. 292,502 392,502 Mair}tenance and exp.ansion of v
608 1,001 | appliance related businesses
CHUDENKO 200,702 200,702 Maintenance and expansion of
housing / equipment related N
CORPORATION .
442 453 | businesses
Mazda Motor 699,006 699,006 | Maintenance and expansion of N
Corporation 400 866 | automotive related businesses
OCHI HOLDINGS 146,070 146,070 Maintenance and expansion of
CO. LTD housing / equipment related N
N ' 221 173 | businesses
210,100 210,100 Maintenance and expansion of
Nice Corporation housing / equipment related Y
193 187 | businesses
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As of March 31, 2020

As of March 31,2019

Purpose of holding, effect of |Ownership of
Stock name Number of shares (shares) | Number of shares (shares) qugntltatlvq hOldlIlg, reason of Panasonic
increase in the number of share:
Balance sheet amount Balance sheet amount shares held Y /N
(Million yen) (Million yen)
KYUDENKO 58,564 58,564 Maintenance and expansion of
housing / equipment related N
CORPORATION .
171 203 | pusinesses
55,000 55,000 Maintenance and expansion of
MISUMI CO., LTD. housing / equipment related N
94 10 | businesses
. 5.000 5.000 | Maintenance and expansion of
Central Japan Railway ’ > . .
Compan housing / equipment related N
pany 87 1291 pusinesses
KUWAZAWA Trading 167,698 167,698 | Maintenance and expansion of
d housing / equipment related N
Co., Ltd. 79 78 | businesses
Maintenance and expansion of
housing / equipment related
70,875 69,594 | businesses
YAMAE HISANO Increase of the number of N
CO.,LTD. shares for maintenance and
78 g | expansion of business
competitiveness
Fujii Sangyo 49,000 49,000 Main.tenance 'and expansion of
Corboration housing / equipment related Y
P 66 61 | businesses
10,000 10,000 ; ;
ITO EN, LTD. Malr}tenance and exp.ans10n of N
57 58 | appliance related businesses
JUTEC Holdings 46,000 46,000 Main.tenance .and expansion of
Corporation housing / equipment related N
P 45 45 | businesses
55,000 55,000 Maintenance and expansion of
JK Holdings Co., Ltd. housing / equipment related N
38 31| businesses
DAIBIRU 40,360 40,360 Maintenance and expansion of
housi i t relat N
CORPORATION ” o ou'smg / equipment related
businesses
YONDENKO 11,550 11,550 Main.tenance fmd expansion of
CORPORATION " 0 hou.smg / equipment related N
businesses
40,000 40,000 Maintenance and expansion of
e'grand Co.,Ltd housing / equipment related N
25 27

businesses
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As of March 31,2020 ] As of March 31,2019 | py,i566e of holding, effect of | Ownership of
Stock name Number of shares (shares) | Number of shares (shares) qugntltatlvq hOldlIlg, reason of Panasonic
increase in the number of share:
Balance sheet amount Balance sheet amount shares held Y /N
(Million yen) (Million yen)
2,000 2,000 Maintenance and expansion of
Toshin Group co., Ltd. housing / equipment related Y
11 13 | pusinesses
ITO EN, LTD. 3,000 3,000 | Maintenance and expansion of N
Preferred stock 6 g | appliance related businesses
TSUCHIYA 41,000 41,000 Maintenance and expansion of
housing / equipment related N
HOLDINGS CO., LTD. .
S 7| businesses
- 1,112,071 Maintenance and expansion of
Sekisui House, Ltd. housing / equipment related N
) 2,037 | businesses
MISAWA HOMES _ 20,000 Maintenance and expansion of
CO.. LTD housing / equipment related N
N ' - 16 | pusinesses
(Note) "-" in the above list indicates that the Company does not hold any applicable stocks.
Regarded as holding securities
As of March 31, 2020 As of March 31, 2019 . .
Purpose of holding, effect of |Ownership of
Stock name Number of shares (shares) | Number of shares (shares) | quantitative holding, reason of | Panasonic
increase in the number of share:
Balance sheet amount Balance sheet amount shares held Y/N
(Million yen) (Million yen)
Toyota Motor 3,000,000 3,000,000 | Have a right to exercise voting v
Corporation 19,503 19,461 rights
1,000,000 1,000,000 ; i ;
Honda Motor Co., Ltd. Have a right to exercise voting v
2,430 2,995 | rights

(Note) Appropriateness of holding shares listed above was assessed at the Board of Directors Meeting in
March 2020 by the method described in the above (2) a, and the list above does not indicate the
effects of quantitative holding of individual stocks.

3) Investment securities for pure investment

Not applicable.
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V' Consolidated Financial Statements

PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

March 31, 2020 and 2019
Yen (millions)
March 31 March 31
2020 2019
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (INOtE 5)......cccecevrereireriiiiiieeiieeiieree e 1,016,504 772,264
Trade receivables and contract assets (Note 6 and 24).........cccccvevveruererennenn 1,051,203 1,190,620
Other financial assets (NOt€ 13).....cccieiiiiiciieriieii e 148,436 131,305
INVENOTIES (INOLE 7)..viiriieeiieeiieiiieetieeieeesieeieeeereesbeesereessaeesaeseseesnseesnsaenes 793,516 1,016,437
Other current assets (Note 3 and 15).......ccceevvevciieniiiercieeieee e 162,822 150,395
Assets held for sale (Note 3 and 36).......ccccvevvierciieniieiie e 263,354 13,072
TOtAl CUITENT ASSEES. eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaanas 3,435,835 3,274,093
Non-current assets:

Investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 12)................... 306,864 136,486
Other financial assets (NOt€ 13).....cccveiciiiiciieriieie e 215,293 216,225
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8 and 28).........cccceeveevierienenieneennenne. 1,034,632 1,324,374
Right-of-use assets (Note 3, 9 and 28)......c.cccccveviiiiiieniieeie e 261,075 -
Goodwill and intangible assets (Note 11 and 28).........cceceeeeerieniecienceennnnne 620,611 719,557
Deferred tax assets (INOE 14).....cc.oevuiviirirriieiirierieieeeeesee e 290,365 288,538
Other non-current assets (NOte 15).....ccueicierieniniiiieniere e 53,843 54,658
TOtal NON-CUITENT ASSELS. . .ueeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeraes 2,782,683 2,739,838
TOLAL ASSELS......vvevveieeeieiieiet ettt ettt 6,218,518 6,013,931
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PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Continued)

March 31, 2020 and 2019

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt
(NOE 3 @NA 16)..eiiieiiieiiiiieciieie ettt sre e enees
Lease liabilities (Note 3 and 9)........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e,
Trade payables (NOE 17)..c.eevieieeieiieie ettt e
Other financial liabilities (NOte 20).........ccvevuerriirieriieieeieniiereeee e see e
Income taxes PAYADIC........c.evuieriiriiiieieeie e
Provisions (NOE 19)......ccciiiiiiiiieieeiee ettt
Contract [iabilities (INOtE 24).......cccvieiireriieiieerieeieerree e eeesreesereeseraenens
Other current liabilities (Note 3 and 21)........ccceeevieviiiiiieieciiecee e,
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale
(NOLE 3 @NA 36)...uviieirieeiieiie ettt ettt et ste e e sreeessaesebeeseneesnens
Total current Habilities. ........cc.veveriiriirieiriceiee e
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 3 and 16).........cccccvrvvieriieniieie e
Lease liabilities (Note 3 and 9)........ccoooviieiiiiiiiiieeeie e
Other financial liabilities (NOte 20).........ccveeuereiirieriieieeieriieseeie e
Retirement benefit liabilities (NOte 18)......ccccvveviieieiieiiierie e
Provisions (NOE 19)......cccuiiiiiiiiieieeiieeteee e
Deferred tax liabilities (NOE 14).....cccviviieriieieeieniiesie ettt
Contract [iabilities (INOLE 24).......ccccvieiirerieeiieeiieereerreeseee e sreesereesereenens
Other non-current liabilities (NOt€ 21).....cccccvveriririeiiieeiieeiieee e
Total non-current Habilities..........cevverierieeieniieiieie e
Total HaDIlItIES. ...veeeeeieietieie et
Equity: (Note 22)
Panasonic Corporation stockholders' equity
COMMON STOCK. .. .ettetieeiieiitiesieeieetesieestee e ete e e steeeaeebesteesteesaessnenseesseens
Capital SUIPIUS...c.vieiieieciieciieie ettt ettt be e seaesbeenseennas
Retained €arnings.........cvevveerieeiiieeiiieiieesiteieeesiesreesereesebeeneeeseesseeseneens
Other cOMPONENts Of EQUILY......ccueerviriirieriiereeie et ere e
TTEASUIY SEOCK . c.uietietiiieiieie ettt ettt et te e e seeesteenaeeaeens
Total Panasonic Corporation stockholders' equity (Note 30)................
Non-controlling interests (INOtE 32).....c.ccccvvervierirerieeiienieerie e eseee e
TOtAl EQUILY . ...eevietieieeie ettt ettt ettt steeteetesteesteeebesebesseenee e
Total liabilities and EqUItY.........ccceeeveercirerieerieeie e
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Yen (millions)

March 31 March 31
2020 2019
250,620 382,301
64,375 7,654
969,695 1,151,174
212,674 273,817
38,641 55,355
165,746 184,512
95,296 113,649
730,456 812,251
88,605 8,737
2,616,108 2,989,450
953,831 600,750
202,485 8,016
16,316 16,667
221,946 256,289
3,898 6,116
33,404 38,192
6,366 5,686
8,296 8,150
1,446,542 939,866
4,062,650 3,929,316
258,867 258,740
531,048 528,880
1,646,403 1,500,870
(227,957) (164,417)
(210,012) (210,560)
1,998,349 1,913,513
157,519 171,102
2,155,868 2,084,615
6,218,518 6,013,931




Net sales (Note 24)
Cost of sales (Note 7 and 28)

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 23 and 25)

PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method

(INOTE 12) ettt ettt et ettt e sttt esate e e s
Other income (expenses), net (Note 27, 28 and 32)

Operating profit
Finance income (Note 29)
Finance expenses (Note 29)
Profit before income taxes
Income taxes (Note 14)
INEE PIOTIE ettt ettt et et ste et e e e s e sbeenbeeseeseeenee

Net profit attributable to:

Panasonic Corporation stockholders
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders
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Yen (millions)

Year ended March 31
2020 2019
7,490,601 8,002,733
(5,339,557) (5,736,234)
2,151,044 2,266,499
(1,864,381) (1,939,467)
5,298 10,853
1,790 73,613
293,751 411,498
31,360 25,603
(34,061) (20,645)
291,050 416,456
(51,012) (113,719)
240,038 302,737
225,707 284,149
14,331 18,588
Yen
96.76 121.83
96.70 121.75



PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Yen (millions)

Year ended March 31
2020 2019
Net Profit 240,038 302,737
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (Note 22)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans..........ccccccevenincnnenees 5,986 (12,788)
Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive INCOME.........ccvereerveerierierrerieeniesveseeeeas 21,172 (2,608)
SUDLOtaAl.....ooiiiiiiice e e 27,158 (15,396)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations......... (98,944) 9,213
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges...........ccccereennene 8,773 (2,411)
SUBLOLAL ...t (90,171) 6,802
Total other comprehensive income (10SS).......cceevereeveeveenienieennenne. (63,013) (8,594)
Comprehensive INCOME. .....c.eeveeierieriieieeieeieteerieeie et 177,025 294,143
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Panasonic Corporation stockholders..........c..ccoeeveineiininecnncnncnnns 172,443 278,477
Non-controlling INterests........oocueveererrerienininereneeeneerereerenenenne 4,582 15,666
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PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Yen (millions)

Other Panasonic
Common Capital Retained Treasury  Corporation Non-controlling .
. components s . Total equity
stock surplus earnings . stock stockholders interests
of equity .
equity
Balance as of March 31, 2018 258,740 527,408 1,300,336 (168,259)  (210,674) 1,707,551 174,734 1,882,285
Comprehensive income :
Net Profit....c.c.ceerereeeercineeeecceeene - - 284,149 - - 284,149 18,588 302,737
Other comprehensive income } ) ) (5,672) ) (5,672) (2,922) (8,594)
- net of tax (Note 22)... ? ? ’ ’
Total comprehensive income................ - - 284,149 (5,672) - 278,477 15,666 294,143
Transfer to hedged non- financial assets
NOLE 22) oo - - - 382 - 382 - 382
Transfer from other components of equity
to retained earnings (Note 22)................. B B ©.132) 9,132 B B B B
Cash dividends (Note 22).........cccccuecunnnne - - (81,633) - - (81,633) (18,185) (99,818)
Purchase of treasury stock..........cccoeceueeene - - - - (50) (50) - (50)
Disposal of treasury stock...........cccceeeueeene - (105) - - 164 59 - 59
Transactions with non-controlling } 1,577 ) } ) 1.577 (1,113) 464
interests and other.........c..cccocccveiecnnnene
Cumulative effects of a new accounting R R R R R
standard applied (Note 3)......cccccovvrvrunenen 7,130 7,130 7,130
Balance as of March 31, 2019 258,740 528,880 1,500,870 (164,417)  (210,560) 1,913,513 171,102 2,084,615
Comprehensive income :
Net profit. - - 225,707 - - 225,707 14,331 240,038
Other comprehensive income
- net of tax (Note 22)......cccouvvueucerennnns } . . (53,264) . (53,264) ©.749) (63,013)
Total comprehensive income................ - - 225,707 (53,264) - 172,443 4,582 177,025
Transfer to hedged non- financial assets
NOLE 22) oo - - - 319 - 319 - 319
Transfer from other components of equity
to retained earnings (Note 22) B B 10,595 (10,595) B B B B
Cash dividends (Note 22).......cccvveverercnnnne - - (69,979) - - (69,979) (14,654) (84,633)
Purchase of treasury stock.........ccccoeeeruenne - - - - (35) (35) - (3%5)
Disposal of treasury stock...........cccccceeueee - 2) - - 4 2 - 2
Share-based payments (Note 23).............. 127 477) - - 579 229 - 229
Transactions with non-controlling } 2.647 ) } ) 2.647 3,511 (864)
interests and other............cccocccveveenencne > > >
Cumulative effects of a new accounting R R R R R
standard applied (Note 3)......cccccevvrvrunne (20,790) (20.790) (20,790)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 258,867 531,048 1,646,403 (227,957)  (210,012) 1,998,349 157,519 2,155,868
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PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Yen (millions)

Year ended March 31
2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:

Nt PIOTIE oottt sttt seesesae e 240,038 302,737
Depreciation and amOTtiZatioN..........c.ecveereeeieerieneeneeieeeeseeseeeeeee e 372,975 296,041
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use

assets, goodwill and intangible assets (Note 28)......cccccevvecveeienrenenne 91,253 62,775
INCOME taX EXPENSES..c.uvvireeiiiireriiieeeiieeecieeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeenneeeenneeens 51,012 113,719
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and contract assets.................... 62,770 (127,464)
(Increase) decrease in INVENTOTICS. .......cccvverveeeieerrieireesieeeneesereesneesenenns 30,938 (30,270)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables..........cccocvevvieriieniieniieeiie e (85,896) 14,725
Increase (decrease) in ProVISIONS.......ccueeverrrerreerteeuesiesseesreereseveseensenenes (14,020) (65,423)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities.........c.ccoccveriveerirercienirienieennenns 15,938 9,823
Increase (decrease) in retirement benefit liabilities............ccocveriereeenenne. (20,151) (114,614)
Other = NEt (NOLE 27)...uveeieiieeieeieeiesieesie ettt see ettt e saeeaeseeesreenne e (204,909) (150,999)

SUDLOTAL ...ttt e 539,948 311,050
INtErestS FECEIVE....couueiiiiiiieeie ettt 22,052 21,899
Dividend inCOME re€CEIVEd.......ccouvviiiiiiiiiieiiee e 2,273 2,531
Interest eXPenses PaAId........cccvierrieeciierieerieesierreeste e e eeesreeseaeeneee s (34,218) (20,853)
INCOME tAXES PAIA.....vieiiiieiieieiierieete ettt e ee e ennens (99,752) (110,950)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities...........cveeeveeeerrerveerneans 430,303 203,677
Cash flows from investing activities (Note 34):

Purchase of property, plant and equipment.............ccccceeceerierieneereeseenennn (273,920) (316,083)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment...............ccceveeeerennee. 23,104 37,023

Purchase of intangible assets..........cveverierieriieienieieeeeie e (71,368) (82,780)

Collection of Iease reCeIVabIES...........coovvuvviiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeee e 37,187 167,256

Purchase of investments accounted for using the equity method and

other fiNanCIal @SSELS.........ccvierieriieiie ettt eree s (18,732) (29,838)

Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments accounted for using

the equity method and other financial assets............ccccovvevercieneenieeniennnn, 49,132 33,470

Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses (Note 32)............. 48,292 16

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired.............cceeevvrvivincriennnnne. - (500)

OET = TIET. et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeeaeeeeees 209 (1,951)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.........cccveervercrreerreerneenns (206,096) (193,387)
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PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from financing activities (Note 34):
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt (Note 16).......ccecveveieverieneenieeiennen.
Proceeds from long-term debt (NOte 16)........ccccvvveciiniiiniieeienieeeeeeee e
Repayments of long-term debt (Note 3 and 16)........ccccecveeierieniinieneennnne,
Payment for lease liabilities (Note 3 and 16)........cccceevevverienieenenienrenen.
Dividends paid to Panasonic Corporation stockholders (Note 22)..............
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests...........cocveveveeeeieseereneeseenenns
Purchase of treasury StOCK........cccuvervieciieeeiieriieiie et eere e
Proceeds from sale of treasury StocK.........ccoocveviieeiiriienieciiiiiiieseeeeiee
Transactions with non-controlling interests.............cceveverrieereeseiercreenneanns
Other - Nt (NOLE 16)..c.viiiiieiieeiiieiie ettt ettt e e seree e
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities..........c.cceerreererverrennenn
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.......................
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..........ccccceeceeeereencnnnnne.
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 5)....................
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to transfer to assets held for
SALE (INOLE 30)..utieuiieiieiieiieie ettt te ettt e ettt e e e esae e enbeebesaeesaeenseenes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 5).......ccccveverveneenen.
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Yen (millions)

Year ended March 31
2020 2019
105,119 (132,417)
381,461 940
(254,463) (101,274)
(95,087) (8,252)
(69,979) (81,633)
(14,654) (18,185)
(35) (50)
2 59
(410) (2,174)
(3,732) 1,225
48,222 (341,761)
(28,050) 14,150
244,379 (317,321)
772,264 1,089,585
(139) -
1,016,504 772,264




PANASONIC CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Reporting entity

Panasonic Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Panasonic") is a company incorporated in Japan. As a

comprehensive electronics manufacturer, Panasonic Corporation and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

"Company") are engaged in development, production, sales and service activities in a broad array of business

areas with close cooperation between domestic and overseas group companies.

The details of principal businesses and activities of the Company are described in "4. Segment information."

. Basis of preparation

(1)

)

3)

Compliance of consolidated financial statements with "International Financial Reporting

Standards" ("IFRS")

The Company has prepared the consolidated financial statements under IFRS, as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements were approved on June 26, 2020 by Representative Director &
President, Kazuhiro Tsuga, and Director (CFO), Hirokazu Umeda.

Basis of measurement

The Company's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
the financial instruments, the net amount of liabilities/assets for retirement benefit plans, etc. stated in "3.
Significant accounting policies."

Functional currency and presentation currency

The Company's consolidated financial statements are presented in Japanese yen, which is Panasonic's
functional currency, and figures are rounded to the nearest million Japanese yen.
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3. Significant accounting policies

(1) Basis of Consolidation

1) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by Panasonic either directly or indirectly through its other
subsidiaries. The Company is deemed to control an entity when the Company has exposures or rights to
variable returns arising from its involvement in the entity and has an ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control is lost.

If any accounting policies applied by a subsidiary differ from those applied by the Company, adjustments are
made to the consolidated subsidiary's financial statements as necessary.

Receivables and payables, transactions between group companies, and unrealized gains or losses arising from
the transactions between group companies are eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial
statements.

Any change in ownership interests in subsidiaries that does not result in a loss of control is accounted for as an
equity transaction. When control is lost, gains and losses arising from the loss of control are recognized in
profit or loss. Also, gains and losses arising from the loss of control include gains and losses from
remeasurement of retained interests at fair value.

2) Associates and joint ventures
Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control, in
terms of financial and operating policies.

A joint venture is a specific type of joint arrangement under which operations are independent from each of the
investors and the investors have rights only to the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is a
contractual arrangement in which multiple ventures or parties undertake economic activities under joint control
and significant decisions require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method from the date on which
significant influence commences or the Company obtains joint control until the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases.

In the application of the equity method, when accounting policies applied by an associate or joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method differ from those applied by the Company, adjustments are made to
financial statements of the associate or joint venture as necessary.

When an entity no longer meets the criteria for an associate or joint venture and the application of the equity
method is discontinued, gains or losses arising from the discontinuance of application of the equity method are
recognized in profit or loss.

(2) Business Combinations

The identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquiree are recognized at the fair values on
the acquisition date.

When the total of consideration transferred in a business combination, amount of non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and fair value of the equity interest in the acquiree previously held by the acquirer exceeds the net
value of identifiable assets and liabilities on the acquisition date, the excess amount is recognized as goodwill.
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When the total is lower than the net value of identifiable assets and liabilities, the difference is recognized as
profit. Consideration transferred is calculated as the total of the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities
assumed and equity interests issued, and includes fair value of assets or liabilities arising from any contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are recognized as expenses in the period they are incurred.

Non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or as non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, for each individual business combination.

(3) Foreign Currency Translation

1) Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of Panasonic and each of its
subsidiaries using the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Foreign currency monetary items at the end of each reporting period are translated into the functional currency
using the closing rate, and non-monetary items measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising from the translation or settlement are generally recognized in profit or loss.

2) Translation of foreign operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate, while their income and expenses
are translated at the average rate during the period unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly. Exchange
differences arising from translation are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, cumulative translation differences associated with the foreign
operation are reclassified to profit or loss at the time of disposal.

(4) Financial instruments

1) Non-derivative financial assets
(1) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets that are stocks and bonds are initially recognized on the trade date. All other financial
assets are initially recognized on the transaction date.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets measured at amortized cost or financial assets measured
at fair value at initial recognition. Depending on whether the financial asset is a debt instrument or equity
instrument, this classification is made as follows:

Financial assets that are debt instruments are classified into financial assets measured at amortized cost
when the following conditions are both satisfied. Otherwise, they are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Except for equity instruments held for trading, each of financial assets that are equity instruments is, in

principle, designated as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI").
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For financial assets measured at FVTPL, the transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss when they
are incurred. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI are measured at the fair value plus transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

(i) Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
These financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, and interest
is recognized as "Finance income" in profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value
These financial assets are measured at fair value.
For equity instruments that the Company has elected to designate as financial assets measured at
FVTOCI, changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. Cumulative gains or
losses are transferred to retained earnings when the instrument is derecognized. However, dividends
are recognized as "Finance income" in profit or loss.
For financial assets measured at FVTPL, changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets are transferred and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such financial assets are transferred.

(iv) Impairment
For financial assets measured at amortized cost, an assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether or not the credit risk associated with such assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition, and the following amounts are recognized as allowance for expected credit losses depending
on whether or not a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition.
(a) If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
Amount equivalent to 12-month expected credit losses
(b) If credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
Amount equivalent to lifetime expected credit losses
(c) If financial assets, among those whose credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
are credit-impaired
Amount equivalent to lifetime expected credit losses

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:
*significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower
*a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event
+it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
-the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

However, for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, allowance for expected credit losses
in the amount equivalent to lifetime expected credit losses is recognized, regardless of whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition.

Allowance for expected credit losses is recognized in profit or loss. When an event that results in a
reduction in allowance for expected credit losses occurs, the reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities
(1) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities measured at amortized cost and financial
liabilities measured at FVTPL at initial recognition. While all financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value net of directly
attributable issuance costs.
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(i) Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured based on the classification as follows:

(a) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
These financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortization using the effective interest method and gains or losses arising in the case of
derecognition are recognized as "Finance expenses" in profit or loss.

(b) Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
These financial liabilities are measured at fair value, and the changes are recognized in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in a contract is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

3) Derivatives and hedge accounting
The Company utilizes derivatives such as foreign exchange contracts, cross currency swaps, Cross currency
interest rate swaps and commodity futures to hedge risk of changes in currency and commodity prices. These
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value when the contract is entered into, and are subsequently
measured at fair value.

Changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized as profit or loss. However, the effective portion of cash
flow hedges is recognized as other comprehensive income.

The Company formally documents relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company also
assesses, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
Hedges that meet the requirements for hedge accounting are classified and accounted for as follows:
(1) Fair value hedges
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments are recognized as profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
hedged items attributable to the hedged risk are recognized as profit or loss, while the carrying amount of
the hedged item is adjusted for the changes.
(i) Cash flow hedges
Of changes in fair value of hedging instruments, the effective portion is recognized in other comprehensive
income, while the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss.

The amounts related to hedging instruments recorded in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss when the hedged transactions affect profit or loss. In cases where hedged items result in the
recognition of non-financial assets or liabilities, the amounts recognized as other comprehensive income are
reclassified as adjustments to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial assets or liabilities.

4) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company offsets financial assets and financial liabilities and presents them as a net amount only when it
holds a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts recognized as assets and liabilities and intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(5) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits withdrawable at any time, and short-term

investments with a maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(6) Inventories

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is principally calculated on an
average basis. Cost includes purchase costs, processing costs and all expenses required to bring the inventories
to the present location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated selling costs.

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment

1) Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are measured using the cost model. Property, plant and equipment are
presented at the amount of cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes any cost directly attributable to the acquisition of assets, and the initial estimate of the cost of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

2) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to systematically allocate the cost of property, plant and equipment (except for
assets that are not subject to depreciation such as land) using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of major asset items are as follows:

* Buildings and structures: 5 to 50 years

* Machinery and vehicles: 2 to 10 years

* Tools, furniture and fixtures: 1 to 10 years
The depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each fiscal
year, and adjusted as necessary.

(8) Investment property

The right-of-use assets recognized in accordance with IFRS 16, "Leases" includes those that meet the
requirements under [AS 40, "Investment property.” Investment property is held by the Company to earn rental
income. Investment property is measured using the cost model and presented at the amount of cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated to systematically
allocate the cost of investment property using the straight-line method over the lease term (2 to 35 years).

(9) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

1) Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is stated at the amount of cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment.

2) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured using the cost model. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are presented at
the amount of cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, while intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are presented at the amount of cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditures in development activities are recognized as an intangible asset only if all of the following
requirements can be demonstrated. Otherwise, they are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

(i) Intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

(iii) Ability to use or sell the intangible asset

(iv) How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits
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(v) Availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset
(vi) Ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development
Amortization is calculated to systematically allocate the cost of intangible assets with finite useful lives using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives from the date when the asset becomes available for
use.

The estimated useful lives of major asset items are as follows:
* Software: 2 to 5 years
* Technology: 3 to 34 years
* Customer: 2 to 29 years

The amortization methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed at the end of each fiscal year, and adjusted
as necessary.

(10) Leases

The Company has adopted IFRS 16, "Leases" from April 1, 2019. The Company recognized the cumulative
effect of applying the standard at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings for the current fiscal year. Accordingly, the comparative information for the previous fiscal
year prepared in accordance with IAS 17, "Leases" has not been restated.

In the comparative period, the Company determined whether a contract is, or contains, a lease in accordance
with TIAS 17 and IFRIC 4, "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease" depending upon the
substance of a contract at the commencement date of the lease. And in the comparative period the Company, as
a lessee, classified leases as an operating lease or a finance lease based on the assessment of whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset are transferred to the Company.

The accounting policy based on IFRS 16 applicable from April 1, 2019 is as follows.

1) Definition of a lease
Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company determines whether a contract is, or contains, a lease in accordance
with the following definition of a lease applicable to contracts entered into, on or after April 1, 2019.
= There is an identified asset;
* The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset; and
* The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

2) Lease accounting treatment as a lessee
Following the application of IFRS 16, the Company applies the single lease accounting model required by the
standard. In principle, for all leases, right-of-use assets that represent a right to use an underlying asset over
the lease term and lease liabilities that represent the obligation for lease payments are recognized. The lease
term is determined as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option
to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. Lease liabilities are
initially measured at the present value of unpaid lease payments at the lease commencement date discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Right-of-use
assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any prepaid lease payments, etc. Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the lease term. As a result, the lease payments under operating leases that were previously
recorded as expenses when incurred are recorded as depreciation for the right-of-use assets and interest
expense on the lease liability from the year ended March 31, 2020 fiscal year, and are reclassified except for
the portion representing interest payments from cash outflows from operating activities to those from
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financing activities in the statement of cash flows. With regard to short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized, and lease payments for these leases are recognized as expenses as incurred.

3) Lease accounting treatment as a lessor
In cases where the Company is the lessor, the Company classifies each lease as either a finance lease or an
operating lease at the inception of the lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment
as to whether or not it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. If it does, a lease is classified as a finance lease. If not, it is classified as an operating lease. As part of
this assessment, the Company reviews certain indicators including whether or not the lease term is for the
major part of the economic life of the underlying asset.

* In cases where the Company is an intermediate lessor, the head lease and sublease are accounted for
separately;

* The classification of a sublease is determined by reference to the right-of-use asset that arises from the
head lease, and if the head lease is a short-term lease for which lease payments are recognized as expenses,
the sublease is classified as an operating lease;

+ If a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS15, "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers" and allocates the consideration in the contract to each component
proportionately on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The Company recognizes lease payments from operating leases as income on a straight line basis over the
lease term. For lease payments from finance leases, the assets held under a finance lease are recognized and
presented as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the leases, and lease payments from
finance leases are recognized as finance income over the lease term based on a pattern that reflects a constant
periodic rate of return the Company’s net investment in the lease.

4) Treatment on transition
The methods used for measuring right-of-use assets and lease liabilities upon transition are set out below. On
the initial application of IFRS 16, the Company applied a practical expedient for the definition of a lease.
Accordingly, the Company applies IFRS 16 to contracts existing at the date of initial application that were
previously identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, and does not apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously not identified as leases.

Leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17
Lease liabilities upon transition were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
date of initial application, discounted using a discount rate as of the date of initial application. Right-of-use
assets upon transition were measured at either:
* the carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using a
discount rate as of the date of initial application; or
= an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid lease payments, etc.

In addition, on the application of IFRS 16, the Company applied the following practical expedients depending
upon determination made by region or business unit:

* A lessee may account for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application in the same way as short-term leases;

* A lessee may adjust the right-of-use asset by the amount of any provision for onerous leases applying IAS
37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" recognized immediately before the date of
initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment test;

* A lessee may exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application; and

* A lessee may use hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.
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Leases previously classified as finance leases under IAS 17
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the date of initial application were
determined at the carrying amount of the leased assets and lease liabilities immediately before that date
measured under IAS 17.

(11) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In terms of non-financial assets (excluding inventories and deferred tax assets, etc.), an assessment is made for
any indications of impairment on each asset or cash-generating unit. If any such indication exists, then the
impairment tests are preformed based on the estimated recoverable amount of the asset or the cash-generating
unit.

Regardless of whether or not there are indications of impairment, impairment tests of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are conducted annually. The Company has designated January 1 as the
impairment testing date and performs impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives at least once a year on that date. In addition, impairment tests are performed whenever there is any
indication of impairment.

As corporate assets do not independently generate cash inflows, when there is any indication that corporate
assets may be impaired, impairment tests are performed based on the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which such assets belong.

The recoverable amount is calculated at the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or the value in use. Value
in use is calculated by discounting the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit to their present value.

If the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount, and the amount of difference is recognized as an impairment loss
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized for goodwill are not reversed. Other assets or cash-generating units for which
impairment losses were recognized in prior years are evaluated to determine whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognized may no longer exist or may have been decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is estimated, and if the recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amount, the impairment loss is reversed. The amount of reversal is recognized in profit or
loss up to the carrying amount, net of depreciation or amortization, that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had been recognized in prior years.

Goodwill on an investment in associates and joint ventures that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment is not separated from the investment that is subject to impairment consideration as a single asset.

(12) Non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through sale transactions rather than through continuing use. The Company considers the above
criteria to be met only if it is highly probable that they will be sold within one year and can be sold immediately
in their present condition. Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and are not depreciated or amortized.

(13) Income Taxes

Income taxes, which comprise current taxes and deferred taxes, are recognized in profit or loss, except to the
extent that they relate to business combinations or items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.
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Current taxes are measured at the expected amount of taxes payable to or recoverable from tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred taxes are recognized based on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for accounting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpose and unused tax losses and tax
credits carryforward. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences related to
initial recognition of assets or liabilities in transactions that are not business combinations and affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are also not recognized for taxable temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. However, if the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit against which the benefit from temporary differences
can be utilized, if the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxes are measured using the tax rates that are expected to be applied when they reverse, using tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, and if the same taxation authority levies income taxes on the same taxable
entity.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
carryforward only to the extent that it is probable that they can be utilized against future taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and not recognized to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

The Company recognizes an asset or liability that reflects the effect of uncertainty in income taxes at the
amount reasonably estimated for uncertain tax positions when it is probable, based on the Company's
interpretation of tax laws and regulations, that the tax positions would result in a refund or payment of income
taxes.

(14) Employee Benefits

1) Post-employment benefits
The Company operates defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans.

(i) Defined benefit plans

Net defined benefit liability or asset is calculated by deducting the fair value of plan assets from the present
value of defined benefit obligation. The ceiling of the amount recorded as assets based on this calculation is
the present value of any future economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan. Defined benefit obligation is determined using the projected unit credit
method, and its present value is calculated by discounting future estimated benefits. The discount rate is
determined by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds as of the end of the fiscal year,
reflecting the estimated timing and amount of benefit payments.

Service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset are recognized as profit or loss.
Past service cost and gains or losses on settlement is immediately recognized in profit or loss.

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset including actuarial gains and losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income when they are incurred, and immediately transferred to retained earnings.
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(i1) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as employee benefit expenses in profit or
loss in the period during which employees render services.

2) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are recognized as employee benefit
expenses in profit or loss when employees render the related services.
For bonuses and paid absences, estimated amounts are recognized as liabilities when the Company has legal
and constructive obligations to make such payments and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be made.

(15) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has present legal or constructive obligations as a result of past
events, it is probable that outflows of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligations, and reliable estimates can be made of the amount of obligations.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present
value of the expected future cash flows required to settle the obligation.

(16) Equity

1) Ordinary shares
The proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares issued by the Company are recorded in common stock and
capital surplus, and costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity.

2) Treasury shares
When treasury shares are acquired, the amount of consideration paid, which includes directly attributable cost
is recognized as a deduction from equity.
When treasury shares are sold, the amount of consideration received is recognized as an increase in equity.

(17) Share-Based Payments

The Company has introduced a Restricted Stock Compensation plan as an incentive plan for its Directors
(excluding Outside Directors), Executive Officers and certain other officers. The cost of the restricted stock
compensation is measured by reference to the fair value of the shares granted on the grant date and recognized
as expenses over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity.

In accordance with the introduction of the new stock compensation plan, the existing share option plan was
abolished except for the share options already granted. The cost of share options granted under the share option
plan is estimated at their fair value on the grant date and recognized as expenses over the requisite service
period from the grant date to the vesting of rights, with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of
options granted is calculated using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account terms and conditions of the
share options.

(18) Revenue

The Company recognize revenue based on the following five-step model.
Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
Step 5: Recognize revenue when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation
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The Company is mainly engaged in the sale of household products, industrial products, manufacturing devices,
and consumables. For such sales transactions, in principle, the Company recognizes revenue at the time of
delivery, because the customer obtains control of the products and the Company satisfies its performance
obligation when the products are delivered. The Company is also engaged in sales arrangements under
construction-type contracts and the provision of services. For such transactions, if one of the following criteria
is met, in principle, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the progress towards complete
satisfaction of its performance obligations because the customer obtains control of goods or service and,
therefore, the performance obligation is satisfied over time as the Company performs under the contract:

* The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance
as the Company performs;

* The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

* The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The Company has entered into various sales arrangements with customers including a combination of products,
devices, installation, maintenance or other deliverables. For such transactions, the Company identifies as a
performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer a distinct good or service, if both of the
following criteria are met:
* The customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer; and
* The Company’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract.
For such transactions, the Company determines the stand-alone selling price at contract inception of the distinct
good or service underlying each performance obligation in the contract and allocates the transaction price in
proportion to those stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling price is the price at which the Company
would sell the good or service separately to a customer.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer (hereinafter "the transaction price").
However, if the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount (hereinafter "variable
consideration"), the Company estimates the amount of variable consideration and include in the transaction
price some or all of the amount of variable consideration only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company combines two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
and account for the contracts as a single contract if one or more of the following criteria are met:
* The contracts are negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective;
* The amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or performance of the other
contract; or
+ The goods or services promised in the contracts are a single performance obligation.

The Company determines whether the Company is a principal or agent to the transaction for each arrangement
based on whether or not the Company controls a specified good or service before that good or service is
transferred to the customer taking into account the following indicators:
* The Company is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good or service;
* The Company has inventory risk before the specified good or service has been transferred to a customer or
after transfer of control to the customer; and
* The Company has discretion in establishing the price for the specified good or service.
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When the Company is determined as a principal of the transaction, the gross amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled is presented as revenue. When the Company is determined as an agent, any
fee or commission to which the Company expects to be entitled is presented as revenue on a net basis.

If a warranty provides a customer with a service in addition to the assurance that the product complies with
agreed-upon specifications, the Company identifies it as a single performance obligation and recognize revenue
over the period of extended warranty.

(19) Government Grants

Government grants for acquisition of an asset are measured at fair value, and directly deducted from acquisition
cost of the asset, when it is reasonably certain that the Company receives the grants and complies with the
terms and conditions attached to the grants.

(20) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation shareholders
by the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares less the number of treasury shares during the fiscal
year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated with adjustment for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary
shares.

(21) Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments Involving Estimations

The Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements. Actual results may differ from those accounting estimates and their underlying
assumptions.

Estimates and their underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the reporting period in which the estimates are revised and in future reporting
periods.

Items related to assumptions and estimates that have a risk to cause significant adjustment in the next fiscal
year are as follows:

* Net realizable value of inventories ("7. Inventories")

* Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities ("9. Leases")

* Recoverability of deferred tax assets ("'14. Income taxes")

* Defined benefit obligations ("18. Employee benefits")

* Measurement of provisions ("19. Provisions")

* Measurement of the transaction price in revenue arrangements ("24. Revenue")

* Impairment of non-financial assets (including goodwill) ("28. Impairment of non-financial assets")

* Measurement of financial instruments ("3 1. Financial instruments")

Regarding the effects of the novel coronavirus infections, the Company assumes that the impact will continue
for a at least part of the next fiscal year based on recent orders and sales trend and information from multiple
external sources, such as economic, market and consumption forecast, and other relevant information.
Accounting estimates, including "Recoverability of deferred tax assets" and "Impairment of non-financial
assets (including goodwill)," were made under such assumptions and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

More specifically, in the first quarter of the year ending March 31, 2021, an adverse economic impact of
sluggish markets resulting from the lower demand in the automobile and aviation industries as well as stay-at-
home orders implemented worldwide is expanding from China to across the globe. While supply chain issues
in China are improving, the suspension of factories in other parts of the world including Asian countries as a
result of the lockdown has started to affect the Company's procurement and manufacturing operations. In the
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second quarter of the year ending March 31, 2021, depending on the novel coronavirus situation, the
restrictions on leaving home in each country may gradually be eased, and economic conditions may gradually
recover, but in terms of demand in the automobile and aviation industries, these effects may persist. The above
accounting estimates are made based on these assumptions regarding future outlook.

There are significant uncertainties regarding the overall duration and severity of the impact of the spread of the
novel coronavirus infections and any changes in the above assumptions could adversely affect the financial
position and the operating results of the Company for the next fiscal year.

Items for which judgments are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:
* Scope of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures ("12. Investments accounted for using the equity
method" and "32. Major subsidiaries")
* Determination whether a contract is, or contains, a lease ("9. Leases")
* Classification of financial assets ("13. Other financial assets")
* Recognition of provisions ("19. Provisions")
* Recognition and measurement of revenue ("24. Revenue")
* Determination of cash-generating units in performing impairment tests on non-financial assets
("28. Impairment of non-financial assets")
* Assessment of whether or not there is any indication of impairment for non-financial assets
("28. Impairment of non-financial assets")
* Determination of a significant increases in credit risk of financial assets measured at amortized cost
("31. Financial instruments")
* Classification of assets held for sale ("36. Disposal groups held for sale")

(22) Standards and interpretations that have been issued but not yet applied

Regarding major published IFRS standards and interpretations that were newly issued or amended by the date
of approval of the consolidated financial statements but have not been applied as of March 31, 2020 because
the application is not yet mandatory, there are no major standards that are expected to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

(23) Application of new standards and interpretations

1) IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"
The Company applies IFRS 15 from April 1, 2018. The amounts of effects are stated in "Cumulative effects of
new accounting standard applied" in "Consolidated statements of Changes in Equity" for the year ended
March 31, 2019.

2) IFRS 16, "Leases"

The Company has adopted IFRS 16, "Leases" from April 1, 2019 using a modified retrospective approach
under the standard. The Company recognized the cumulative effect of applying the standard at the date of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for the current fiscal year. At
the date of initial application of IFRS 16, the Company additionally recognized right-of-use assets of 307,132
million yen, investment property of 281,182 million yen, and lease liabilities of 636,271 million yen. As a
result, the balance of retained earnings decreased by 20,790 million yen. The weighted average of the discount
rates applied to lease liabilities recognized at the date of initial application of IFRS16 was 3.3%.

The following table reconciles the difference between operating lease commitments under non-cancellable

operating lease contracts applying IAS 17 as of March 31, 2019 and lease liabilities recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the date of initial application:
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Yen (millions)
Non-cancellable operating lease contracts as of March 31, 2019 118,250
Non-cancellable operating lease contracts as of March 31, 2019 (discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at April 1, 2019) 111,637

Finance lease liabilities recognized as of 31 March 2019 15,670

Short-term leases (2,428)

Leases of low-value assets (9,219)

Variable lease payments based on an index or a rate 275,489

Cancellable operating lease contracts, etc. 260,792
Lease liabilities as of April 1, 2019 651,941

3) IFRIC 23, "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments"
The Company has adopted IFRIC 23 from April 1, 2019. IFRIC 23 clarifies the application of IAS 12,
"Income taxes" when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment of tax positions. The impact of the
application of IFRIC 23 on the consolidated financial statements of the Company was not material.

(24) Changes in presentation

1) IFRS 16, "Leases"

In connection with the application of IFRS 16, "Lease liabilities," which were included in "Short-term debt,
including current portion of long-term debt" and "Long-term debt" as of March 31, 2019, have become
material and are separately presented from the current fiscal year. The consolidated statement of financial
position as of March 31, 2019 has been reclassified to conform to this change in presentation. As a result, the
amount of 7,654 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was presented in "Short-term debt, including
current portion of long-term debt," and the amount of 8,016 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was
presented in "Long-term debt," have been reclassified and presented as "Lease liabilities" (Current liabilities)
and "Lease liabilities" (Non-current liabilities), respectively.

Also, "Payments for lease liabilities," which was included in "Payments of long-term debt" within "Cash
flows from financing activities" for the year ended March 31, 2019 has become material and is separately
presented from the current fiscal year. The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,
2019 has been reclassified to conform to this change in presentation. As a result, the amount of (8,252)
million yen for the year ended March 31, 2019, which was presented in "Repayments of long-term debt"
within "Cash flows from financing activities," has been reclassified and presented as "Payments for lease
liabilities" within "Cash flows from financing activities."

2) Non-current assets or disposal groups held for sale

Since "Assets held for sale," which were included as part of "Other current assets" and "Liabilities directly
associated with assets held for sale," which were included as part of "Other current liabilities" as of March 31,
2019, have become material due to business restructuring, they are separately presented as of March 31, 2020.
The consolidated statement of financial position as of March 31, 2019 has been reclassified to conform to this
change in presentation. As a result, the amount of 13,072 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was
presented in "Other currents assets," and the amount of 8,737 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was
presented in "Other current liabilities," have been reclassified and presented as "Assets held for sale" and
"Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale," respectively.
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4. Segment information

(1) Reportable segments
Reportable segments are the components of the Company for which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. The Company classifies and discloses five reportable segments, namely "Appliances,"
"Life Solutions," "Connected Solutions," "Automotive" and "Industrial Solutions."

"Appliances" includes the development, manufacturing and sale of, and provision of related services for,
products such as room air-conditioners, large-sized air-conditioners, TVs, digital cameras, video equipment,
home audio equipment, fixed-phones, refrigerators, washing machines, vacuum cleaners, microwave ovens,
rice cookers, personal-care products, compressors, fuel cells and showcases. "Life Solutions" includes the
development, manufacturing and sale of, and provision of related services for, products such as lighting
fixtures, lamps, wiring devices, solar photovoltaic systems, water-related products, interior furnishing
materials, exterior finishing materials, ventilation and air-conditioning equipment, air purifiers, detached
housing, rental apartment housing, land and buildings for sale, home remodeling, bicycles, and nursing-care-
related products. "Connected Solutions" includes the development, manufacturing and sale of, and provision of
related services for, products such as aircraft in-flight entertainment systems and communications services,
electronic-components-mounting machines, welding equipment, projectors, professional AV systems, PCs and
tablets, and surveillance cameras. "Automotive" includes the development, manufacturing, and sale of, and
provision of related services for, products such as car navigation systems, car AV systems, meter cluster
displays, head-up displays, telematics communication units, switches, sensing devices, ECUs, energy
management devices and batteries for automobiles. "Industrial Solutions" includes the development,
manufacturing, and sale of, and provision of related services for, products such as automation controls, electric
motors, FA sensors and components, small lithium-ion batteries, battery modules for power storage, electronic
components, dry batteries, micro batteries, electronic materials, semiconductors and LCD panels.

"Other" includes business activities not belonging to reportable segments, such as sales of raw materials.

Reportable segments classification has been changed from the four segments of "Appliances," "Eco Solutions,"
"Connected Solutions" and "Automotive and Industrial Systems" to the five segments as listed above due to a
reorganization on April 1, 2019.

The former "Eco Solutions" segment has changed its name to "Life Solutions." Additionally, the former
"Automotive and Industrial Systems" segment has been divided into "Automotive" and "Industrial Solutions."

Accordingly, the segment information for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been reclassified to conform to
the presentation for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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(2) Information by reportable segment
Information by reportable segment is shown in the tables below.
(i) For the year ended March 31, 2020

Yen (millions)

Reportable segments

Eliminations

. Life Connected . Industrial Consolidated
Appliances Solutions  Solutions Automotive Solutions Other . and Total
adjustments
Sales:
External customers.... 5383331 1734,585 924,100 1,449,083 1,076,234 257,957 (334,689) 7,490,601
Intersegment.............. 209,295 177,926 111,564 33,296 206,444 37,461 (775,986) -
Total.ooovrieirien. 2,592,626 1,912,511 1,035,664 1,482,379  1282,678 295418  (1,110,675) 7,490,601
Segment profit (loss)... 55,741 179,779 92,244 (46,637) 4,603 7,561 460 293,751
Depreciation and
amortization (*1)...... 64,569 82,756 37,763 73,849 72916 3,713 37,407 372,973
Capital investment
) W 48,970 45,506 23,959 134,172 56,793 6,587 26,111 342,098
(i1) For the year ended March 31, 2019
Yen (millions)
Reportable segments
. . Eliminations .
. Life Connected . Industrial Consolidated
Appliances Solutions  Solutions Automotive Solutions Other . and Total
adjustments
Sales:
External customers.... 5 531585 1846426 1,000,750 1,486,850 1,204,925 254,816 (322,619) 8,002,733
Intersegment.............. 218,982 189,626 126,920 36,326 217,417 51,757 (841,028) -
Total...ovriirinn. 2,750,567 2,036,052 1,127,670 1,523,176 1,422,342 306,573  (1,163,647) 8,002,733
Segment profit (loss)... 85,570 64,640 94,383 (12,117) 68,556 1,665 108,801 411,498
Depreciation and
amortization (*1)...... 53,454 49,602 24,110 64,588 68,309 3,722 31,909 295,694
Capital investment
49,002 47,218 26,481 150,924 67,266 6,954 32,833 380,678

) N

(*1) Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use-assets and investment property

(Includes right-of-use assets and investment property in the current fiscal year only)

(*2) Amounts on an accruals basis for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(Excludes increases due to business combinations)

The accounting policies for reportable segments are the same as the Company's accounting policies described

in Note "3. Significant accounting policies" except for management accounting adjustments referred to below.

Transactions between segments have been conducted at arm's length prices.
Segment profit is calculated based on operating profit.

The amounts in "Eliminations and adjustments" include revenues and expenses which are not attributable to
any reportable segments for the purpose of evaluating operating results of each segment, consolidation

adjustments, and eliminations of intersegment transactions.

Adjustments to segment sales to customers for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 mainly include price
differences between sales prices to external customers and the internal sales prices adopted for performance

measurement purposes for the sales of consumer products through certain sales departments, management

accounting adjustments to sales prices, and revenue of corporate headquarters, etc.
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Adjustments to segment profit for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 include profit of corporate
headquarters (including gain on sales of certain property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31,
2019), and profit which is attributable to certain sales departments for consumer products. Adjustments also
include consolidation adjustments such as impairment losses and so forth on certain goodwill acquired in
business combinations and share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method which are not
allocated to any specific segments, as well as, for the year ended March 31, 2019, gain on discontinuance of
equity method of accounting for an investment in associate and gain resulting from the revision of pension
plans.

(3) Information about products and services
This information has been omitted because similar information has been disclosed in "(1) Reportable
segments," and "(2) Information by reportable segment."

(4) Information about geographical areas
Net sales and non-current assets (except for Investments accounted for using the equity method, Financial
instruments, Deferred tax assets and net Defined benefit pension plan assets) broken down by the customers'
location are as follows:
(i) Net sales

Yen (millions)

2020 2019

JaAPAN. ..t 3,609,077 3,716,555
AINETICAS. ...evvveiiieeecieeee et 1,442,292 1,529,803
BUIOPEC. ..ttt 720,620 807,261
Asia, China and others..........cooovvveeiiiieieiieeeeee e, 1,718,612 1,949,114

Consolidated total...........cccoveereeiienienieneeeceee e 7,490,601 8,002,733
United States included in North and South America..... 1,345,749 1,404,955
China included in Asia, China and others...................... 754,818 934,097

(i1) Non-current assets (except for Investments accounted for using the equity method, Financial instruments,
Deferred tax assets and net Defined benefit pension plan assets)
Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
JAPAN....oiiciiciec e 1,111,648 1,167,075
AIMETICAS. ....cvvveiiee et 327,239 347,356
BUTOPE..ceeiietieeeeeee e 163,532 177,941
Asia, China and others..........cccoveiiiiiiiiieii e 353,424 392,579
Consolidated total..........cooeeviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaes 1,955,843 2,084,951

(*) Major countries or regions belonging to geographic areas other than Japan:
Americas: North America, Central and South America
Europe: Europe and Africa
Asia, China and others: Asia, China and Oceania

There is no individually material country in North and South America, Europe, and Asia, and others, whose
information should be disclosed separately, except for the United States and China for net sales.

(5) Information about major customers

This information has been omitted because no sales to a single external customer accounted for more than 10%
of net sales.
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5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consist of cash on hand, demand deposits
withdrawable at any time and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less. The balances on
the consolidated statements of financial position are equal to the balances on the consolidated statements of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

6. Trade receivables and contract assets

Components of trade receivables and contract assets are as follows. Trade receivables are classified as financial
assets measured at amortized cost.

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Trade notes receivable.........ccccvveeiiieinnnnnen.. 48,405 67,087
Trade accounts receivable...........ccccuvveeeennnn. 828,954 922,497
Contract asSetS.......cceeuveeeeeeeeirvreeeeeeeiirreeeeeens 186,437 212,527
Less allowance for credit losses.................. (12,593) (11,491)
TOtal it 1,051,203 1,190,620

7. Inventories

Components of inventories are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Finished goods.......ccceecvivienieciieieniesees 456,155 630,766
WOrK in ProCess.......cocvveevveercviereveereesveenenens 111,687 145,294
Raw materialS........coooeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 225,674 240,377
TOtal..ceeiiiiecececece e 793,516 1,016,437

The write-downs of inventories that were recognized as expenses in "Cost of sales" in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 are 50,543 million yen and 53,307
million yen, respectively. The reversal of write-downs for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were not
material.
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8. Property. plant and equipment

(1) Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the carrying amounts, acquisition cost, and
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are as follows:

(i) Carrying amounts

Yen (millions)

Buildings ~Machinery T,

C tructi
Land and and furniture and .ons ruction Total
structures  yehicles fixtures 1N progress
Balance as of March 31,2018 217,998 460,049 402,690 120,847 172,482 1,374,066
Additions, excluding 1,520 21,108 35,257 44,010 198,546 300,450
business combinations.........
Transfers between accounts... 50 37,825 151,360 27,650 (216,885) -
Sales or disposal..................... (2,892)  (22382)  (65,194) (220) (706)  (91,394)
Depreciation...................... - @7517)  (11L,781)  (67.490) - (226,788)
Impairment l0SSes................. (1,604)  (8,162)  (18,463) (1,094) (2,420)  (31,743)
E;‘Ch‘i‘nge differences on 1 (1,403) (1,649) (664) 3,498 217)
oreign currencies.................
Balance as of March 31,2019 215,082 439,518 392,220 123,039 154,515 1,324,374
Adjust tbh licati f
TERS16,. oo - (T sy (97 - (3.530)
Balance as of April 1, 2020 215,082 437,776 389,405 119,066 154,515 1,315,844
Additions, excluding 70 21,791 31,026 37,328 178,635 268,850
business combinations.........
Transfers between accounts... - 35,658 135,802 27,217 (198,677) -

Transfers to assets held for

salo or other disposal (30,169)  (30,979)  (131,906) (14,639) (57,403)  (265,096)

Depreciation..........c.cceeneeee - (45,220) (96,415) (63,355) - (204,990)
Impairment losses.................. (7,664) (22,000) (13,652) (5,361) (2,518) (51,195)
Exchange differences on

foreign currencies................ (1,016) (7.177) (12,437) (3,560) (4,591) (28,781)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 176,303 389,849 301,823 96,696 69,961 1,034,632

Depreciation is included in "Cost of sales" and "Selling, general and administrative expenses" in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

"Sales or disposal" for the year ended March 31, 2019 and "Transfers to assets held for sale or other disposal"
for the year ended March 31, 2020 include a decrease of finance leases as the lessor.
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(i1) Acquisition cost

Yen (millions)

Buildings Tools,

Land and Machmery furniture and Construction Total
and vehicles in progress
structures fixtures
As of March 31, 2018...... 251,063 1,547,677 2,415,561 932,322 174,129 5,320,752
As of March 31, 2019...... 248,393 1,557,136 2,430,427 935,440 157,564 5,328,960
As of March 31, 2020...... 208,164 1,351,954 2,082,855 870,517 74,297 4,587,787
(i) Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Yen (millions)
Buildings . Tools, .
Land and Machmery furniture and Construction Total
and vehicles in progress
structures fixtures
As of March 31, 2018...... (33,065) (1,087,628) (2,012,871) (811,475) (1,647) (3,946,686)
As of March 31, 2019...... (33,311) (1,117,618) (2,038,207) (812,401) (3,049) (4,004,586)
As of March 31, 2020...... (31,861)  (962,105) (1,781,032) (773,821) (4,336) (3,553,155)

(2) Leased assets under finance leases

The carrying amounts of leased assets under finance leases included in property, plant and equipment are as

follows. The Company applies IFRS 16, "Leases" from April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the amounts as of March
31, 2020 are included in right-of-use assets.

Yen (millions)

Building Machinery Tools,
and and furniture and Total
structures vehicles fixtures
As of March 31, 2018...... 1,631 2,496 4,672 8,799
As of March 31, 2019...... 1,742 2,815 3973 8,530
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9. Leases
(1) As lessee

1) For the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company leases real properties (land, buildings and structures), machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and
fixtures, etc. The Company has leases with a wide range of different terms and conditions negotiated on an
individual basis to provide each contracting party with greater flexibility to align its business needs. Extension
and termination options are mainly included in real property leases, and in particular for certain real property
leases in Japan, the lessee can repeatedly exercise the extension options. The Company may decide to exercise
extension options as necessary to utilize those real property leases for business. Payments related to the
extension options are not included in the measurement of the lease liability if the exercise of those options by
the Company is not reasonably certain. The Company has no lease with significant purchase options, escalation
clauses and restrictions or covenants (such as for dividends or, restrictions on additional borrowing and leases,
etc.) imposed by leases.

Income and expenses relating to leases are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020

Expenses relating to leases

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets............ccccceeuenne. 78,626

Expenses relating to short-term leases..........ccceeeveeveerennne. 9,880

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets.................... 5,558

Expenses relating to variable lease payments (*1)................ 944

Interest expense on lease liabilities..........ccceeeervereecieeceennnnns 18,084
Income relating to leases

Income from sub-leasing of right-of-use assets (*2)............ 1,536

(*1) This expense is not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.
(*2) Rental income from right-of-use assets recorded as investment property is excluded.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2020 is 129,553 million yen.
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Components of right-of-use assets are as follows:

Yen (millions)

Right-of-use assets

Real Tools,
. Machinery Vehicles furniture Other Total
properties
and fixtures
Balance as of
April 1,2019. oo, 248,380 38,116 16,478 11,121 1,872 315,967
Additions........ccccveeveecrennne 62,582 14,030 6,597 1,839 799 85,847
Transfers to assets held for
sale or other disposal....... (31,141) (13,202) (2,324) (347) (37) (47,051)
Depreciation...................... (53,525) (14,630) (6,344) (3,334) (793) (78,6206)
Impairment losses.............. (289) (96) (2) (2) - (389)
Exchange differences on
foreign currencies............ (4,212) (1,150) (242) (10) (58) (5,672)
Other changes.................... (5,339) (238) (789) (2,413) (226) (9,001)
Balance as of
March 31, 2020................ 216,460 22,830 13,374 6,854 1,557 261,075

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is stated in Note "31. Financial instruments (3) Liquidity risk

management."

2) For the year ended March 31, 2019
The Company leased land, buildings and structures, machinery and vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures, etc.

under finance leases and operating leases. For certain leased assets, the Company had the option to purchase
the leased asset or to terminate the lease contract and guarantee certain value of the leased asset, under certain
conditions during or at the end of the lease term.
The Company sold and leased back certain assets. With regard to assets leased back, there are no terms and
conditions of the transactions, obligations, covenants or circumstances that would result in the Company's

continuous involvement in the asset.

(i) Finance leases

Future minimum lease payments and present value under finance leases are as follows:

Less amount representing interest........

Present value of net future minimum

lease payments.........

Yen (millions)

March 31,2019

.. Pres
Future minimum

lease payments

ent value of

future minimum

lease payments
7,659 7,654
6,080 5,555
2,692 2,461
16,431 15,670
(761)
15,670
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(i) Operating leases
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2019

Within 1 year.......ccoocevevvecvenieneeieeenne 51,213
Over 1 year to 5 years.......ccceceeereennenne 53,184
OVET 5 YIS ..coeieiiiierieieeieeeeeeeieene 13,853

Total...oeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeee e 118,250

Lease payments under operating leases in the year ended March 31, 2019 was 52,748 million yen.

Future minimum sublease payments receivable under non-cancellable sublease contracts as of March 31, 2019
was not material.

Sublease payments received in the year ended March 31, 2019 was 34,002 million yen.
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(2) As lessor

1) For the year ended March 31, 2020
(i) Finance leases
The Company accounts for certain machinery and vehicles, etc. as finance leases. The machinery and
vehicles, etc. are related to product supply contracts with a specific customer which was determined to contain
leases. With respect to the finance leases, the Company has no gross investment in the lease as of March 31,
2020. Of consideration received from the customer based on the product supply contract, the amount allocated
to the lease component that exceeds the fixed lease payment is accounted for as a variable lease payment and
recognized as income. The variable lease payment recognized as revenue in the year ended March 31, 2020
was 9,023 million yen.

(i) Operating leases
Maturity analysis of future lease payments to be received (undiscounted lease payments to be received after
the reporting period), is as follows:
Yen (millions)

March 31,2020

Within 1 year........cccovevvevieevieniieenens 354
Over 1 year to 2 years.......cceecvveeerueennns 284
Over 2 years t0 3 years.......ccceeevevveennnee 252
Over 3 years t0 4 years.......cccceevevveennnee 238
Over 4 years t0 5 years.......ccceevevveennnee 90
OVEr 5 YRAIS...ceeiiieeiiieeieieeeieeeeeeeeeenns 52

Total..c..oooiviiieieieeeeee 1,270

For operating leases, lease income except for income relating to variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate in the year ended March 31, 2020 was 10,236 million yen. The Company has no income
relating to variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate in the year ended March 31, 2020.

2) For the year ended March 31, 2019
The Company accounted for certain machinery and vehicles and other assets as finance leases. The machinery
and vehicle and other assets were related to product supply contracts with a specific customer which was
determined to contain a lease. The Company had no gross investment in the lease as of March 31, 2019.

(3) Sale and leaseback transactions
Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries carry out sale and leaseback transactions in which they build
apartment homes under a construction contract with a lessor (owner), and subsequently leases back the whole
property from the lessor (owner), upon completion of the construction, to perform leasing management of the
property. Profit of 594 million yen (Sales of 14,412 million yen, cost of sales; 13,818 million yen) was
recognized from the sale and leaseback transactions for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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10. Investment property

Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries perform leasing management of the property that has been built
by them under a construction contract with a lessor (owner), and has subsequently been leased back from the
lessor (owner), upon completion of the construction. The properties related to this business are held to earn
rentals from sub-leasing to individual tenants, and they are recognized as "Investment property" because they
meet the requirements under IAS 40, "Investment property". In January 2020, the Company transferred all
shares of Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries to Prime Life Technologies Corporation, an entity
accounted for using the equity method by the Company. As a result, Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries are no longer consolidated subsidiaries of the Company as of March 31, 2020.

(1) The amounts recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020

Rental income from investment property..........cc.ceeveneene. 30,749

Direct operating expenses (depreciation, etc.) arising

from investment property that generated rental income... 16,334

(2) Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the carrying amounts, acquisition cost, and
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
Balance as of March 31, 2019......cccvvviiiiiiiiieiieeiieeeeee -
Adjustment by application of IFRS 16........c.cccceevuveeennnee. 281,182
Balance as of April 1, 2019......cccoeviviiiieiieicieceeeeeee, 281,182
AdAItIONS. ...ooiiiiiiiiiic e 21,179
DePreciation.........ccueerieriieeiieeieeieeecreeereesreeseeeeeaesneeens (15,163)
Transfers to assets held for sale or other disposal............. (287,198)

Balance as of March 31, 2020.......cccccooevivviieeeeeiiiiiieeeeene -

Acquisition cost as of March 31, 2020.........ccccevveeierienneene -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses as of
March 31, 2020......cccoeiieiiecieeeee e B
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11. Goodwill and intangible assets

(1) Carrying amounts

Yen (millions)

Intangible assets

Goodwill ~ Software = Technology  Customer Others Total
Balance as of March 31, 2018 408,303 77,890 112,347 84,668 55,043 329,948
Additions, including internal ) 38.166 39,039 ) 3.023 80.228
developments......................
Acquisitions through
X S 1,330 - - - - -
business combinations.........
Amortization..........cccceeeeeenee. - (31,002) (27,178) (6,061) (4,665) (68,906)
Impairment losses................. (13,230) (490) (17,268) - (44) (17,802)
E;‘Ch‘i‘nge differences on 735 (110) (1,480) 109 @31)  (1,712)
oreign currencies................
Disposal and others............... (1,391) (1,014) 471 1,863 734 2,054
Balance as of March 31, 2019 395,747 83,440 105,931 80,579 53,860 323,810
Adjustment by application of
TFRS16...oiiiiiieieeee, ) ) ) ) (4,363) (4,363)
Balance as of April 1, 2019 395,747 83,440 105,931 80,579 49,497 319,447
Additions, including internal ) 43.101 28.736 ) 1411 73,248
developments......................
Amortization..........cccceeeeeenee. - (33,744) (32,123) (5,185) (3,142) (74,194)
Impairment losses................. (32,133) (827) (6,567) - (142) (7,536)
Exchange differences on
foreign currencies................ (5,602) (610) (1,938) (2,332) (2,687) (7,587)
Disposal and others............... (36,003) (3,413) 255 (1,785) 167 (4,776)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 322,009 87,947 94,274 71,277 45,104 298,602

Amortization is included in "Cost of sales" and "Selling, general and administrative expenses" in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Additions include internally generated intangibles of 43,643 million yen and 51,857 million yen for the years
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Internally generated intangibles principally relate to software and
technology.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are included in "Others" in the above table and the carrying amounts
as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 are 39,865 million yen and 41,289 million yen, respectively. Since these assets
are mainly trade names that are expected to exist as long as the business continues, they have been determined to

have indefinite useful lives.

"Disposal and others" is due mainly to reclassification to assets held for sale.
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(2) Acquisition cost

Yen (millions)

Intangible assets

Goodwill ~ Software  Technology = Customer Others Total
As of March 31, 2018............ 788,608 396,583 508,352 131,937 115,538 1,152,410
As of March 31, 2019............ 789,282 404,751 541,934 133,150 115,155 1,194,990
As of March 31, 2020............ 707,663 403,481 549,359 127,278 107,557 1,187,675

(3) Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Yen (millions)
Intangible assets

Goodwill ~ Software  Technology = Customer Others Total
As of March 31, 2018............ (380,305) (318,693) (396,005) (47,269) (60,495)  (822,462)
As of March 31, 2019............ (393,535) (321,311) (436,003) (52,571) (61,295) (871,180)
As of March 31, 2020............ (385,654) (315,534) (455,085) (56,001) (62,453) (889,073)

(4) Individually material intangible assets
There were no individually material intangible assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.
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12. Investments accounted for using the equity method

(1) Investments in associates

There are no associates that are individually material to the Company.
The carrying amounts of investments in individually immaterial associates and the Company's share of
comprehensive income of those companies are as follows:

Yen (millions)
March 31
2020 2019
Carrying amounts of investments.................... 129,348 133,183

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
NEt Profit..c.eeecceeeciieiieeiieeciere e 4,884 11,002
Other comprehensive income (loss)................. (440) (751)
Comprehensive iNCOME...........c.coevverervererennnn. 4,444 10,251

(2) Investments in joint ventures
1) Material joint ventures

Prime Life Technologies Corporation ("PLT"), established together with Toyota Motor Corporation ("Toyota"),
is the joint venture material to the Company. PLT is a joint venture in which the Company owns a 50% equity
interest and has joint control with Toyota, who own the same percentage of ownership interest as the Company.
The material subsidiaries of PLT are Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd., Panasonic Construction Engineering Co., Ltd.,
and Matsumura-gumi Corporation, which were subsidiaries of the Company, Toyota Housing Corporation and
Misawa Homes Co., Ltd., which were subsidiaries of Toyota. The principal place of business is Japan. The
principal lines of business are town development and other housing-related businesses.

The following table reconciles the summarized financial information of PLT to the carrying amount of the
Company's interest in PLT. As of the date joint control was obtained, the fair value of assets and liabilities are
under calculation, and the amounts below are subject to change.

Summarized information from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position is as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020

Current aSSetS.......eevvveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnae 541,647
Non-current assets.........cevveeeveerreenieeneeenuennne 613,814

Total @SSELS...euviieeiiiiiiieee e 1,155,461
Current liabilities............cooovvvvviiiiiiciiieeeeeennes 345,950
Non-current liabilities...........ccoeevvieeiiiiiineenennn. 516,109

Total labilities.......ccoevereeeireierierieie e 862,059
EqQUity..cccooieiieeieeee e 293,402
Non-controlling interest...........ccceeeveeevereenenne. 10,289
Equity excluding non-controlling interests..... 283,113
Company's share of equity...........ccoevveenrrnnnn. 141,515
Adjustments (goodwill and others).................. 33,405
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture.... 174,920

- 121 -



The amount of cash and cash equivalents included in current assets was 127,797 million yen as of March 31,
2020. The amount of current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) was
130,120 million yen as of March 31, 2020, and the amount of non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables and provisions) was 475,014 million yen as of March 31, 2020.

Summarized information from the Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income are as
follows:

Yen (millions)

2020
INEE SALES. ...t 311,744
Depreciation and amortization.............eccvverveerceeerierereenneenns (14,143)
FInance inCOME.........cccveiieieniieiieie e 487
FINance EXPenSes.......ccouvieriiercrierieerieeiieereesreeereesseesseessneens (4,523)
TNCOMIE TAKES. .t eeeeeeeeeas (2,086)
NEE PIOTIt ittt eeree s 3,612
Other comprehensive INCOME........c.eeverveerieeiereenieeieeieeeeennes (1,458)
Comprehensive INCOME.........ecverierreerieeienieeriesreereereeseneseeene 2,154
Net profit (at the rate of equity participation)........................ 1,805
AJUSTMENTS. ...ttt ettt siteie ettt eeae et seeeseeeeaeenaens (381)
Company's share of net profit .........ccecceevvveeieeiiienciieieees 1,424
Company's share of other comprehensive income................. (729)
Company's share of comprehensive income............c.c.ccveenee.. 695

Dividends received by the Company...........c.cceeevvervrecreennen. -
The above table shows the information from January 7, 2020 (date of acquisition) to March 31, 2020.
2) Immaterial joint ventures

The carrying amounts of investments in individually immaterial joint ventures and the Company's share of
comprehensive income of those companies are as follows:

Yen (millions)
March 31
2020 2019
Carrying amounts of investments.................... 2,596 3,303

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Net profit (10SS)....eevereerieneeieeierieie e (1,010) (149)
Other comprehensive income..............cceeeeeenne. 5 -
Comprehensive income (108S)...........ccocvevveee. (1,005) (149)
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13. Other financial assets
(1) Details

Derivatives include those designated as hedging instruments.
Other financial assets are summarized as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Financial assets, measured at amortized cost:

Time deposits......ccceeeeeeriierieerieeeiie e eere e 35,028 47,299

Accounts receivable (non-trade).............cceeuveeneee. 64,350 69,083

OthETS....eeeieeiiieeceee ettt 58,134 46,760
Financial assets, measured at FVTPL:

DEIIVALIVES. ...eeoeevvieeeiieeeeeeeeee et 34,410 10,725
Financial assets, measured at FVTOCI:

EqUity SECUTIHES. .....cuveeeieeiieeieerrie e eeieeiee e 171,526 171,319

OIS oot eeeeaea e 281 2,344
TOtAL .ot 363,729 347,530

Current assetS.......ooeveeeeeieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 148,436 131,305

NON-CUITENE ASSELS...uvvviieeeeerreeeeeeeiirreeeeeeeeireeeeeeenn 215,293 216,225

(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

The Company has designated shares held principally for the purpose of maintaining and strengthening
transactional or business relationships as financial assets measured at FVTOCL.

1) Fair value by major issuer
The fair values by major issuer are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
Security names 2020 2019

Tesla, INC. oo 80,897 44,063
Tokyo Broadcasting System Holdings, Inc. ........... 6,652 10,197
Daiwa House Industry Co., Ltd. ......cceevvveevvennnnne. 4,097 5,384
Dalian Refrigeration Co., Ltd. ....c.cccoovveeiiecieniennnne 2,147 2,837
Toray Industries, INC. .....ccoevvvieeiirierieieeeeee 1,756 2,979
Renesas Electronics Corporation.............cceeeenneen.. 1,621 2,133
OhETS. ..t 74,356 103,726

TOtal e 171,526 171,319

Others mainly include unlisted stocks of which the fair values as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 are 64,603
million yen and 85,580 million yen, respectively. The main issuer of the unlisted stocks as of March 31,
2020 and 2019 is PHC Holdings Corporation.
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2) Derecognition of financial assets measured at FVTOCI
During the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has disposed certain financial assets
measured at FVTOCI and has derecognized them principally to promote efficiency of asset holdings.

The fair values and the accumulated gains or losses at the time of sale are as follows:
Yen (millions)
2020 2019

Fair ValUues......couveeieiiiieieieeeeee e 23,335 7,576
Accumulated gains (10SS€S).......cccvercvvercreerveenreennnen. 6,289 5,342

The above accumulated gains (losses) are the amounts before tax. The gains (losses) after tax in other
comprehensive income that were transferred to retained earnings in connection with the above derecognition
for the years ended March 2020 and 2019 are 4,386 million yen and 3,718 million yen, respectively.
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14. Income taxes
(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
1) Major components of, and changes in, deferred tax assets and liabilities

Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
Yen (millions)

Consolidated statements of  Consolidated statements of

financial position profit or loss
March 31 Year ended March 31
2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
INVENtOries. .......ocevveeeeeieeeieeeeeieieieins 53,159 56,169 (1,744) 11,370
Provisions and accrued expenses....... 72,516 92,452 (9,356) (1,729)
Property, plant and equipment........... 85,644 68,995 2,625 11,979
Retirement benefit liabilities.............. 60,100 68,127 (5,497) (34,200)
Tax loss carryforwards....................... 31,608 52,935 7,561 (2,268)
Others.....ocvevvieieieieeeeeeeeee e 78,173 59,874 21,122 (3,391)
Total deferred tax
ASSCLS..eeerrerenienennnn 381,200 398,552 14,711 (18,239)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment in securities...................... (21,808) (20,324) - (8,515)
Intangible assets.........ccocvevveervernenns (44,091) (56,124) 4,519 1,987
Others.....ocvevuieieieieeeeeeeeee e (58,340) (71,758) 1,004 (6,549)
Total deferred tax liabilities.............. (124,239) (148,206) 5,523 (13,077)
Net deferred tax assets...................... 256,961 250,346 20,234 (31,316)

Changes in net deferred tax assets are as follows:
Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets, net at the beginning of the year..............c.ccceevennee.. 250,346 268,808
Amounts recognized through profit or 108S.........ccceeevivienieciiiciinieninnns 20,234 (31,316)
Amounts recognized through other comprehensive income................ (8,226) 8,849
Acquisitions, divestitures and others............ceccevevevienienenieneeieeieeee. (5,393) 4,005
Deferred tax assets, net at the end of the year................ccoceerreiennnnnn. 256,961 250,346

2) Deductible temporary differences, tax loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards for which deferred tax
assets are not recognized

In recognizing deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is probable that part or all of deductible
temporary differences, tax loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards can be deducted against future
taxable profits and income taxes. The ultimate recoverability of deferred tax assets is determined based on the
level of taxable profits during the period in which temporary differences, tax loss carryforwards and tax credit
carryforwards are deductible. In this determination, the Company takes into account the expected periods in
which deferred tax liabilities will be realized, projection of future taxable profits and tax planning
opportunities. Based on the level of taxable profits in the past and projection of taxable profits during the future
periods in which deferred tax assets are deductible, the Company believes that it is probable that deferred tax
assets recognized as of March 31, 2020 will be realized. As a result of the assessment of recoverability, the
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Company has not recognized deferred tax assets for certain deductible temporary differences, tax loss
carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards.

The amounts of the deductible temporary differences, tax loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards for
which deferred tax assets are not recognized are as set out below. The amounts of tax loss carryforwards for
which deferred tax assets are not recognized decreased mainly due to certain subsidiaries joining the
consolidated tax-return group in Japan for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
Deductible temporary differences..........coocevereverervenienneeieienienine 523,689
Tax loss carryforwards of which:
expire in the years ending from March 31, 2021 through 2030........ 235,401
expire thereafter or do NOt EXPIre........cccvevvverieeiierienieneee e 141,040
TOAL .ttt 376,441
Tax credit carryforwards.........c.ocvevveriereeniieniieiieieieee e 24,600

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2019
Deductible temporary differences...........ccoceverererervenienneenieienienine 533,816
Tax loss carryforwards of which:
expire in the years ending from March 31, 2020 through 2029........ 1,145,431
expire thereafter or do NOt EXPITe..........cccvvveviieriierieerieeieeree e 84,529
TOtAL i 1,229,960
Tax credit carryforwards.........c.cceevverierieeniierieiieieieee e 23,008

The Company applies the consolidated tax-return system in Japan. The above amounts do not include tax loss
carryforwards related to local taxes (inhabitant tax and enterprise tax), as they are not covered by the
consolidated tax-return system. The amounts of tax loss carryforwards related to local tax for which deferred
tax assets are not recognized, are 320,099 million yen (inhabitant tax) and 1,377,818 million yen (enterprise
tax) as of March 31, 2020, expiring from the year ending March 31, 2021 through 2030, and 114,126 million
yen (inhabitant tax) and 487,989 million yen (enterprise tax) as of March 31, 2019, expiring from the year
ending March 31, 2020 through 2029.

3) Taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, etc. for which deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the taxable temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, while recognized deferred tax liabilities are included in Deferred tax liabilities - Others.

The total amount of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates
for which deferred tax liabilities are not recognized was 449,805 million yen and 346,356 million yen as of
March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amount as of March 31, 2020 includes the taxable temporary
differences which arose from the investment in Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd., Panasonic Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd, Matsumura-Gumi Corporation, and their subsidiaries through remeasurement of the
retained interests in the former subsidiaries at fair value at the date of the establishment of a joint venture for
town development together with Toyota Motor Corporation.
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(2) Income tax expenses

1) The components of income tax expenses recognized in the consolidated statements of profit or loss are as

follows:
Yen (millions)
2020 2019
CUITENt tAX EXPEISES. .veeeruerrerrurrrerrrreeeireeeanreeennreesssseeesanneesssees 71,246 82,403
Deferred tax expenses:
Temporary differences originated and reversed....................... (300) 70,610
Changes in recognition of deferred tax assets............ccccceennenne. (19,934) (39,294)
TOtAL e (20,234) 31,316
Income tax eXpenses tOtal...........cvevevevvrverireererieererieeeeeeeverennas 51,012 113,719

Current tax expenses include the amount of benefits arising from tax losses, tax credits or temporary
differences, for which deferred tax assets were not recognized in prior periods. These effects decreased current
tax expenses by 32,713 million yen and 6,118 million yen for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Additionally, included in current tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2020 is an income
tax benefit of Panasonic Corporation on consolidation, which is as a result of the write-off of the Company's
loan to MT Picture Display Co., Ltd (MTPD) as part of the liquidation procedures of MTPD.

Deferred tax expenses include the amount of benefits arising from tax losses, tax credits or temporary
differences, for which deferred tax assets were not recognized in prior periods. These effects, which include
those due to the recognition of a deferred tax asset for the deductible temporary differences in investments due
to the resolution to transfer the Company's semiconductor business for the year ended March 31, 2020, and
which include those due to certain subsidiaries joining the consolidated tax-return group in Japan for the year
ended March 31, 2019, decreased deferred tax expenses by 28,717 million yen and 41,281 million yen for the
years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, the effect of amendments to corporate tax
law decreased deferred tax expenses by 741 million yen for the year ended March 31, 2020.

2) Reconciliation of effective tax rates
Panasonic is subject mainly to corporate tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise tax, and the combined statutory tax
rate calculated based on these taxes was 30.4%. Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of their
respective jurisdictions.
Panasonic and certain of its subsidiaries have applied a consolidated tax-return system.

Differences between the combined statutory tax rates and the effective tax rates are as follows:

%
2020 2019
Combined statutory tax TateS......c.cecveecreerrieererierieeeriresreenreenenens 30.4% 30.4%
Effects of lower tax rates in foreign jurisdictions..................... (4.9) (3.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes..........ccceeeveeeveerveenne. 1.2 0.9
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets..........c..cccveeeuvenenen. 12.6 (4.0)
Effects attributable to investments in subsidiaries, etc............. (21.8) 2.3
GOoodWill IMPAITMENT......eccviriirieiieieeie ettt 33 1.0
Effects of amendments to corporate tax law............cceevverueennene (0.3) -
(011 1<) ¢ USRS (3.0 (0.1)
EffeCtive taX TAES.....c.cviviivereeieieteee ettt 17.5% 27.3%
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15. Other assets

Components of other assets are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Advance payments...........c.ccueeeeerirecnieeneenennn 25,793 19,922
Prepaid eXpenses........ccveeveeeenieniieienienieeiennes 33,821 41,262
Income taxes receivable...........cccovvveveiiiennnen.. 51,975 38,064
Retirement benefit assets........cccccevevevvennnennen. 14,318 13,638
Others (F1)..eeeeeeereereeeeeeeeeeee e 90,758 92,167
TOtAL it 216,665 205,053
Current asSets......c.eevveenvieneernieenieeneeenieens 162,822 150,395
Non-current assetS.........coceeevveeeeeeeiirvveeeeennn. 53,843 54,658

(*1) As described in Note "3. Significant accounting policies (24) Change in presentation," the amount of
13,072 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was presented in "Other currents assets," has been
reclassified and presented as "Assets held for sale."
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16. Short-term debt and long-term debt

(1) Details

Short-term debt and long-term debt are measured at amortized cost. The details of short-term debt and long-
term debt are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
Book value A;/aetrea%;) ;n(t: ﬁSt Due
Current liabilities :
Short-term bonds............cooevvveiiiiiiiineiieeeienns 191,000 0.0% -
Short-term borrowings...........cceevveervveeveeannen. 32,012 3.6% -
Current portion of long-term borrowings....... 27,608 1.5% -
Total current liabilities..............cooeuvvveeeinnnnn. 250,620 - -
Non-current liabilities :
BONAS (2). oo 949,979 ; Year ended March 31,
Long-term borrowings..........c.cccecvevveeriveenennn 3,852 2.0% Year 26351;({ 1;/{)212r7c h31,
Total non-current liabilities..........cccccoeeeennns 953,831 - -
Total...ceeeerieicerecc e 1,204,451 - -
Yen (millions)
March 31, 2019
Book value Avrzrtig(e%l)l)lt:;est Due
Current liabilities :
Current portion of bonds *2..........ccccccvveveennne 249,895 - -
Short-term bonds..........ccveveeoerierieineirenene 104,000 (0.0%) -
Short-term borrowings...........cceeevevvereevennnene 21,289 8.2% -
Current portion of long-term borrowings....... 7,117 1.3% -
Total current liabilities.............cooeevviieiinnns 382,301 - -
Non-current liabilities :
BONAS *2...eoeoeoeoeeseseeeee e 579,023 . Year ended March 31,
Long-term borrowings...........cceeeeeveeevereeennnnns 21,727 1.6% Year ggg f(} Ig%azr;:h 31,
Total non-current liabilities..........cccoeeeeennnn. 600,750 - -
TOtal..c.eeieie 983,051 - -

(*1) Average interest rate refers to the weighted average interest rate on the ending balance.

(*2) The contractual terms of the bonds are as follows:
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Yen (millions)

March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 Imer(izt) rate (Yegﬁlded

March 31)
12th Unsecured Straight bond - 220,000 0.387% 2020
13th Unsecured Straight bond 80,000 80,000 0.568% 2022
14th Unsecured Straight bond 100,000 100,000 0.934% 2025
15th Unsecured Straight bond 200,000 200,000 0.19% 2022
16th Unsecured Straight bond 70,000 70,000 0.3% 2024
17th Unsecured Straight bond 130,000 130,000 0.47% 2027
USD-denominated senior notes due 2022 (*3) 108,130 - 2.536% 2023
USD-denominated senior notes due 2024 (*3) 108,130 - 2.679% 2025
USD-denominated senior notes due 2029 (*3) 54,065 - 3.113% 2030
18th Unsecured Straight bond 30,000 - 0.23% 2026
19th Unsecured Straight bond 70,000 - 0.37% 2030
e g o Orgal IR

(*3) The Company utilizes cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge risk of changes in currency associated
with the USD-denominated senior notes. With the cross-currency interest rate swaps, USD-denominated
fixed interest rate are exchanged with JPY-denominated fixed interest rate and each rate is as follows:

USD-denominated senior notes due 2022 0.1613%

USD-denominated senior notes due 2024  0.2369%

USD-denominated senior notes due 2029  0.5034%
The cross-currency interest rate swaps are designated as hedging instruments and the effects of hedge
accounting are described in Note "31. Financial instruments (5) Derivatives and hedge accounting."
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(2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

Yen (millions)

Other

Short t L Derivati
ort term Borrowings Bonds . e?a.s$: financial CHVAtVeS — Total
bonds liabilities C (*1)
liabilities
Bolanceasof March 31, 104000 50,133 828918 15670 40,883 - 1,039,604
Adjustment by application
OF TFRS 16..vvvrreerrreon - - - 636271 - - 636271
Balance as of April 1,2019 104,000 50,133 828,918 651,941 40,883 - 1,675,875
Cash inflow (outflow)........ 87,000 24,792 118,759  (95,087)  (2,483) - 132,981
Non-cash changes:
New leases, etc............... - - - 113,149 - - 113,149
Acquisitions and
divestitures................... B (9’877) B (3615010) B B (370’887)
Foreign currency
exchange differences.... - (2,511) 1750 (4,228) (391) - (5,380)
Other changes.............. ; 935 552 (37,905) (3)  (17,423) (53,844)
Balanceas of March 31, 191 000 63472 949,979 266860 38006  (17.423)1491,894

(*1) Derivatives are held for hedging currency risk associated with the USD-denominated senior notes.

Yen (millions)

Other
Short term . Lease .
Borrowings Bonds C financial Total
bonds liabilities e
liabilities
B;éﬁ‘écea”fMarCh“ ________ 240,000 50,108 928,571 20,765 42,423 1,281,867
Cash inflow (outflow)........... (136,000) 3,249 (100,000) (8,252) (1243) (242,246
Non-cash changes:
Acquisitions and ) ) ) ) ) )
divestitures............couee...
Foreign currency
exchange differences....... ) (2:432) ) ) (590) (3,022)
Other changes.................... - (792) 347 3,157 293 3,005
Bza(lﬁgce as of March 31, 104,000 50,133 828,918 15,670 40,883 1,039,604

(3) Assets pledged as collateral for liabilities

As is customary in Japan, short-term and long-term bank loans are made under general agreements which
provide that security and guarantees for future and present indebtedness will be given upon request of the bank,
and that the bank shall have the right, when the obligations become due, or in the event of their default, to
offset cash deposits against such obligations due to the bank.

Each of the loan agreements grants the lender the right to request additional security or mortgages on certain
assets.

Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 are not material.
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17. Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at amortized cost. Components of trade payables are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Trade notes payable...........ccceeevveeerieniennns 223,656 265,769
Trade accounts payable............ccoeeveevrnee. 746,039 885,405
Total..cooieeeec e 969,695 1,151,174

18. Employee benefits

(1) Defined benefit plans

Panasonic and certain subsidiaries have contributory, funded defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all employees who meet eligibility requirements. Benefits under the plans are primarily calculated
based on the combination of years of service and compensation.

Pursuant to the Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Act of Japan, the Company is required to make contributions
to the Panasonic Corporate Pension Fund that operates the corporate pension plan (hereinafter the "Fund") and
has other obligations. Directors of the Fund are required to comply with laws and regulations, directives of the
Minister of Health, Labor and Welfare or the Director General of each Regional Bureau of Health and Welfare
under laws and regulations, rules of the Fund and resolutions of the board of representatives, and to be faithful in
the performance of their duties for the Fund. In addition, it is specified that the directors shall not perform any
act that impairs the appropriateness of management and operation of reserve funds to be applied to benefit
payments (hereinafter "reserve funds") for the benefit of themselves or a third party and that the directors shall
assume collective responsibility for the Fund when a director fails to fulfill his or her duties in the Fund’s
activities related to the management and operation of reserve funds.

The Fund is an entity legally independent of the Company. Its board of representatives evenly consists of
representatives appointed by the employer (appointed representatives) and representatives elected by employees
(co-opted representatives). While decisions of the board of representatives shall be made by a majority of the
representatives present, in the case of a tie, the president, who is the chairperson, has authorization to make a
decision. However, it is specified that decisions on particularly important matters shall be made by a majority
exceeding the above.

The management of reserve funds is conducted by a managing trustee in accordance with contractual terms and
conditions provided for by the investment management rules on which resolution was passed by the board of
representatives. The Fund fulfills its obligations to manage reserve funds safely and efficiently by developing
basic policies for operation, producing operation guidelines in conformity to the basic policies and delivering
them to the managing trustee, and other means.

The Company continues to have an obligation to make contributions set forth by the Fund to the reserve funds in
the future. The amount of contributions is regularly reviewed to the extent permitted by laws and regulations.

In addition to the above pension plan, employees are eligible for lump-sum retirement payments based on salary
and service years at the time of the retirement for a reason other than dismissal. In the case of retirement at the
Company’s request or due to death, the amount of benefits exceeds the amount of benefits in the case of
voluntary retirement. For this lump-sum retirement payment plan, external funding is not used.
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Effective April 1, 2002, Panasonic and some of the subsidiaries amended their benefit pension plans by
introducing a "point-based benefits system," and changing their lump-sum payment plans to cash balance
pension plans. Under the point-based benefits system, benefits are calculated based on accumulated points
allocated to employees each year according to their job hierarchy and years of service. Under the cash balance
pension plans, each participant has an account which is credited yearly based on the current rate of pay and
market-related interest rate.

Effective July 1, 2013, Panasonic and certain domestic subsidiaries made a transition from the defined benefit
pension plan to a defined contribution pension plan with respect to employees' future service.

In addition, effective July 1, 2019, Panasonic and certain domestic subsidiaries made a transition of parts of the
benefit obligations for certain groups of employees attributable to their past service prior to June 30, 2013 in the
defined benefit pension plan to the defined contribution pension plan. As the conditions for settlement
accounting related to the above transition were met, the effect of transition to the defined contribution pension
plan was recognized during the year ended March 31, 2019 as described in Note "27. Other income (expenses)."

Effective July 1, 2020, Panasonic Corporate Pension Fund plans to change its management form and transfer
from a fund-type corporate pension fund to a contract-type corporate pension fund.

(i) Present value of defined benefit obligations

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Beginning balance............ccooceeeevienieenieeiienieesieene 2,160,880 2,289,305
SEIVICE COSt..vnviiiiiiiiiiitiieeecee ettt 9,095 10,146
INterest COSt....ovuviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 10,812 18,269
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations:
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions.............cccceevenne.. (506) 3,427
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions...........c.ccceceeeeveereennenne. (27,069) 33,473
OtheT...coieiieeieeeee e 1,633 1,238
Benefits paid........cccceeieveeiinienieeeeeeee e (111,259) (115,456)
Foreign currency exchange differences................. (7,061) 1,575
Past SETVICE COSL....vivuieniiriiriiniieriieteeie e - 565
SEtIEMENTS.....veeveeeeieiieieeie ettt (415,334) (81,662)
Effect of business combinations and disposals...... (49,295) -
Ending balance.........cccccvevveiinienienieieeeeeeee 1,571,896 2,160,830

Service cost is included in "Cost of sales" and "Selling, general and administrative expenses" in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Interest cost is included in "Finance expenses" in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Past service cost and settlement are included in "Other income (expenses), net" in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss. Settlements for the year ended March 31, 2019 include the effect of for the transition to the
defined contribution plan effective July 1, 2019 as noted above. Settlements for the year ended March 31,
2020 include the effect of transferred obligations of 410,425 million yen, which were transferred to the
defined contribution pension plan from the Panasonic Corporate Pension Fund effective July 1, 2019.
Excluding the portion of defined benefit obligations transferred to the defined contribution pension plan from
the Panasonic Corporate Pension Fund effective July 1, 2019, the weighted average duration of defined
benefit obligations as of March 31, 2019 is 12 years.

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations as of March 31, 2020 is 12 years.
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Significant actuarial assumptions used to calculate the present value of defined benefit obligations are as
follows:
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

DiSCOUNTE TALE.....eeiiiiieiiiieee e 0.8% 0.6%

Discount rate at March 31, 2019 was calculated on the basis that the amount of the transferred contributions to
the defined contribution pension plan on July 1, 2019 is excluded. Discount rate for such amount to be
transferred is 0.0%.

The effect of 0.5% change in the discount rate on the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows,
holding other assumptions constant.

Yen (millions)

Effect on the present value of defined benefit obligations

Change in an assumption March 31,2020 March 31,2019
0.5% increase.........cceevveeenennne. 80,105 (decrease) 93,657 (decrease)
0.5% decrease........cccceceeveneeee. 86,951 (increase) 98,488 (increase)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, any change in other
assumptions may affect the sensitivity analysis.

(i1) Fair value of plan assets

Each plan of the Company has a different investment policy, which is designed to ensure sufficient plan assets
are available to provide future payments of pension benefits to the eligible plan participants and is
individually monitored for compliance and appropriateness on an on-going basis. Considering the expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets, each plan of the Company establishes a "basic" portfolio comprised of
the optimal combination of equity instruments and debt instruments. Plan assets are invested in individual
equity and debt instruments using the guidelines of the "basic" portfolio in order to generate a total return that
will satisfy the expected return on a mid- to long-term basis. The Company evaluates the difference between
expected return and actual return of invested plan assets on an annual basis to determine if such differences
necessitate a revision in the formulation of the "basic" portfolio. The Company revises the "basic" portfolio
when and to the extent considered necessary to achieve the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.

The Company's pension plan assets allocation is approximately 25% for equity instruments, approximately
45% for debt instruments, and approximately 30% for other investments, primarily in life insurance company
general accounts.

For the Company's major defined benefit pension plans, equity instruments are mainly investments in listed
equity securities and are widely diversified, including Japanese equity, developed international equity and
equity in emerging markets. The investments in debt instruments are comprised primarily of government,
municipal, and corporate bonds. The Company mainly chooses debt securities with rating above BBB, high
liquidity and appropriate repayment terms, and has appropriately diversified the investments by sector and
geography. Regarding investments in life insurance company general accounts, the contracts with the
insurance companies include a guaranteed interest rate and return of capital. Other investments include fund-
of-funds investments, equity long/short hedge fund investments and private equity investments. Fund-of-funds
investments and equity long/short hedge fund investments are primarily invested in listed equity securities
with trading frequency and a stable return, while private equity investments are diversified products with low
correlation.
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Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Beginning balance..............cccoeevvvriiercieiiieeiieeneene 1,924,857 1,959,575
Interest iNCOME........coouvvvieeieeieiieeeeeeeeee e 9,868 16,005
Remeasurements of plan assets:

Return on plan assets.........ccceeeveeveeerveeereeenieesneenne (17,618) 19,926
Employer contributions...........cceeeeeeveecieneeneeieennnne 27,233 40,734
Benefits paid.........ccceceeviiviiniiiiiicncceeeeeee e (110,372) (112,377)
Foreign currency exchange differences................... (6,883) 994
SEtEMENTS.....eeveeeeeieeieieeie et (415,334) -
Effect of business combinations and disposals........ (47,483) -
Ending balance............ccooovururveveverereiieseeee . 1,364,268 1,924,857

Settlements for the year ended March 31, 2020 include the effect of transferred plan assets of 410,425 million
yen, which were transferred to the defined contribution pension plan from the Panasonic Corporate Pension
Fund effective July 1, 2019.

The Company plans to contribute 6,435 million yen to the plans in the year ending March 31, 2021.

The fair value of plan assets by asset category is as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
With quoted market With no quoted
price in an active market price in an Total
market active market
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccoecverurennennn. 64,415 - 64,415
Equity instruments:
Japanese companies..........ccoecvverveerreennveennennn 39,640 - 39,640
Foreign companies...........ccccevueereeveereeneennenne. 12,827 - 12,827
Commingled funds*1.........cccoeeveivenciienneenn. - 248,689 248,689
Debt instruments:
Government and municipal bonds................. 76,460 - 76,460
Corporate bonds.........cccveevieecrierieereeereenennn. - 5,779 5,779
Commingled funds*2.........ccoecvevieciieceniennnne - 536,925 536,925
Life insurance company general accounts....... - 269,978 269,978
Other*3......cooiiiiieececcreeeeeee - 109,555 109,555
TOtAL oo 193,342 1,170,926 1,364,268
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Yen (millions)

March 31, 2019
With quoted market With no quoted
price in an active market price in an Total
market active market
Cash and cash equivalents..........c...ccoevvvenennnee. 454,962 - 454,962
Equity instruments:
Japanese companies..........ccoocveerveerveerereenennn 49,514 - 49,514
Foreign companies.........c.ccccveerverieenreennennn, 31,427 - 31,427
Commingled funds*1.........ccooovevieviiicenienne - 320,830 320,830
Debt instruments:
Government and municipal bonds................. 78,320 - 78,320
Corporate bonds.........ccceevveeiveriirienieniieieene. - 5,917 5,917
Commingled funds*2...........cccevevvevcrienneennn. - 578,656 578,656
Life insurance company general accounts....... - 295,433 295,433
Other®3. ..o - 109,798 109,798
TOtal e 614,223 1,310,634 1,924,857

*1 These funds invest mainly in listed equity securities, of which approximately 45% are Japanese equities
and 55% are foreign equities.

*2 These funds primarily invest in Japanese government bonds and foreign government bonds.

*3 Other investments primarily include fund-of-funds investments and equity long/short hedge fund
investments.

(ii1) Effect of asset ceiling
Changes in the effect of asset ceiling are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Beginning balance............ccoeceevieeiieciinienieieeieeeee 6,628 6,641
INterest COSt. i omiiiiiiiiiie e 22 38
Remeasurements of asset ceiling:
Changes in the effect of asset ceiling..........cccveeveeevennen. - (51)
Effect of business combinations and disposals............... (6,650) -
Ending balance.........ccocceeveeiiiienieneeeciesee e - 6,628

Note: When a defined benefit plan is in surplus, the amount of retirement benefit assets (other non-current
assets) recorded on the consolidated statements of financial position is limited to a ceiling defined by
the present value of any future economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future
contributions to the defined benefit plan.
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(iv) Assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
The amounts of assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position with regard
to defined benefit plans are as follows:
Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Present value of defined benefit obligations.................. 1,571,896 2,160,880

Fair value of plan assets.........ccoocvevvveieneenienieeieeeeeeeenn, 1,364,268 1,924,857

Effect of asset ceiling........c.coocvevvienieenieeiieiie e - 6,628

TOtAL .o 207,628 242,651
Amount recognized :

Retirement benefit liabilities...........cocuvvieeeiiiiieeeeeriinn. 221,946 256,289

Retirement benefit assetS.......coovevvvveeeevireeiieeeeeeeeeennn. 14,318 13,638

Net AMOUNL.....c.vveeeieiieiiee e 207,628 242,651

(2) Defined contribution plans

The amounts of expenses recorded with regard to defined contribution plans were 32,757 million yen and
33,271 million yen for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(3) Employee benefit expenses

In the consolidated statements of profit or loss, the total of employee benefit expenses included in "Cost of
sales" and "Selling, general and administrative expenses" were 1,652,322 million yen and 1,694,331 million
yen for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. In addition, the amounts of employee benefit
expenses included in "Other income (expenses), net" were a loss of 12,300 million yen and a gain of 79,909
million yen for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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19. Provisions

A breakdown of movements in provisions is as follows:

Yen (millions)

Provision for

Provision for Other
product : .. Total
. restructuring provisions
warranties

Balance as of March 31, 2019...... 48,898 1,144 140,586 190,628

Additions........c.cccoveeeiieiiieeiienn. 23,146 23,543 36,849 83,538

Utilized......ooooveeiieieeieeieeiees (24,256) (12,308) (56,699) (93,263)

Others.....covevevieiiieeie e, (1,753) - (9,506) (11,259)
Balance as of March 31, 2020....... 46,035 12,379 111,230 169,644

The provisions are presented in the statements of financial position as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Current liabilities........ccooeveeeennnnnee. 165,746 184,512
Non-current liabilities................... 3,898 6,116
Total..ooeieieieeeeeeeee, 169,644 190,628

A warranty for quality and performance of products and services is provided for a certain limited period, and
provision for product warranties is recorded at the time of sale for the estimated amount of after-sale service
expenses within warranty periods based on past experiences.

Provision for restructuring is recorded for the estimated amount of expenses for restructuring activities that have
been implemented for the purpose of improvement in operating efficiency and promotion of cost efficiency in and
outside Japan. The timing of payment is affected by a future business plan, etc., but these provisions are usually
short-term by nature with most payments completed within one year of the incurrence.

Other provisions are principally provision for expenses related to environmental remediation, provision for
litigation-related expenses and provision for onerous contracts.

To ensure appropriate disposal by March 31, 2027 of electric equipment containing polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCB) (hereinafter, "PCB equipment") that may have been buried under the Company's manufacturing facilities
and sites of its former manufacturing facilities in accordance with the Act on Special Measures concerning
Promotion of Proper Treatment of PCB Wastes, provision for expenses related to environmental remediation is
recognized for estimated total expenses for necessary actions, such as investigating whether or not PCB
equipment has been buried under the Company’s manufacturing facilities and sites (including excavation, storage
and disposal costs of already discovered PCB equipment, and soil replacement).

Provision for litigation-related expenses, etc., relates to litigation or governmental investigations involving the
Company and certain subsidiaries. Depending upon the outcome of these different proceedings, the Company and
certain subsidiaries may be subject to an uncertain amount of settlements or fines, and accordingly the Company
has accrued certain probable and reasonably estimated amounts for such settlements or fines.

Provision for onerous contracts mainly relates to contracts where a certain subsidiary purchases specific raw

materials for the period up to 2020. These contracts were terminated during the year ended March 31, 2020. As a
result, the provision for onerous contracts was no longer recorded as of March 31, 2020.
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20. Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, except for derivative liabilities, are measured at amortized cost.
Derivatives are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognized as profit or loss.

Components of other financial liabilities are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Derivative liabilities........ccccovvvrievieiieiiieecieeeeneen, 23,501 12,491
Accounts payable (non-trade)............ccceeeveeivrnerennne. 48,722 73,228
Deposits received-current...........ocovevveerveenceeennenne. 137,126 176,443
OheTS....oovieiieieeieiiiee et 19,641 28,322
TOtal..ceeeiiceeeeee e 228,990 290,484
Current labilities.........ccoeeevvveiiieiiiiieeee e, 212,674 273,817
Non-current liabilities...........ccoovvvieviverieineeecnnneen. 16,316 16,667

21. Other liabilities

Components of other liabilities are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Accrued EXPEeNnSEsS.......ccuverivierieeriireiieeieesreenire e 384,534 419,815
Accrued payroll, etC.......cccvvverieniieieeieeeeeee e 201,588 220,512
Refund liabilities.......c.coovererinirieinienieieneience 111,840 136,150
Ohers (F1)..cceeeeneneneieneeesieeeeceteeee e 40,790 43,924
TOtAL oo 738,752 820,401
Current liabilities..........ccoovvvvuvviiiiiiiiieeeeeeciieeen. 730,456 812,251
Non-current liabilities..........ccccoovevvviiiiiiiiineenennn. 8,296 8,150

(*1) As described in Note "3. Significant accounting policies (24) Change in presentation", the amount of
8,737 million yen as of March 31, 2019, which was presented in "Other current liabilities," has been
reclassified and presented as "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale."
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22. Equity

(1) Capital management
The Company's basic policy is to manage methods, terms and conditions and others for fund management and
financing of business activities, and to promote reduction in cost of funds and stability and improvement of the
financial structure through increase in the efficiency of investments.
In addition, the Company considers that it is important to generate and improve free cash flows through the
enhancement of its profitability, continuous inventory reduction, concentration of capital expenditure, review of
portfolio assets and other means to achieve medium to long term business development.
Key indicators used by the Company in capital management are as follows:

2020 2019
Net Cash (millions of yen, *1).......cccceevenrennnne. (419,481) (176,796)
Shareholder’s equity ratio..........ccceeerverevennenne. 32.1% 31.8%
Return on equity.......cccevevveeeeenciienieeree e, 11.5% 15.7%
Free Cash Flow (millions of yen, *2).............. 224,207 10,290
Capital investment (millions of yen, *3).......... 268,850 300,450
Depreciation (millions of yen, *4)................... 204,990 226,788

(*1) This was calculated by deducting interest-bearing debt (the total of "Short-term debt, including current
portion of long-term debt", "Long-term debt" and "Lease liabilities" (Current liabilities and Non-current
liabilities)) from the total of "Cash and cash equivalents" and time deposits and others included in "Other
financial assets."

(*2) This is the total of cash flows from operating activities and cash flows from investing activities.

(*3) This is the amount of increases in "Property, plant and equipment" on an accrual basis.

(*4) This is the amount of depreciation of "Property, plant and equipment."

There is no significant capital restriction applicable to the Company.

(2) Common stock
All shares issued by Panasonic are common stock without par value. Issued shares are fully paid.

Total number of shares authorized to be issued and the number of issued shares of Panasonic is as follows:

Shares
2020 2019
Total number of shares authorized to be issued....... 4,950,000,000 4,950,000,000
Number of shares issued:
Balance at the beginning of the year........................ 2,453,053,497 2,453,053,497
Changes during the period (¥1)......cccceecvevieieennnnne. 273,500 -
Balance at the end of the year...........ccccoverveneennennn. 2,453,326,997 2,453,053,497

(*1) The reason of increase during the year ended March 31, 2020 is the issuing of restricted stock.

The numbers of shares of treasury stock included in the above number of shares issued were 120,365,301 shares
and 120,663,025 shares as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(3) Capital surplus and retained earnings
The Companies Act of Japan provides that an amount equal to 10% of cash dividends be appropriated as a
capital reserve or legal reserve until the aggregated amount of capital reserve and legal reserve equals 25% of
stated capital. The capital reserve and legal reserve are not available for dividends but may be transferred to
capital surplus, retained earnings or stated capital upon approval at the shareholders' meeting.
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In accordance with the Companies Act of Japan, there are certain restrictions on distributable amount in
connection with repurchased treasury stock. As a result, retained earnings of 210,234 million yen and 210,782
million yen are restricted as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, from distributions of cash dividends.

(4) Other components of equity
A breakdown of other components of equity and details of movements is as follows:

Yen (millions)

Items that will not be Items that may be reclassified to
reclassified to profit or loss profit or loss
. . Exchange .
Remeasureme Financial differences on Net' changes in Total
assets . fair value of
nts of defined translation of
benefit plans measured at foreign cash flow
FVTOCI ; hedges
operations
Balance as of March 31, 2018 - 47,279 (216,355) 817 (168,259)
Arising during the period:
Pre-tax amount...........cccceveueeee. (18,161) (3,728) 9,052 (2,248) (15,085)
Income tax (expense) benefit.... 5,373 1,120 - 496 6,989
Net-of-tax amount..................... (12,788) (2,608) 9,052 (1,752) (8,096)
Reclassification to profit or loss:
Pre-tax amount...........c....couee... - - 161 (895) (734)
Income tax (expense) benefit.... - - - 236 236
Net-of-tax amount..................... - - 161 (659) (498)
OCI (loss), net of taX..........c.eeuveee. (12,788) (2,608) 9,213 (2,411) (8,594)
OCI (loss) attributable to non-
controlling interests,
NEt-0f-taX.c..iiiiieieieienceene 62 19 (3,019) 16 (2,922)
Transfer to hedged non-financial
ASSEES.ueeeneiriieete e - - - 382 382
Transfer to retained earnings........ 12,850 (3,718) : : 9,132
Balance as of March 31, 2019 - 40,934 (204,123) (1,228) (164,417)
Arising during the period:
Pre-tax amount...........cccceveueeee. 8,324 26,961 (101,534) 14,037 (52,212)
Income tax (expense) benefit.... (2,338) (5,789) - (4,700) (12,827)
Net-of-tax amount..................... 5,986 21,172 (101,534) 9,337 (65,039)
Reclassification to profit or loss:
Pre-tax amount............cccceenee. - - 2,590 (994) 1,596
Income tax (expense) benefit.... - - - 430 430
Net-of-tax amount.................... - - 2,590 (564) 2,026
OCIT (loss), net of taX..........ceeneeeene 5,986 21,172 (98,944) 8,773 (63,013)
OCI (loss) attributable to non-
controlling interests,
NEt-0f-taX.c.eiieirieieiencerens (223) (74) (9,434) (18) (9,749)
Transfer to hedged non-financial
ASSEES.ueeeieirieeee et - - - 319 319
Transfer to retained earnings........ (6,209) (4,386) : - (10,595)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 B 57,794 (293,633) 7,882 (227,957)
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(5) Dividends

1) Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2020 are summarized as follows:
(i) Amount of cash dividends paid

Resolution date Class C?SI,I dividends | Dividends | Cash dividends Record date | Effective date
(millions of yen)| resource | per share (yen)
Board of Directors Common Retained
meeting held on stock 34,986 carnines 15.0 |March 31, 2019| June 7, 2019
May 9, 2019 &
Board of Direct
m:;ino hell(riesnors Common 34.993 Retained 15.0 September 30, | November 29,
g stock ’ earnings ' 2019 2019

October 31, 2019

(i) Cash dividends resolved

in the year ended March 31, 2020 but effective in

the following fiscal year

b divi Divi b divi
Resolution date Class Cgs' dividends ividends | Cash dividends Record date | Effective date
(millions of yen)| resource | per share (yen)
Board of Directors Common Retained
meeting held on stock 34,994 carnings 15.0 |March 31, 2020| June 11, 2020
May 18, 2020 &
2) Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2019 are summarized as follows:
(i) Amount of cash dividends paid
b divi Divi b divi
Resolution date Class Cgs' dividends ividends | Cash dividends Record date | Effective date
(millions of yen)| resource | per share (yen)
Board of Directors Common Retained
meeting held on stock 46,647 carnings 20.0 |March 31, 2018| June 8, 2018
May 10, 2018 &
Board of Direct
m(:;ino hell(rie;:nors Common 34.986 Retained 15.0 September 30, | November 30,
& stock : earnings ' 2018 2018

October 31, 2018

(i) Cash dividends resolved

in the year ended March 31, 2019 but effective in

the following fiscal year

Resolution date Class C%SI,I dividends | Dividends | Cash dividends Record date | Effective date
(millions of yen)| resource | per share (yen)
Board of Directors Common Retained
meeting held on 34,986 ) 15.0 |March 31, 2019| June 7, 2019
stock earnings

May 9, 2019

- 142 -




23. Share-based payment plan

(1) Restricted stock remuneration plan

Panasonic has introduced a restricted stock remuneration plan in fiscal year 2020 (hereinafter the "Plan") for the
Directors (excluding Outside Directors) and Executive Officers and certain other officers of the Company. The
Plan aims to promote further value sharing with Panasonic's shareholders, in addition to providing them an
incentive for sustainable improvement of Panasonic's corporate value.

Under the Plan, each of the eligible Directors or Executive Officers and Panasonic shall enter into a restricted
stock allocation agreement, and on the condition of being a Director or Executive Officer during the period
determined by the Board of Directors, the Director or Executive Officer makes contribution in kind with all the
monetary compensation receivables awarded by the Company, and in turn receives Panasonic common shares
newly issued or disposed of from treasury. There are transfer, pledge and other restrictions on the shares
allocated for a period between 3 and 30 years from the date of allocation as determined by the Board of
Directors. Under certain circumstances, the Company will acquire all or part of the restricted shares without
payment of consideration.

The information about restricted shares that were granted during the year ended March 31, 2020 is set out below.
The fair value per share of the restricted shares at the date of grant was measured by reference to the closing
price of Panasonic common stock in the first section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange on July 30, 2019, one
business day prior to the resolution of the Board of Directors.

Year ended March 31
2020
Grant date.........coeverereeineeieieieneneseneeeene August 30, 2019

Number of shares of restricted stock granted
(common StOCK).....cceerveeieeieniienieieeieseeienns

273,500 share

Fair value at grant date (per share).................. 924.7 yen

(2) Share-based payment stock option plans

Panasonic introduced a plan for share-based payment stock options (stock acquisition rights) for its Directors
(excluding Outside Directors), Executive Officers and certain other company executives of Panasonic in fiscal
year 2015 and has been operating this plan until fiscal year 2019, as an incentive for the participants to further
contribute to the improvement of long-term operating results and higher corporate value through sharing the
benefits and risks of share price fluctuations with shareholders.

Stock acquisition rights granted under this plan are fully vested on grant date. As an exercise condition, during
the period when the stock acquisition rights may be exercised, the holder may exercise the stock acquisition
rights on or after the day immediately following the day on which such holder loses the status of the Director,
Executive Officer or any status equivalent thereto, of Panasonic (the "Status Losing Date"). As for the stock
acquisition rights issued in July 2018, August 2017 and August 2016, the holder may exercise the rights on or
after the day immediately following Status Losing Date or the day immediately following the day when three
(3) years have passed since the day immediately following the day the stock acquisition rights were allotted,
whichever is the earlier. The exercise price of the stock acquisition rights is 1 yen per share.

Upon exercise of each stock acquisition right, in principle, 100 shares of common stock of the Company are
granted; provided, however, that in the case that Panasonic conducts a share split (including an allotment
without consideration of shares of common stock of the Company) or share consolidation of the Company's
common stock, the number of shares granted will be adjusted in accordance with a specific formula.
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The exercise period is specified in the allotment contract. When stock acquisition rights are not exercised
during the period, the stock acquisition rights will be forfeited.

Under this plan of share-based payment stock options, for those who were eligible to receive the stock
acquisition rights between fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2019 and worked overseas during that period, the
stock acquisition rights that were reserved to be granted during their overseas work will be granted to them
when they returns from overseas work.

The Company's stock acquisition rights that existed in the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

Fair value of one
Number of stock  stock acquisition

Grant date e . Exercisable period
acquisition rights right on grant
date (yen)
Panasonic Corporation From August 23,
stock acquisition rights ~ August 22, 2014 2,088 105,400 2014 to August 22,
issued in August 2014 2044
Panasonic Corporation From August 21,
stock acquisition rights ~ August 20, 2015 1,729 112,400 2015 to August 20,
issued in August 2015 2045
Panasonic Corporation From August 24,
stock acquisition rights ~ August 23, 2016 5,800 71,300 2016 to August 23,
issued in August 2016 2046
Panasonic Corporation From August 24,
stock acquisition rights ~ August 23, 2017 3,561 112,800 2017 to August 23,
issued in August 2017 2047
Panasonic Corporation
stock acquisition rights ~ July 18, 2018 3,473 106,400 ijfyml ;“lzyoﬁ’ 2018 to
issued in July 2018 ’

Change in the number of stock acquisition rights and their weighted average exercise prices is follows:

Year ended March 31
2020 2019
Number of Weighted-average Number of Weighted-average
stock acquisition exercise price stock acquisition exercise price
rights (yen per share) rights (yen per share)
Outstanding at the beginning
of the year.........ccocvvevevnnnnen. 15,678 1 13,124 1
Granted...........oooevveereeeeinnn. - - 3,473 1
Forfeited........ocoevveeeniennnn - - - -
Exercised......ccocoveninenennnnn (3,315) 1 919) 1
Expired.......ccoevvievieeiiennn. - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the
VEATL.ueevieerenieirererenre e 12,363 1 15,678 1
Exercisable at the end of the
DL SR 6,623 1 2,501 1

The weighted average share prices at the exercise date of stock options exercised during the years ended March
31, 2020 and 2019 are 867 yen and 1,302 yen per share, respectively. The exercise price of exercisable stock
acquisition rights in the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is 1 yen each. In the years ended March 31,
2020 and 2019, the weighted average remaining contractual terms for outstanding stock acquisition rights at the
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year-end were 17.1 years and 24.6 years, respectively, and for exercisable stock acquisition rights at the year-
end were 8.6 years and 7.9 years, respectively.

The measurement method for fair value of stock options granted during the year, is Black-Scholes model. Fair
value at grant date and key inputs (per share information) are follows:
Year ended March 31
2020 2019

Panasonic Corporation

- stock acquisition rights

issued in July 2018
Fair value at grant date........................ - yen 1,064  yen
Stock price at grant date (*1).............. - yen 1,452  yen
EXErcise Price......cccevvvervverveenreenrennn - yen 1 yen
Expected remaining term.................... - years 15 years
Expected volatility.........cccceeerieuennene - % 3415 % (*2)
Risk-free interest rate (*3).................. - % 0.25 %
Expected dividend yield............c........ - % 2.07 % (*4)

(*1) The closing price of common stock of Panasonic Corporation on the Tokyo Stock Exchange at grant date
was used.

(*2) The figure was calculated based on the closing price of ordinary transactions of shares of common stock of
Panasonic Corporation on each transaction date for 15 years (from July 18, 2003 to July 18, 2018).

(*3) The interest rate, at the grant date, of government bonds with remaining maturity corresponding to the
expected remaining term (15 years) was used.

(*4) The figure was calculated as "dividends per share (actual dividends paid for the year ended March 31,
2018) / share price at the grant date."

(3) Stock-based compensation expenses

Expenses recorded for the restricted stock compensation in the year ended March 31, 2020 were 223 million
yen and expenses recorded for the share-based payment stock options in the year ended March 31, 2019 were

370 million yen.
These stock-based compensation expenses were included in "Selling, general and administrative expenses" in

the consolidated statements of profit or loss.
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24. Revenue

(1) Revenue recognized from contracts with customers
In the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, sales on the consolidated statements of profit or loss were
7,490,601 million yen and 8,022,733 million yen, respectively. These sales mainly consist of revenue from

contracts with customers. Revenue that is recognized from other sources relates mainly to sub-leases and is

included in the disclosure of "(2) Disaggregation of revenue" as the amount is not significant.

(2) Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by product category to reflect its nature properly and
geographical area where customers are located. Revenue by product and geographical area is further
disaggregated by reportable segment. The disaggregated revenue is as follows. In addition, the disaggregated
revenue of each reportable segments for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been reclassified to conform to the

presentation for the year ended March 31, 2020.

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Yen (millions)

By product category Sales By geographical area Sales
Reportable segments
Appliances
B2C.e e 1,516,916  Japan........cccoeceevvervenerennnens 899,725
B2B.. e 468,787 North and South America 254,852
Europe.....cccoveeeiviiieiei, 235,979
Asia, China and others....... 595,147
Total...ooveeieeeiieeiee 1,985,703 Total....ccoeevvennne. 1,985,703
Life Solutions
Electrical construction materials.................. 788,168  Japan..........cccceeieviieiiennennn, 1,461,261
ATCRItECTULE. ..o 327,721  North and South America 51,767
Other (including home building products).. 629,183  EUrope.....cccceevveviveeiieeinnnn, 42,113
Asia, China and others....... 189,931
Total...cooveeiieeiieeiee 1,745,072 Total....ccooeuvvennne. 1,745,072
Connected Solutions
Vertical SOIUtionsS............cooevvuvvveereeeeiieeinnns 408,892  Japan.........cccceeeverirveenineene 364,885
Product solutions..........cceeeevvereeneeeeceneeeennnn. 584,557 North and South America 368,852
Europe....ccoooooeiiniiiens 102,347
Asia, China and others....... 157,365
0] 71 T 993,449 Total.....ccocovverrennnne. 993,449
Automotive
Automotive Solutions............ccveeevveenereennenn 887,064  Japan..........ccceeeevieeieennennn. 409,403
Automotive batteries.........covvvvereeeiiennnnn.n. 465,408 North and South America 628,588
Europe.....cccoveeeiiiiieee 191,339
Asia, China and others....... 123,142
Total...ooveeiieeiieeiee 1,352,472 Total....ccoceuvrenenne. 1,352,472
Industrial Solutions
SYSLEIMS...eiiiiiieiiie et 480,178  Japan.......cccccceevveenieneieene 330,184
DEVICE. . 525,181 North and South America 114,123
Other....oiiieiieeieeeeeee e 144,538  EUrope.....ccccocvveveveenieeeeennn, 143,771
Asia, China and others....... 561,819
Total...cooveeiieeiieeiee 1,149,897 Total....ccoceuvrenenne. 1,149,897
Other......cccvevieeieeieens 264,008 Other........cceevveeene 264,008
Consolidated total..................... 7,490,601 Consolidated total............ 7,490,601
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For the year ended March 31, 2019
Yen (millions)

By product category Sales By geographical area Sales
Reportable segments
Appliances
B2Cee e 1,615,128  Japan........cccceeeeevvervenieennnnns 910,218
B2B.. e 509,655 North and South America... 280,652
Europe.....ccovveeiviiiiiee, 264,266
Asia, China and others....... 669,647
Total...covveeieieiieeiee 2,124,783 Total....ccoeevvennne. 2,124,783
Life Solutions
Electrical construction materials.................. 806,815  Japan........ccccceeeeevevieeieennennn, 1,548,689
ATChIteCtUre......coooiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeia, 448,957 North and South America... 61,625
Other (including home building products).. 612,448  EUrope.....ccccoevveviveeiieeiennn, 48,610
Asia, China and others....... 209,296
Total...cooveeiieeiieeiee 1,868,220 Total....ccoceuvrenenne. 1,868,220
Connected Solutions
Vertical SOIUtionsS............oooevvuvvveeeieeeneeeinnns 458,289  Japan.........cccceeeveverieeineene, 364,949
Product solutions..........cceeeeeveeeeneeeeeeneeeennn. 624,975 North and South America... 406,416
Europe....cccoooeiiniiies 123,049
Asia, China and others....... 188,850
Total....ocoveerieieeieeeee, 1,083,264 Total....cccocvvereeneene 1,083,264
Automotive
Automotive SOIUtionS.........ccocvvvvvvvvvvvvenennnns 970,804  Japan..........cceceeerveeniveennnnn. 384,144
Automotive batteries.........cooovvveeeeeiicnneenn... 411,452 North and South America... 630,196
Europe.....cccoveeeiiiiieee 216,699
Asia, China and others....... 151,217
Total...oovveeiieeiieeiee 1,382,256 Total....ccooeuvvennne. 1,382,256
Industrial Solutions
SYSLEIMS. .. 558,795  Japan........cccccceevieiiiienieene 364,892
DEVICE. . 565,397 North and South America... 130,664
Other....ooiieiieeieeceeee e 155,209  EUurope......ccccceevveevvveenenne. 149,454
Asia, China and others....... 634,391
Total...coveeiieeiieeiee 1,279,401 Total....ccoceuvrenenne. 1,279,401
Other.....cccoovevieieeree 264,809 Other........cceevveenene 264,809
Consolidated total..................... 8,002,733 Consolidated total............ 8,002,733

The products of Appliances are categorized into "B2C" and "B2B." "B2C" includes products such as room air-
conditioners, TVs, digital cameras, video equipment, home audio equipment, fixed-phones, refrigerators,
washing machines, vacuum cleaners, microwave ovens, rice cookers and personal-care products. "B2B"
includes products such as compressors, fuel cells and showcases.

The products of Life Solutions are categorized into "Electrical construction materials," "Architecture" and
"Other (including home building products)." "Electrical construction materials" includes products such as
lighting fixtures, lamps, wiring devices, solar photovoltaic systems, ventilation and air-conditioning equipment
and air purifiers. "Architecture" includes products such as detached housing, rental apartment housing, land
and buildings for sale and home remodeling. "Other (including home building products)" includes products
such as water-related products, interior furnishing materials, exterior furnishing materials, bicycles, and
nursing-care-related products.
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The products of Connected Solutions are categorized into "Vertical solutions" and "Product solutions."
"Vertical solutions" is a solution business provided directly by business divisions where development,
production and sales are integrated and includes products such as aircraft in-flight entertainment systems and
communications services, electronic-components-mounting machines and welding equipment. "Product
solutions" is a solution business provided by developing and manufacturing business divisions through sales
departments, and includes products such as projectors, professional AV systems, PCs and tablets and
surveillance cameras.

The products of Automotive are categorized into "Automotive solutions" and "Automotive batteries."
"Automotive solutions" includes products such as automotive-use infotainment systems, electrical components
and automotive mirrors. "Automotive batteries" includes products related to automotive-use batteries.

The products of Industrial Solutions are categorized into "Systems," "Device" and "Other." "Systems" includes
products such as automation controls, electric motors and lithium-ion batteries, which are the group of
businesses focused on systems and modules. "Device" includes products such as electronic components,
electronic materials and dry batteries, which are the group of businesses that differentiates in materials and
processes. "Other" includes products such as semiconductors and LCD panels.

The reconciliation of "Disaggregated revenue" by reportable segment with "Sales to external customers" in
Note "4 (2) Information by reportable segment" is as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Yen (millions)

Abpliances Life Connected Automotive Industrial
bp Solutions Solutions Solutions
Disaggregated revenue............................ 1,985,703 1,745,072 993,449 1,352,472 1,149,897
Adjustments for management
ACCOUNTINEG..c.vvvinreeieieieiereeeeere e 318,800 44,388 8,954 6,887 23,852
Cross-selling........ccocvereecieecienieneeiennn, 99,344 (56,361) (78,645) 87,519 (97,222)
Sales of third party products, etc. ........ (20,516) 1,486 342 2,205 (293)
Note 4 "(2) Information by Segments"
Sales to external customers.................. 2,383,331 1,734,585 924,100 1,449,083 1,076,234

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Yen (millions)

Avpliances Life Connected Automotive Industrial
PP Solutions Solutions Y Y Solutions
Disaggregated revenue............coecveevennenne 2,124,783 1,868,220 1,083,264 1,382,256 1,279,401
Adjustments for management
ACCOUNTING....vvevviiereeteireeeiereeeeeeeneeaens 321,848 47,732 7,508 6,134 24,894
Cross-selling.........cccceevevverveneenennennn 116,171 (70,724) (85,986) 99,214 (99,813)
Sales of third party products, etc.......... (31,217) 1,198 (4,036) (754) 443
Note 4 "(2) Information by Segments"
Sales to external customers.................. 2,531,585 1,846,426 1,000,750 1,486,850 1,204,925

"Disaggregated revenue" of each reportable segment adjusted for "Adjustments for management accounting,"
"Cross-selling" and "Sales of third party products, etc." reconciles to "Sales to external customers" in Note 4
"(2) Information by reportable segment." "Adjustments for management accounting" mainly includes
adjustments to sales prices for management accounting. "Cross-selling" mainly includes adjustment for sales
of products through other segments. "Sales of third party products, etc." mainly includes adjustments for sales
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of products manufactured by third parties which are not included in sales for management accounting
purposes.

(3) Information about performance obligations

Information about performance obligations (the nature of the goods or services, the timing of satisfaction of
performance obligations, its determination and variable consideration) is set out below. The period between
when the entity transfers a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good
or service will typically be one year or less, and a significant financing component is not included in the
amount of the consideration promised by the customer. Therefore, the Company does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of the time value of money.

The Company has entered into a variety of transaction arrangements with customers including a combination
of products, equipment, installation, maintenance, etc. If certain criteria are met, the Company identifies
distinct performance obligations in such transactions and recognize as revenue the amount of the transaction
price allocated to each performance obligation according to the satisfaction of its performance obligations.

1) Sales of products
The Company is mainly engaged in the sale of products such as household products ("B2C" in Appliances
segment, etc.), industrial products and manufacturing devices ("B2B" in Appliances segment, "Electrical
construction materials," "Architecture" and "Other (including home building products)" in Life Solutions
segment, "Vertical solutions" and "Product solutions" in Connected Solutions segment, "Automotive
solutions" and "Automotive batteries" in Automotive segment, "Systems" and "Device" in Industrial
Solutions segment, etc.), and consumables.
For such sales transactions, the Company recognizes revenue at the time of delivery, in principle, because
the customer obtains control of the products and the Company satisfies its performance obligation when
the products are delivered. In addition, for a long term product supply contract with a specific customer, the
Company recognizes revenue in accordance with progress towards completion of the contract period,
because the performance obligation is satisfied over time.
The Company recognizes revenue as the amount of the consideration (transaction price) to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer.
The Company deducts from net sales certain price adjustments that are given to compensate for a decline in
product prices in relation to sales to its consumer products distributors and also deducts sales rebates under
incentive programs offered to those distributors (variable consideration). The Company includes in the
transaction price an amount of variable consideration only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company recognizes a refund
liability if the Company has already received consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or
all of that consideration to the customer.

2) Construction-type contracts

The Company is engaged in design, construction, etc. for housing, electric and building equipment,
environment-related equipment ("Electrical construction materials" and "Architecture" in Life Solutions
segment), disaster prevention/security-related equipment ("Product solutions" in Connected Solutions
segment) and system integration ("Product solutions" in Connected Solutions segment).

For such sales transactions, in principle, revenue is recognized in accordance with progress toward complete
satisfaction, because the performance obligation is satisfied over time. Only if the Company can reasonably
measure the progress towards complete satisfaction, sales are recorded using the input method based on the
percentage of actual costs incurred to date to estimated total costs at the end of each reporting period. When
the initial estimate of sales or progress up to the completion may be changed, the Company reviews the
estimate.

If the Company cannot reasonably measure the progress towards complete satisfaction, the amount
equivalent to the extent of costs incurred that is considered highly recoverable is recorded as sales. Costs are
recognized as cost of sales in profit or loss in the period during which they are incurred.

- 149 -



A portion of the amount received before the completion of construction that relates to unsatisfied
performance obligation is recognized as contract liabilities.

3) Rendering of services
The Company is engaged in services such as repairs and maintenance incidental to 1) Sales of products or 2)
Construction-type contracts, and investigation, analysis, supervision, maintenance, etc. of electric and
building equipment, environment-related equipment and disaster prevention/security-related equipment.
For such sales transactions, in principle, the Company recognizes revenue according to the progress towards
complete satisfaction, because the performance obligation is satisfied over time, in the same way as for 2)
Construction-type contracts. The Company recognizes revenue in some contracts over the service period
under a flat-rate.
The Company recognizes revenue over the period when providing an extended warranty service incidental
to some sales transactions, because the performance obligation is satisfied over time. In addition, the
Company charges a fee to customers under a flat-rate or pay-for-use system with respect to communication
services in the Connected Solutions segment and recognizes revenue over the service period, because the
performance obligation is satisfied over time.

(4) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The aggregate transaction price allocated to the remaining obligations that are unsatisfied as of March 31, 2020
is 102,763 million yen. (as of March 31, 2019 is 182,269 million yen.) The amount mainly relates to
construction-type contracts and the Company expects to recognize it as revenue within approximately seven
years. (as of March 31, 2019 is approximately six years.) As the Company elects to use a practical expedient,
the above amount does not include the transaction price allocated to the remaining obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period for contracts with an original expected duration of one year or
less. The above aggregate transaction price does not include any significant estimated amounts of variable
consideration.

(5) Contract balances
The balances of trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers are
summarized as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Assets from contracts with customers 1,051,203 1,190,620
Trade receivables.......coovviivveiieceieiiiieeceeeeeeeeeeee e 864,766 978,093
CONILACT ASSELS....eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeens 186,437 212,527
Liabilities from contracts with customers..............cc......... 101,662 119,335
Contract [iabilities........cccoovivieviierieiiecriereeie e 101,662 119,335

Contract assets relate mainly to the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services for
which the Company has satisfied or partially satisfied the performance obligations but has not claimed yet as
of the end of the reporting period. Contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables when the right to
consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities are mainly advances received for future goods or consideration received for future services
that the Company continues to provide. Almost all the amount of contract liabilities as of March 31, 2019 was
recognized as revenue in the year ended March 31, 2020.

The amount of revenue recognized in the year ended March 31, 2019 and the year ended March 31, 2020 from
satisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations in previous periods is not significant.

(6) Assets recognized from contract costs
The balances of the incremental costs of obtaining contracts and costs incurred to fulfill contracts as of March
31,2019 and March 31, 2020 are not significant. As the Company elects to use a practical expedient, it
recognizes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period
of the asset that the Company otherwise would have recognized is one year or less.
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25. Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Employee benefits........cccceverveviieciienienieenee, 846,010 872,202
AdVertising €Xpenses.........ocvereerreerveeeeseenrenns 84,757 97,600
Transportation and storage..........c..cceevveeeveneene. 181,355 190,429
Depreciation and amortization......................... 132,242 84,943
Ohers.....oueeeieieieieeeeee e 620,017 694,293
TOtAL e 1,864,381 1,939,467

26. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses are as follows:
Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Research and development expenses.............. 475,005 488,757

27. Other income (expenses)

Other income (expenses), net for the year ended March 31, 2020 includes gain on business transfer (mainly
housing-related business and security system business) of 122,623 million yen, expenses associated with the
implementation of early retirement programs due to business restructuring of 12,300 million yen, and expenses
associated with quality control or voluntary recall of products of 11,470 million yen.

Gain on business transfer is presented in "Other - net" within cash flows from operating activities in the
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Other income (expenses), net for the year ended March 31, 2019 includes gain of 82,933 million yen resulting
from the revision of pension plan of the Company and certain domestic subsidiaries effective July 1, 2019, gain
on discontinuance of equity-method accounting for investment in associate of 30,022 million yen, and gain on
sales of property, plant and equipment of 26,914 million yen.

Gain on discontinuance of equity-method accounting for investment in associate and gain on sales of property,
plant and equipment are presented in "Other - net" within cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows.
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28. Impairment of non-financial assets

(1) Impairment losses
The losses are included in "Cost of sales" and "Other income (expenses), net" in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss. The amount of losses included in "Cost of sales" were 10,961 million yen and 17,262 million yen
for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amounts of losses included in "Other income
(expenses), net" were 80,292 million yen and 45,513 million yen for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The amount by segment represents the amount attributable to each cash-generating unit that is allocated to a
specific reportable segment for impairment testing purposes, and is not necessarily equal to the amount
allocated to each segment for internal management purposes. A part of the impairment losses of goodwill is
included in "Eliminations and adjustments" as noted in "4. Segment information."

Amount by segment for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been reclassified to conform to the presentation for
the year ended March 31, 2020.

The amounts of impairment losses recorded for property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets
by segment are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019

APPLANCES. ..o 16,255 139
Life SOIutions.........cccoeveeeeieiiiicieecieeiee e, 6,013 24,854
Connected Solutions.........c.ccoeevreeevieeeeineeeennee. 2,227 272
AULOMOLIVE. ..ottt 39,037 30,613
Industrial Solutions...........cceeevvevcriercrierireenene, 26,368 2,978
OtheT...vioviiicicecceeeeeee e 1,353 3,919

Consolidated total............c.ooooviviiiiiiiiiienee.. 91,253 62,775

In the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded impairment losses on goodwill and intangible assets
in certain cash-generating units of the automotive solutions business, which belongs to the "Automotive"
segment, because it was expected that the carrying amount of these assets could not be recovered due mainly to
a downturn of the business. The value in use was measured by the discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax
discount rates used for the year ended March 31, 2020 and for the beginning of year ended March 31, 2020 are
9.9% and 9.8%, respectively.

The Company also recorded impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, etc. in certain cash-
generating units of the semiconductor business, which belongs to the "Industrial Solutions" segment, because
Panasonic resolved at the board of directors meeting on November 28, 2019 to transfer the semiconductor
business and entered into stocks and assets transfer agreement on the same day. Accordingly, Panasonic
recognized the losses expected to incur in connection with the business transfer.

In the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company recorded impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
etc. in certain cash-generating units of the solar business, which belongs to the "Life Solutions" segment,
because it was expected that the carrying amount of these assets could not be recovered due mainly to
restructuring of the business. The fair value less costs of disposal was measured by the replacement cost
method, sales comparable transaction method, and other means. The fair value measurement is categorized
mainly as Level 3 fair value.

The Company also recorded impairment losses on goodwill and intangible assets in certain cash-generating
units of the automotive solutions business, which belongs to the "Automotive" segment, because it was
expected that the carrying amount of these assets could not be recovered due mainly to a downturn of European
business. The value in use was measured by the discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax discount rates used
for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 are 9.6% and 8.8%, respectively.
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(2) Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
(1) Impairment tests
The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit with goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives for impairment testing is calculated at the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value in use.

As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, goodwill with carrying amount of 85,071 million yen and 86,651 million yen,
respectively, and trademarks with carrying amount of 25,792 million yen and 26,304 million yen, respectively,
which are related to "Hussmann Corporation" included in the "Appliance" segment, are individually significant
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to a cash generating unit in comparison with
the Company's total carrying amount.

For the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit, to which
goodwill and trademark with individually significant carrying amount in comparison with the Company's total
carrying amount are allocated, is the higher of the value in use or the amount of fair value less costs of disposal
measured principally by the discounted cash flow method and the comparable listed company analysis method.
The fair value measurements are categorized as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Discounted cash flow
method is calculated by discounting the estimated amount of future cash flows based on the most recent
business plan approved by the Board of Directors to the present value. The period of future outlook is five
years, and future outlook reflects past experience and is established after verifying the consistency with
external information. The growth rate (2.1 % and 2.4% for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively) is determined in view of long-term average growth rate of markets or countries to which each
cash-generating unit belongs. The discount rate (11.9% and 11.5% on pre-tax basis for the years ended March
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively) is calculated based on weighted average cost of capital of the cash-generating
unit.

For the year ended March 31, 2020, since the value in use sufficiently exceeds the carrying amount, the
carrying amount would unlikely to exceed the amount of value in use, even if the major assumptions such as
the growth rate and discount rate used in the above impairment test change within a reasonably predictable
range.

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the amount of fair value less costs of disposal exceeds the carrying amount
by 9,434 million yen. If the discount rate used in the above impairment test increases by more than 1.1%, the
carrying amount would exceed the amount of fair value less costs of disposal.

(i1) Goodwill
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, the aggregate carrying amounts of individually insignificant goodwill that are
allocated to cash-generating units are 236,938 million yen and 309,096 million yen, respectively.

Impairment losses in the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 are 32,133 million yen and 13,230 million yen,
respectively.

(ii1) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, the aggregate carrying amounts of individually insignificant intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives allocated to cash-generating units are 14,073 million yen and 14,985 million yen,

respectively.

Impairment losses in the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 are not material.
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29. Finance income and expenses

(1) Finance income
Finance income is as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019

Dividend income:

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI.................. 2,273 2,531
Interest income:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost......... 20,812 21,899

(01711 S USROS 1,240 -
Foreign exchange gains..........ccooceevvevievienienieennenne. 5,856 1,173
OtheT..c.iiiiieieeee e e 1,179 -

TOtAL ettt e 31,360 25,603

(2) Finance expenses
Finance expenses are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Interest expenses:
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.... 10,568 15,518
Lease liabilities........cccevveriereenieniniireneeneeee 18,084 186
Net interest cost on employee benefits.................. 966 2,302
OthETS. it 4,443 2,639
Total..c.ooiiiicc e 34,061 20,645

(3) Transfers of financial assets
The Company transfers financial assets such as trade receivables to unconsolidated structured entities. These
entities have been set up by third-party financial institutions and managed by the financial institutions as part of
their business. Because the entities also purchase a large amount of assets from customers other than the
Company, the proportion of financial assets transferred by the Company to the total assets of the entities is
small. The Company has therefore determined that the Company's exposures to the risks carried by the entities
is low.

The Company has provided no support to these structured entities outside contracts and made no implicit
agreement to support them. The main elements of the Company's interests in these structured entities is
provision of limited credit enhancements, servicing and receipt of servicing fees.

In the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, a loss on transfer of trade receivables, etc. which were
derecognized in their entirety was 4,443 million yen and 2,639 million yen, respectively. This loss is included
in "Finance expenses" in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.

The Company has retained obligations to provide servicing for financial assets which were derecognized in
their entirety. However, since the difference between expenses and fees received for provision of servicing are
not material, the Company did not record any servicing assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.

The maximum exposure to losses resulting from continuing involvement in the derecognized financial assets as
of March 31, 2020 and 2019 was 16,605 million yen and 28,274 million yen, respectively, which is the total
amount of the outstanding balance of obligations to repurchase the transferred assets under restricted, specified
conditions.
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30. Per share information

Panasonic Corporation stockholders' equity per share is as follows:
Yen

March 31
2020 2019

Panasonic Corporation stockholders' equity per share...................... 856.57 820.41

The reconciliation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders
is as follows:
Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Net profit attributable to Panasonic Corporation stockholders........ 225,707 284,149
Adjustment to net Profit........cceeceveereniinienieeeeeee e @) -
Net profit used to calculate basic earnings per share...................... 225,700 284,149
Adjustment to Net Profit.......c.ccccceevvveciieiiieniienie e e 7 -
Net profit used to calculate diluted earnings per share................... 225,707 284,149

Number of shares

2020 2019
Average common shares outstanding...............cceevveervercreeecneenneenns 2,332,621,373 2,332,365,043
Dilutive effect:
Stock acquiSition TIZHLS........cvevverieerienierieieeie e 1,411,380 1,519,520
Restricted StOCK.......oiiieiuiiiiiiee et 65,115 -
Diluted common shares outstanding.............cceeeeeverieneecieeceeneennenns 2,334,097,868 2,333,884,563
Yen
2020 2019
Earnings per share attributable to Panasonic Corporation
stockholders:
BaSIC..utietieiieit ettt 96.76 121.83
DIIULE. ... ittt 96.70 121.75
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31. Financial instruments

(1) Financial risk management policy

The Company is exposed to various financial risks (credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks) in the process
of its business activities, and it manages risks based on specific policies in order to avoid or reduce these risks.

The Company limits its use of derivatives to transactions for the purpose of mitigating risks from transactions
based on actual demand. Therefore, it does not own or issue derivatives for speculative purposes.

(2) Credit risk management

The Company is principally exposed to credit risk of customers on trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables as well as credit risk of financial institutions as counterparties to derivatives held to hedge currency
risks and commodity price fluctuation risks.

With regards to trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, the Company assesses management
conditions of each business partner and determines their credit quality to consider whether or not the transaction
is appropriate in accordance with the internal rules for credit management. After the commencement of the
transaction, in accordance with the internal rules for management of receivables, the Company manages due
dates and balances for each business partner, continuously manages records of progress of transactions,
timeliness of collection and changes and trends of receivable balances, and proactively gathers information on
management condition and business trends etc. of business partners in an effort to early detect and mitigate any
concerns about collection due to deterioration in financial condition, etc.

With regards to derivative transactions, since the Company only deals with financial and other institutions with
high credit ratings and the credit quality of counterparties is high, the Company believes that its credit risk
exposure is minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk that does not take into account collateral held and other credit
enhancements at the end of the fiscal year is the carrying amount of financial assets in the consolidated
statements of financial position except for the derecognized financial assets noted in "29. Finance income and
expenses" and guarantees of obligations. The Company provides guarantees mainly on bank loans provided to
associates and customers to enhance their credit status. For each guarantee provided, the Company is required to
perform under the guarantee if the guaranteed party defaults on payment. As of March 31, 2020, the maximum
amount of undiscounted payments the Company would have to make in the event of default was 33,800 million
yen.

1) Changes in allowance for credit losses
The Company determines the amount of allowance for credit losses for trade receivables, contract assets and
lease receivables, and receivables, etc. other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables.

For trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, allowance for credit losses is always recorded at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. For receivables, etc. other than trade receivables,
contract assets and lease receivables, etc., allowance for credit losses is recorded at an amount equal to the 12-
month expected credit losses in principle. However, if terms and conditions for repayment stipulated by
contract cannot be fulfilled, it is considered that credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
and allowance for credit losses is recorded at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses, except in
the case of the failure to fulfill such terms and conditions due to administrative errors of the counterparty and
certain other cases.

Any financial asset is treated as a credit-impaired financial asset, if there is request for changing terms and
conditions for repayment from the debtor, serious financial difficulties of the debtor, or commencement of
legal liquidation procedures due to bankruptcy and others on the debtor, etc. For any amount that clearly
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cannot be recovered in the future, the carrying amount of the financial asset is directly reduced, and the
corresponding amount of allowance for credit losses is also reduced.

The amount of allowance for credit losses is determined as follows:

= Trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables
The amount of the allowance is determined by classifying the receivables, etc. according to the number of
days overdue, etc. and multiplying the amount of the receivables by a loss rate calculated by considering the
historical rate of credit losses calculated according to the classification and the impact of future forecast
economic conditions.

= Receivables other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, etc.

For assets for which credit risk is not considered to be significantly increased, the amount of allowance is
calculated by multiplying the carrying amount by a loss rate that is determined by considering the historical
rate of credit losses of homogeneous assets and the impact of future forecast economic conditions etc.
However, if credit risk of the asset is considered to be significantly increased or the asset meets the criteria
for credit-impaired financial assets, the amount of the asset expected to be recovered is individually
estimated, and the amount of the allowance is determined as the difference between the present value
discounted using the original effective interest rate of the asset and the carrying amount.

Changes in allowance for credit losses are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Beginning balance.............cccooeviviienciienirennn 11,508 19,203
Increases during the period...........ccceeveeueennen. 5,810 4,478
Decreases during the period (Utilization)...... (1,874) (6,437)
Decreases during the period (Reversal)......... (2,203) (5,371)
OtherS....ooveiiiiieieee e (631) (365)
Ending balance............c.cocoeveveveeereeeerenennn. 12,610 11,508

With regards to financial assets that were recognized for the first time in the years ended March 31, 2020 and
2019, there were no material financial assets for which allowance for credit losses was recorded at the time of
initial recognition.

Furthermore, in the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no significant increases or decreases in
the gross carrying amount that could affect a change in allowance for credit losses.
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2) Gross carrying amount of financial assets for which allowance for credit losses is recorded
The gross carrying amount of financial assets for which allowance for credit losses is recorded is as follows:
(i) Trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables

Not past due......ccceevveecreeeireernnene
Due within 3 months....................
Due after 3 months through a year

Due after 1 year........cccocvvevueennennen.

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
1,015,043 1,158,027
37,973 36,835
10,698 7,175
82 74
1,063,796 1,202,111

The contract balances of financial assets that were directly written off during the reporting period but still
subject to recovery activities as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 were not material.

(i) Receivables other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, etc.
For receivables other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, etc., information has been
omitted since there are no assets for which credit risk was considered to have significantly increased and
credit risks related to the carrying amount as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 were not material.

(3) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risks represent the Company’s risks of nonfulfillment of repayment obligations for financial liabilities
due. The Company develops its business under the basic policy of self-generating funds necessary for business
activities. In addition, generated funds are utilized efficiently through intra-group financing. On that basis,
when funds are required for working capital, investments in businesses and for other purposes, the Company
raises funds externally by appropriate means in consideration of its financial structure and conditions of

financial markets.

The balances of major financial liabilities by contractual maturities are as follows:

Non-derivative liabilities:

Trade payables........cccccevvveereennnnn.

Short-term debt, including current
portion of long-term debt..............

Long-term debt............cceevevvernnenee.

Lease liabilities...........ccoovuvvveeeeeennnes

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
Carrying Contract Within QJ itflrotl ril:)i: More than
amount amount 1 year than 5 years 5 years
969,695 969,695 969,695 - -
250,620 251,120 251,120 - -
953,831 1,006,078 - 698,053 308,025
266,860 281,857 70,596 141,070 70,191
16,316 17,574 - 17,574 -
2,457,322 2,526,324 1,291,411 856,697 378,216
23,501 23,501 23,501 - -
(17,423) (33,691) (6,669) (20,272) (6,750)

(*1) Cross currency interest rate swaps (assets) is held for hedging the foreign exchange risk of foreign
currency denominated bonds included in "Long-term debt."
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Yen (millions)

March 31, 2019

After 1 year

Carrying Contract Within but not more More than
amount amount 1 year tllllan 5 years 5 years
Non-derivative liabilities:
Trade payables......c..ccccevenevienennene 1,151,174 1,151,174 1,151,174 - -
Short-term debt, including current 382,301 383734 383734 ) )
portion of long-term debt..............
Long-term debt.........oceeceevereneennes 600,750 615,625 - 374,478 241,147
Lease liabilities........c..ccceceecvenennene. 15,670 16,431 7,659 6,080 2,692
Other financial liabilities................ 16,667 18,310 - - 18,310
Total....ooveieieeieee 2,166,562 2,185,274 1,542,567 380,558 262,149
Derivative liabilities.................... 12,491 12,491 12,491 - -

In addition, in order to secure a means of stable financing, the Company entered into commitment line
agreements with several banks in June 2018. The unused balances under these agreements are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Total committed line of credit............ccoceevveeieennnnn. 700,000 700,000
DrawdOwWns.........ccoeevenenienininiiinecceeereeeeneee - -
Unused balances...........oooveeeeviiieiieeeeeeeeeeee e 700,000 700,000

(4) Market risk management

The Company operates internationally, giving rise to exposure to market risks arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices. The Company assesses these risks by continually
monitoring changes in these exposures and by evaluating hedging opportunities.

1) Currency risks
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect the Company's business, operating results and
financial condition, because costs and prices of its products and services that are traded in a foreign currency
and foreign currency denominated bonds issued for financing are affected by foreign exchange rate changes.
The Company makes efforts to mitigate currency risks principally by utilizing derivatives such as foreign
exchange forward contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps.

(i) Exposure to currency risks
Exposure to currency risks (net) of the Company is set out below. The amount of exposure to currency risks
that is hedged by derivatives is excluded.

March 31
2020 2019
US Dollar (Thousands of US dollar)............c......... 759,466 499,588
Euro (Thousands of Euro)..........cccceeeevvevveenieenennnns 85,667 122,270
Chinese Yuan (Thousands of Chinese Yuan)......... 23,176 38,227
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(i1) Sensitivity analysis for currency risks
For financial instruments held by the Company as of the end of each fiscal year, the impact of a 1%
appreciation of Japanese yen against US Dollar, Euro and Chinese Yuan on profit before income taxes is set
out below. The impact on profit before income taxes of a 1% depreciation of Japanese yen against US Dollar,
Euro and Chinese Yuan would be the opposite effect to those stated in the table below.

This analysis is based on the assumption that all other variables are constant.

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
US DOlIAr...c.eiiiiiiicieirceecece s (827) (554)
EUTO. .ttt (102) (152)
Chinese YUaN......cccveveeierieniieieeieeeeeesie e 4) (6)

2) Interest rate risks
Interest-bearing debt is principally corporate bonds and borrowings obtained at fixed rates, and the interest rate
risk is not material to the Company.

3) Commodity price fluctuation risks
The Company procures raw materials, including non-ferrous metals, under long-term purchase agreements and
is exposed to commodity price fluctuation risks due to market fluctuations, etc. The Company makes efforts to
mitigate commodity price fluctuation risks by utilizing derivatives such as commodity futures.

4) Market price fluctuation risks
The Company is exposed to stock price fluctuation risks arising from its holdings of stocks of domestic and
foreign companies. For equity instruments, the Company periodically assesses their fair value and financial
condition of issuers and continually reviews its holding status.

(5) Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives held by the Company are comprised principally of foreign exchange forward contracts, cross
currency interest rate swaps and commodity futures. The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and
other instruments to hedge the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on costs and prices of products and
services, etc. that are traded in a foreign currency. Also, the Company uses cross currency interest rate swaps to
hedge the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on foreign currency denominated bonds. In addition, the
Company utilizes commodity futures and other instruments to hedge commodity price fluctuation risks due to
market fluctuations, etc. associated with procurement of raw materials, including non-ferrous metals, under long
-term purchase agreements. All these hedges meet the criteria for cash flow hedges.

The Company confirms the existence of an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument at the inception of the hedging relationship and on an ongoing basis, through qualitative assessment
of whether significant terms and conditions of the hedged item match or conform closely to those of the hedging
instrument, or quantitative assessment of whether changes in values of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument are offset with each other because of the same risk, in order to ensure that the hedged item and the
hedging instrument have an economic relationship in which changes in cash flows of the hedged item are offset
by changes in cash flows of the hedging instrument.

In addition, the Company sets an appropriate hedge ratio based on the quantity of hedged items and the quantity
of hedging instruments at the hedge's inception, and in principle, this ratio is set to ensure a one-to-one
relationship. Also, foreign currency basis spread on the cross currency interest rate swaps are excluded from
designation as hedging instruments but the impact on profit or loss is immaterial.
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Because the Company aims to perform highly effective hedges, it expects that usually no significant ineffective
portion should arise.

1) The year ended March 31, 2020
(i) Effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated statements of financial position
Significant derivatives designated as hedging instruments as of March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Derivatives associated with currency risks:
Carrying amount (*1)
Yen (millions)

Hedging instruments Contract amounts Average rate Assets Liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts:
1,059,072 Thousands 107.59 Yen

US Dollar sell / Japanese Yen buy.... US Dollar / Dollar - 904
98,884 Thousands 119.46 Yen
Euro sell / Japanese Yen buy............ Euro / Euro - 6
441,258 Thousands 108.20 Yen
US Dollar buy / Japanese Yen sell.... US Dollar / Dollar 184 -
Cross currency interest rate swaps 2,500,000 Thousands 108.13 Yen 17.423 )
(F2) e US Dollar / Dollar ’

(*1) In the consolidated statements of financial position, fair value of assets related to hedging instruments is
included in "Other financial assets," while the fair value of liabilities related to hedging instruments is
included in "Other financial liabilities."

The maximum term over which the Company hedges changes in cash flows due to risks of fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates is approximately six months for foreign exchange contracts and approximately 10
years for cross currency interest rate swaps.

(*2) Cross currency interest rate swaps are held for hedging the foreign exchange risk of foreign currency
denominated bonds.
With the cross currency interest rate swaps, USD-denominated fixed interest rate are exchanged with JPY
-denominated fixed interest rate and each exchanged rate is described in Note "16. Short-term debt and
long-term debt (1) Details."

The balance (after tax) of "Net changes in cash flow hedges" related to ongoing hedges as of March 31, 2020
is set out below. In the year ended March 31, 2020, there was no hedge relationship to which hedge
accounting is no longer applied.

Yen (millions)

Risk March 31, 2020
Foreign currency risk........cccccevverevenen. 8,327
Commodity price risk........ccoceeverenennne (445)
Total.oeeiiieieeee 7,882

Since the amount of the ineffective portion of hedges recognized in profit or loss in the year ended March 31,
2020 is not material, information on changes in fair value of hedged items used as the basis for recognition of
the ineffective portion of hedges has been omitted.
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(i1) Effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated statements of profit or loss and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income
Effects of the application of hedge accounting on profit or loss and other comprehensive income (loss) in the
year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Yen (millions)

Amounts of gain

. (loss) reclassified . . Amounts of gain
Amounts of gain Recognized in )
. from other . (loss) reclassified
(loss) recognized consolidated .
. components of to acquisition cost
in OCI o statements of profit .
equity into profit or of hedged item
(pre-tax amount) or loss
loss (pre-tax (pre-tax amount)
Risk amount)
Fi -
Foreign currency risk..... 15,920 (994) fance theome -
(expenses)
Commodity price risk.... (1,883) - Cost of sales 458

In the year ended March 31, 2020, the amount of the ineffective portion of hedges recognized in profit or loss
was not material.

Reclassification adjustments related to foreign currency risk from other components of equity to profit or loss
in the year ended March 31, 2020 are attributed to effects of hedged items on profit or loss.

Foreign currency basis spread on the cross currency interest rate swaps held as cash flow hedges are excluded
from designation as hedging instruments and are recognized as hedging costs. The amount of hedging costs
recognized as reclassification adjustments to other comprehensive income and profit or loss is immaterial.

2) The year ended March 31, 2019
(i) Effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated statements of financial position
Significant derivatives designated as hedging instruments as of March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Derivatives associated with currency risks:
Carrying amount (*1)
Yen (millions)

Hedging instruments Contract amounts Average rate Assets Liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts:
1,250,271 Thousands 109.80 Yen

US Dollar sell / Japanese Yen buy.... US Dollar / Dollar - 838
200,585 Thousands 124.41 Yen

Euro sell / Japanese Yen buy............. Euro / Euro - 38
682,849 Thousands 109.77 Yen

US Dollar buy / Japanese Yen sell.... US Dollar / Dollar 589 -

(*1) In the consolidated statements of financial position, fair value of assets related to hedging instruments is
included in "Other financial assets," while the fair value of liabilities related to hedging instruments is
included in "Other financial liabilities."

The maximum term over which the Company hedges changes in cash flows due to risks of fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates is approximately six months.
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The balance (after tax) of "Net changes in cash flow hedges" related to ongoing hedges as of March 31, 2019
is as set out below. In the year ended March 31, 2019, there was no hedge relationship to which hedge
accounting is no longer applied.

Yen (millions)

Risk March 31, 2019
Foreign currency risK.........cccoevveveennenne. (1,790)
Commodity price risK.........c.ceervernenne 562
Total..coeiieieeeeeeee e (1,228)

Since the amount of the ineffective portion of hedges recognized in profit or loss in the year ended March 31,
2019 is not material, information on changes in fair value of hedged items used as the basis for recognition of
the ineffective portion of hedges has been omitted.

(i1) Effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated statements of profit or loss and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income
Effects of the application of hedge accounting on profit or loss and other comprehensive income (loss) in the
year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Yen (millions)

Amounts of gain

(loss) reclassified Recognized in Amounts of gain
from other

(loss) recognized consolidated
components of

A ts of gai
mounts oI gain (loss) reclassified

to acquisition cost

in OCI o statements of profit .
equity into profit or of hedged item
(pre-tax amount) or loss
loss (pre-tax (pre-tax amount)
Risk amount)
= -
Foreign currency risk..... (1,127) (895)  anceicome -
(expenses)
Commodity price risk.... (1,121) - Cost of sales 547

In the year ended March 31, 2019, the amount of the ineffective portion of hedges recognized in profit or loss
was not material.

Reclassification adjustments related to foreign currency risk from other components of equity to profit or loss
in the year ended March 31, 2019 are attributed to effects of hedged items on profit or loss.

(6) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

For derivative assets and liabilities, the Company conducts transactions under master netting agreements or
similar agreements. In the event that settlement failure occurs between the contracting parties, receivables from
and payables to the counterparty are to be settled on a net basis.

Of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized to the same counterparty as of March 31, 2020, there were
no financial instruments offset in accordance with requirements for offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amount of financial instruments that are subject to enforceable master netting agreements or
similar agreements but have not been offset because they do not satisfy part or all of requirements for offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities was 8,376 million yen.

Of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized to the same counterparty as of March 31, 2019, there were

no financial instruments offset in accordance with requirements for offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amount of financial instruments that are subject to enforceable master netting agreements or
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similar agreements but have not been offset because they do not satisfy part or all of requirements for offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities was 3,009 million yen.

(7) Fair values of financial instruments

1) Comparison between fair values and carrying amounts are as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Long-term debt, including current portion
of long-term debt........ccccoeveieieciiieiennn, 981,439 977,296 873,432 882,425

Fair values shown above are estimated, based on the market price or the present value of future cash flows,
which is calculated using the observable discount rate at March 31, 2020 and 2019. All fair values are
categorized as level 2 (refer to "2) Fair value measurement hierarchy").

With regards to financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost other than the above, their
fair values approximate their carrying amounts.

2) Fair value measurement hierarchy

IFRS 13, "Fair Value Measurement" provides that fair values shall be categorized into the following three

levels according to the extent to which the input information used in the measurement is observable from the

outside:

* Level 1: Fair value measured by quoted prices in active markets

* Level 2: Fair value measured directly or indirectly using inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable

* Level 3: Fair value measured through valuation techniques which include inputs that are not based on
observable market data

The fair value measurement hierarchy level used in the measurement is determined by the lowest-level of
significant input in the measurement of fair value.
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The breakdown of financial instruments measured at fair value is as follows:

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts........ - 3,025 - 3,025
Cross CUITENCY SWaAPS....cuveeererreeenreeennenes - 153 - 153
Cross currency interest rate swaps........... - 17,423 - 17,423
Commodity futures..........ccoeeeveeveeeenenne. 7,804 6,005 - 13,809
Subtotal........ccvveeiieierieieeie e 7,804 26,606 - 34,410
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity securities..........cceververeerreenenenennenn 106,923 - 64,603 171,526
OtherS....cooveiiiiieieeieeeeeee e - 281 - 281
Subtotal.......ccceeviirieiiiiieeeeen 106,923 281 64,603 171,807
Total financial assets..........cccccervrenenee. 114,727 26,887 64,603 206,217
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts........ - 4,202 - 4,202
Commodity futures..........ccoecveveevereennenne. 16,001 3,298 - 19,299
Total financial liabilities....................... 16,001 7,500 - 23,501
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Yen (millions)

March 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts........ - 5,295 - 5,295
CroSs CUITENCY SWaAPS....cuveeererreeenereennnnes - 36 - 36
Commodity futures..........ccocvveveeveeeennenne. 4,295 1,099 - 5,394
Subtotal.......cccvveeiieieiieieeee e 4,295 6,430 - 10,725
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Equity securities..........ccueververeerreeniennennenn 85,739 - 85,580 171,319
OhETS....oooieeeeieee e - 2,344 - 2,344
Subtotal.......ccceeveirierieieeeeen 85,739 2,344 85,580 173,663
Total financial assetS.......ccceeeeeeeeeennnene. 90,034 8,774 85,580 184,388
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts........ - 2,514 - 2,514
Cross CUITEeNCY SWaPS.....cccceeruveerneeenueeanne - 16 - 16
Commodity futures..........cccoeevevrerveeenenne. 4,457 5,504 - 9,961
Total financial liabilities...................... 4,457 8,034 - 12,491

The Company's marketable equity securities and commodity futures are included in Level 1, which are valued
using an unadjusted quoted market price in active markets with sufficient volume and frequency of
transactions.

Level 2 derivatives including foreign exchange forward contracts, cross currency swaps, cross currency interest
rate swaps and commodity futures are valued using quotes obtained from brokers, which are periodically
validated by pricing models using observable market inputs, such as foreign currency exchange rates and
market prices for commodity futures.

Equity securities classified as Level 3 are unlisted stocks, and their fair values are measured by an appropriate
valuation method that comprehensively takes into account the outlook for future profitability of the investee
and quantitative information such as net asset value and major assets held by the investee, in accordance with
the policy and procedures set by the Company for using the most appropriate and highly relevant, available
data. The reasonableness of this assessment is verified by the department in charge of accounting using various
methods and approved by the manager of the department. Specific methods of verification include use of
external assessment organizations.

For financial instruments classified as Level 3, significant changes in fair value occurring when unobservable
inputs are changed to reasonably possible alternative assumptions are not expected.

Transfers between levels are recognized on the day when the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer occurred. In the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, there are no financial instruments for which a
significant transfer was made between levels.
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The breakdown of movements in financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis that were
classified as Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Yen (millions)

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year........................ 85,580 32,634
Gains (1088€8) (F1).ueecveveverieiieieeieieeee (7,139) 2,387
Purchase.......cooovveeviiieiiiiieeeeeeee 4,479 3,417
Reclasgiﬁcation of investment accounted i 48.832
for using the equity method (*2).............. ’
SAlES. ittt (18,317) (1,690)
Balance at end of year...........c..cccvvevennne.. 64,603 85,580

(*1) Gains (losses) are related to financial assets measured at FVTOCI for the years ended March 31, 2020
and 2019, and are included in "Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income" in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

(*2) Reclassification of investment accounted for using the equity method relates to a reclassification from
investment in an associate to an equity security, due to a partial sale of the Company’s interests in the
associate that was accounted for using the equity method.
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32. Major subsidiaries

(1) Composition of the Group

Major subsidiaries of the Company as of March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Ltd.

Ratio of
Name Principal businesses (*1) Location | voting rights
(%)
Panasonic Ecology Systems Co., Ltd. Life Solutions Japan 100.0
Panasonic Smart Factory Solutions Co., Ltd | Connected Solutions Japan 100.0
KMEW Co., Ltd. (*¥2) Life Solutions Japan 50.0
Panasonic Consumer Marketing Co., Ltd. Appliances Japan 100.0
Panasonic Liquid Crystal Display Co., Ltd. | Industrial Solutions Japan 100.0
Life Solutions, Automotive,
SANYO Electric Co., Ltd. Industrial Solutions, Other, Japan 100.0
Corporate
Eitgasomc Semiconductor Solutions Co., Industrial Solutions Japan 100.0
Panasonic System Solutions Japan Co., Ltd. | Connected Solutions Japan 100.0
Appliances, Life Solutions,
. . . Connected Solutions, Automotive,
Panasonic Corporation of North America Industrial Solutions, Other, U.S.A. 100.0
Corporate
Panasonic Avionics Corporation Connected Solutions U.S.A. 100.0
Hussmann Corporation Appliances U.S.A. 100.0
Appliances, Connected Solutions,
Panasonic do Brasil Limitada Automotive, Industrial Solutions, Brazil 100.0
Other
Panasonic Holding (Netherlands) B.V. Corporate Netherlands 100.0
Panasonic Europe B.V. Corporate Netherlands 100.0
Ficosa International S.A. Automotive Spain 69.0
. . Czech
Panasonic AVC Networks Czech s.r.o. Appliances . 100.0
Republic
Appliances, Life Solutions,
Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Connected Solutions, Industrial Singapore 100.0
Solutions, Corporate
Appliances, Connected Solutions,
Panasonic India Pvt. Ltd Automotive, Industrial Solutions, India 100.0
Corporate
. . Appliances, Life Solutions, .
Panasonic Taiwan Co., Ltd. Automotive, Industrial Solutions Taiwan 69.8
. . . Appliances, Life Solutions, .
Panasonic Corporation of China Connected Solutions, Corporate China 100.0
Panasonic Appliances Air-Conditioning . .
(Guangzhou) Co., Lid. Appliances China 67.8
Panasonic Automotive Systems Dalian Co., Automotive China 60.0
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(*1) The column "Principal businesses" indicates the segments in which the subsidiaries are classified. For
subsidiaries that do not belong to any segment, the segments of the products being handled are disclosed if
it is a sales company, otherwise it is described as "Corporate."

(*2) Although the ratio of voting rights is 50.0%, KMEW Co., Ltd. is treated as a consolidated subsidiary
because the Company controls it through involvement in its manufacturing and sale activities.

As a change in major subsidiaries during the year ended March 31, 2020, all shares of Panasonic Homes Co.,
Ltd. were transferred to Prime Life Technologies Corporation, an entity accounted for using the equity method
by the Company, due to the reorganization of housing related businesses in January 2020. As a result, Panasonic
Homes Co., Ltd. is no longer a consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

(2) Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests
There were no individually material non-controlling interests as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.
(3) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that did not result in a loss of control

There were no individually material changes in the Company's ownership interests in its subsidiaries that did not
result in a loss of control in the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

(4) Gain or loss due to changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries resulting in loss of control

Material gain or loss due to changes in the Company's ownership interests in its subsidiaries resulting in loss of
control of subsidiaries in the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

(1) Security system business

The Company resolved at the board of directors meeting held on May 31, 2019 to transfer the security
system business. On November 20, 2019, Panasonic transferred the shares of Panasonic i-PRO Sensing
Solution Co., Ltd., which was a 100%-owned consolidated subsidiary that operated the security system
business, to PSP Holdings Co., Ltd. which is a subsidiary of Polaris Capital Group Co., Ltd.

A gain of 21,570 million yen on the business transfer was recognized in "Other income (expenses), net" in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. The portion of the gain from
remeasurement of the retained interests in the former subsidiary at fair value was 4,314 million yen. The gain
is allocated to the "Connected Solutions" segment.

(i1) Housing-related business

The Company resolved at the board of directors meeting on May 9, 2019 to enter into a business- integration
contract toward the establishment of a new joint venture related to town development business with Toyota
Motor Corporation. On January 7, 2020, Panasonic Homes Co., Ltd., Panasonic Construction Engineering
Co., Ltd, Matsumura-Gumi Corporation, and their subsidiaries became subsidiaries of the joint venture,
Prime Life Technologies Corporation, through a joint share transfer. Accordingly, they are no longer
consolidated subsidiaries of the Company.

A gain 0f 99,561 million yen on the joint share transfer was recognized in "Other income (expenses), net" in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. The portion of the gain from
remeasurement of the retained interests in the former subsidiaries at fair value was 49,766 million yen. The
gain is allocated to the "Life Solutions" segment.

There were no individually material gain or loss due to changes in the Company's ownership interests in its
subsidiaries resulting in loss of control in the year ended March 31, 2019.
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(5) Cash flows by proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses
The cash flows by proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses during the year ended March 31,

2020 and the amount of the assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries or other businesses at the time when control
is lost are as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020
Total consideration reCeIVEd...........ooviiiviieiiiiiiecieeiee et 264,939
Portion of consideration consisting of cash and cash equivalents..................... 90,939
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries or other businesses over which
COMETOL IS 1OSE....veevveeeetececeeee e ne e 42,647
Cash flows by proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses............ 48,292
Amount of assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries or other businesses at the
time when control is lost (summarized by each major category)
Current assets (except for cash and cash equivalents)..........ccoccveveerieeeennnne. 192,104
INON-CUITEIIE ASSEES. .. uiieeeeeiieeieeiieieteeeeeeeee e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesassssssnssnssensanaeesenees 424,104
CUITENt HADIIITIES. ... vt 168,511
NON-CUITENt HADIIIEIES. .. .evviiiiiiieeiee e 345,170

The cash flows by proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses during the year ended March 31,
2019 were immaterial.
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33. Related party transactions

(1) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions and balances of receivables and payables of the Company with associates and joint ventures are as
set out below.

Transactions with associates and joint ventures are conducted on general terms and conditions similar to arm's
length transactions.

1) Balances of the Company's receivables from and payables to associates and joint ventures

Yen (millions)

March 31
2020 2019

Associates:

Receivables........oooovvviiiiiiiiiiieiieeeceeeeeeees 19,634 16,658

Payables........ocvviiiienieeeeceee e 87,770 65,543
Joint ventures:

Receivables........ooovvvvieiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeeeeeee 12,678 456

Payables........ccvvveiienieieieeeee e 2,248 -

2) Amounts of the Company's sales to and purchases from associates and joint ventures

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Associates:
SAlES. ettt 55,838 70,630
Purchases........ooeeeeeeeeeeiiiieeiee e 254,583 281,009
Joint ventures:
SaALES i 2,789 631
Purchases.........coeveveeneeneiieeeceeeeee 6 -

(2) Remuneration for key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel (Directors and Outside Directors) of Panasonic is as follows:

Yen (millions)

2020 2019
Basic remuneration.............cceeevveeveeeveeneenne. 639 648
Performance based remuneration.................... 186 337
Share based payments............ccccecveerveerivenennnn 73 165
Total..ccovieiiece e 898 1,150
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34. Non-cash transactions

Significant non-cash transactions are as follows:
Yen (millions)

2020 2019

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, due to
newly-contracted finance leases........c...ccovverreiennne - 3,592

Additions to right-of-use assets (*1)......ccccceervverunrnnne. 107,026 -

(*1) Includes right-of-use assets recorded as "Investment property".

35. Commitments for acquisition of assets, etc

Commitments as of March 31, 2020 principally include purchase contracts for property, plant and equipment, etc.
with total outstanding amounts of 29,030 million yen.

Commitments as of March 31, 2019 principally include contracts to purchase specific raw materials for the period
up to 2020 and purchase contracts for property, plant and equipment, etc. with total outstanding amounts of

78,972 million yen.
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36. Disposal groups held for sale

Components of "Assets held for sale" and "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale" are as

follows:

Assets held for sale:
Trade receivables and contract assets.........ccccceevvevveeeeeeennns

TOVENTOTIES. ...veiiii it

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale:
Trade payables..........ccovvevcieiiiieiiieie e

Lease HHabilIties. ... ..cciiieiiiiieiieeeeeee et

Yen (millions)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

5,496 74
37,630 5,085
164,845 4,738
12,867 -
42,516 3,175
263,354 13,072
28,017 3,929
14,995 -
45,593 4,808
88,605 8,737

"Assets held for sale" and "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale" as of March 31, 2020 are
assets and liabilities mainly related to the automotive prismatic battery business and the semiconductor business.

As described in Note "38. Subsequent events (1)," as of April 1, 2020, the Company transferred its automotive
prismatic battery business to a joint venture. As a result, at March 31, 2020, assets and liabilities of the business

are classified as "Assets held for sale" and "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale."

In addition, at the board of directors meeting on November 28, 2019, the Company resolved to transfer the
semiconductor business to Nuvoton Technology Corporation, a Taiwan-based semiconductor company under the

umbrella of Winbond Electronics Corporation Group. In advance of the planned transfer in September 2020, the

parties are obtaining approvals from the authorities responsible for competition laws of the respective countries

and regions. Accordingly, at March 31, 2020, assets and liabilities of the business in the Panasonic group to be
transferred are classified as "Assets held for sale" and "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale."
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37. Contingent liabilities

Litigation, etc.
The Company is subject to a number of legal proceedings including civil litigation related to trade, tax, products
or intellectual properties, or governmental investigations. The Company has been dealing with the various
litigations and investigations. Depending upon the outcome of these different proceedings, the Company may be
subject to an uncertain amount of settlements or fines, and accordingly the Company has accrued for certain
probable and reasonably estimated amounts for the settlements and fines.
Panasonic Corporation and one of its subsidiaries, SANYO Electric Co., Ltd., are subject to litigation in North
America related to an anti-trust matter concerning their rechargeable battery business.
Other than this matter, there are a number of legal actions against the Company. Management is of the opinion
that damages, if any, resulting from these actions, will not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.
The ability to predict the outcome of these actions and proceedings is difficult to assess given that certain of the
investigations and legal proceedings are still at an early stage, present novel legal theories, involving a large
number of parties or are taking place in jurisdictions outside of Japan where the laws are complex or unclear.
Accordingly, the Company is unable to estimate the losses or range of losses for the actions and proceedings
where there is only a reasonable possibility that a loss exceeding the amounts already recognized may have been
incurred.
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38. Subsequent events

(1) Change in consolidated subsidiaries in connection with the establishment of a joint venture related to the
automotive prismatic battery business

On April 1, 2020, the Company transferred the automotive prismatic battery business of SANYO Electric Co.,
Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, through a company split to Prime Planet Energy & Solutions,
Inc. ("PPES"), which shares are held by Panasonic Equity Management Japan G.K. ("PEMJ"), a consolidated
subsidiary. At the same time, all equity shares of Panasonic Automotive Energy Dalian Co., Ltd. held by
Panasonic Corporation of China, a consolidated subsidiary, were transferred to PPES.

In addition, on the same date, certain shares of PPES held by PEMJ were transferred to Toyota Motor
Corporation, which resulted in PPES becoming a joint venture. The Company’s ownership ratio in PPES after
these transfers is 49%. Consequently, PPES became an entity accounted for using the equity method by the
Company and is no longer a consolidated subsidiary.

Upon execution of the series of transactions associated with the establishment of this joint venture, a gain of
approximately 27.0 billion yen will be recorded as "Other income (expenses), net" in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss for the year ending March 31, 2021.

(2) Investment in a U.S. software company

The Company resolved to make a strategic equity investment obtaining 20% of the total voting rights of Blue
Yonder, Inc. ("Blue Yonder") group, a provider of end-to-end supply chain software, and entered into a final
definitive agreement with Blue Yonder on May 20, 2020. After consummation of this investment (planned to
be 813,524 thousand U.S. dollars), the Company will acquire the shares of Blue Yonder Holding, Inc., the
parent company of Blue Yonder, as a non-controlling shareholder, and obtain one seat of its nine-member
board of directors. Accordingly, Blue Yonder will become an entity accounted for using the equity method by
the Company.

Through this investment, the Company aims to accelerate and deepen collaboration with Blue Yonder and
promptly enhance its solution capabilities. In addition, the Company intends to acquire management know-
how of a software company by participating in the management of Blue Yonder as a director. Moreover, it is
expected to evolve into a global leading provider of frontline "Gemba process" innovation and realize
sustainable growth.
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KPMG

Independent audior sreport

To the Board of Directors of Panasonic Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Panasonic Corporation (“the
Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group"), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated statements
of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards prescribed in Article 93 of “the Regulation on
Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial Statements” (hereinafter
referred to as “IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit &

Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in
accordance with IFRS and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing
the directors’ performance of their duties including the design, implementation and maintenance of the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the audit is not to express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate whether the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are in
accordance with IFRS, the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Interest required to be disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

We do not have any interest in the Group which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of
the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

Masahiro Mekada
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Kengo Chida
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Masaki Hirota
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

KPMG AZSALLC
Osaka Office, Japan
June 26, 2020

Notes to the Reader of Independent Auditor’s Report:
This is a copy of the Independent Auditor’s Report and the original copies are kept separately by the
Company and KPMG AZSA LLC.
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Other information

(1) Quarterly financial Information for fiscal 2019

(Millions of yen, unless otherwise stated)

(Cumulative) First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Year total
Net Sales....ooereriiieieieienereseeeene 1,891,129 3,844,424 5,755,634 7,490,601
Profit before income taxes.........ccovvvvveeeeennn. 56,226 137,904 238,062 291,050
Net profit attributable to Panasonic
Corporation stockholders.............cccccvernnenne. 49,777 100,919 178,148 225,707
Earnings per share attributable to Panasonic
Corporation stockholders, basic (yen)......... 21.34 43.27 76.37 96.76
(Three months) First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fourth quarter
Earnings per share attributable to Panasonic
Corporation stockholders, basic (yen)......... 21.34 21.92 33.11 20.39

(2) Litigation, etc.
Significant litigation, etc. associated with the Company are as stated in "37. Contingent liabilities" in the notes to
consolidated financial statements.
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VI Stock-related Administration for the Company

Fiscal Year

From April 1 to March 31

Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders June
Record date March 31
e September 30
R te fi tribut f 1
ecord date for distribution of surplus March 31
Number of shares constituting one unit 100 shares

Purchase and sales of shares less than one unit

Handling office

Transfer agent

Forward office

Purchasing and selling fee

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

5-33, Kitahama, 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

4-1, Marunouchi, 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Amount separately specified as an amount equivalent to
the fees pertaining to the entrustment of sale and
purchase of shares

Method of public notice

The Company's method of public notice is through
electronic public notice. However, if the Company
cannot use the above-mentioned method of public notice
due to an accident or other inevitable reasons, Nihon
Keizai Shimbun will be adopted as its medium.

URL for public notice is following
https://www.panasonic.com/jp/home.html

Special benefit for Shareholders

Not applicable
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VI Reference Information on the Company

1. Information on a Parent Company, etc. of the Company
Not applicable.

2. Other Reference Information

The Company filed the following documents during the period from the commencing date of the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2020 to the filing date of Annual Securities Report.

(1) Annual Securities Report Business Term From April 1, 2018 Filed with the Director of

and documents attached, (112th) To March 31, 2019 the Kanto Local Finance
and Confirmation Letter Bureau on June 28, 2019

(2) Internal Control Report Filed with the Director of
and documents attached the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau on June 28, 2019

(3) Quarterly Report and (113th First Quarter)  From April 1, 2019 Filed with the Director of

Confirmation Letter

(4) Extraordinary Report

To June 30, 2019

(113th Second Quarter) From July 1, 2019
To September 30, 2019

(113th Third Quarter) From October 1, 2019
To December 31, 2019

Pursuant to Article 24-5, paragraph 4 of the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and
Article 19, Paragraph 2, Item 9-2 of the Cabinet
Office Ordinance Concerning Disclosure of
Corporate Affairs, etc.

Pursuant to Article 24-5, paragraph 4 of the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and
Article 19, Paragraph 2, Item 2-2 of the Cabinet
Office Ordinance Concerning Disclosure of
Corporate Affairs, etc.

Pursuant to Article 24-5, paragraph 4 of the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and
Article 19, Paragraph 2, Item 3 of the Cabinet
Office Ordinance Concerning Disclosure of
Corporate Affairs, etc.
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the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau on August 8, 2019

Filed with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance

Bureau on November 13,
2019

Filed with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance

Bureau on February 13,
2020

Filed with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau on June 28, 2019

Filed with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau on July 31, 2019

Filed with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau on April 1, 2020



Pursuant to Article 24-5, paragraph 4 of the Filed with the Director of
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and the Kanto Local Finance
Article 19, Paragraph 2, Item 2-2 of the Cabinet ~ Bureau on June 25, 2020
Office Ordinance Concerning Disclosure of

Corporate Affairs, etc.

Pursuant to Article 24-5, paragraph 4 of the Filed with the Director of
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and the Kanto Local Finance
Article 19, Paragraph 2, Item 9-2 of the Cabinet  Bureau on June 26, 2020
Office Ordinance Concerning Disclosure of

Corporate Affairs, etc.

(5) Amendment to Amendment to Extraordinary Report concerning  Filed with the Director of
Extraordinary Report the Extraordinary Report which was submitted the Kanto Local Finance
on June 28, 2019 Bureau on July 10, 2019

Amendment to Extraordinary Report concerning  Filed with the Director of
the Extraordinary Report which was submitted the Kanto Local Finance
on July 31, 2019 Bureau on August 30, 2019
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Part II Information on Guarantors, etc. for the Company

Not applicable.
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TRANSLATION
Following is an English translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report filed under the Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act of Japan. This report is presented merely as supplemental information.

There are differences between an audit of internal control over financial reporting under the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act and an audit of internal control over financial reporting conducted under the
attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

In an audit of internal control over financial reporting under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, the
auditors express an opinion on management's report on internal control over financial reporting, and do not
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting taken as a whole.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
and

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

June 26, 2020
To the Board of Directors of Panasonic Corporation:

KPMG AZSA LLC
Osaka Office

Masahiro Mekada

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant

Kengo Chida

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant

Masaki Hirota

Designated Limited Liability Partner
Engagement Partner

Certified Public Accountant

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Panasonic Corporation ("the Company")
and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group") provided in the "V Consolidated
Financial Statements" section in the company’s Annual Securities Report, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020 and the consolidated statements of profit or loss,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with Article 193-2, paragraph (1) of the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Act of Japan.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
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prescribed in Article 93 of "the Regulation on Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of Consolidated
Financial Statements" (hereinafter referred to as "IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in accordance with
IFRS.

Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing the directors’
performance of their duties including the design, implementation and maintenance of the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Audit procedures selected and applied depend on
the auditor’s judgement.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the audit is not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate whether the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with IFRS, the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on the Audit of the Internal Control Report

Opinion

We also have audited the accompanying internal control report of Panasonic Corporation as at March 31, 2020, in
accordance with Article 193-2, paragraph (2) of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.

In our opinion, the accompanying internal control report, which states that the internal control over financial
reporting was effective as at March 31, 2020, presents fairly, in all material respects, the results of the assessments
of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with assessment standards for internal control over
financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Internal Control Report in accordance with auditing standards for internal control
over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Internal Control Report section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
internal control report in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board
for the Internal Control Report

Management is responsible for the design and operation of internal control over financial reporting and the
preparation and fair presentation of the internal control report in accordance with assessment standards for internal
control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.

Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing and
examining the design and operation of internal control over financial reporting.

Internal control over financial reporting may not completely prevent or detect financial statement misstatements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Internal Control Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the internal control report is free from material
misstatement based on our audit of the internal control report and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.

As part of our audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally
accepted in Japan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Perform procedures to obtain audit evidence about the results of the assessments of internal control over
financial reporting in the internal control report. The procedures for the audit of the internal control report are
selected and performed, depending on the auditor’s judgment, based on significance of effect on the reliability
of financial reporting.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation of the internal control report, including the appropriateness of the scope,
procedures and results of the assessments that management presents.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the results of the assessments of internal control over
financial reporting in the internal control report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the internal control report. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of our audit of the internal control report, the results thereof, material
weaknesses in internal control identified during our audit of internal control report, and those that were remediated.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory Board with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Interest required to be disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

We do not have any interest in the Group which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the
Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

Notes to the Reader of Audit Report:
The Independent Auditor’s Report herein is the English translation of the Independent Auditor’s Report as required

by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.
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1. Matters Related to Adequacy of Statements Contained in the Annual Securities Report
Mr. Kazuhiro Tsuga, Representative Director, President, and Mr. Hirokazu Umeda, Director, confirmed that
statements contained in the Annual Securities Report for the 113th fiscal year (from April 1, 2019 to March 31,
2020) were adequate under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.

2. Special Notes

Not applicable.
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1. Matters Related to Basic Framework of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Mr. Kazuhiro Tsuga, Representative Director, President, and Mr. Hirokazu Umeda, Director, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control over financial reporting of Panasonic Corporation (the
"Company") and have established and maintained internal control over financial reporting in accordance with
the basic framework for internal control set forth in the "On the Setting of the Standards and Practice Standards
for Management Assessment and Audit concerning Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Council
Opinions)" published by the Business Accounting Council.

The internal control over financial reporting is designed to achieve its objectives to the extent reasonable through
the effective function and combination of its basic elements. Therefore, there is a possibility that internal control
over financial reporting may not completely prevent or detect misstatements.

2. Matters Related to Scope of Assessment, Record Date, and Assessment Procedure

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting on the record date as of March 31,
2020. We made this assessment in accordance with assessment standards for internal control over financial
reporting generally accepted in Japan.

In making this assessment, we evaluated internal control which may have a material effect on the entire financial
reporting on a consolidated basis ("company-level controls") and based on the result of this assessment, we
appropriately selected business processes to be evaluated, analyzed these selected business processes, identified
key controls that may have a material impact on the reliability of our financial reporting, and assessed the design
and operation of these key controls. These procedures have allowed us to evaluate the effectiveness of our
internal controls. We determined the required scope of assessment of internal control over financial reporting for
the Company, as well as its consolidated subsidiaries and equity-method affiliates, from the perspective of the
materiality that may affect the reliability of our financial reporting. The materiality that may affect the reliability
of our financial reporting is determined taking into account the materiality of quantitative and qualitative
impacts. We confirmed that we had reasonably determined the scope of assessment of internal controls over
business processes in light of the results of assessment of company-level controls conducted for the Company,
its consolidated subsidiaries and equity-method affiliates. We did not include those consolidated subsidiaries and
equity-method affiliates which do not have any quantitatively or qualitatively material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the scope of assessment of company-level controls.

Regarding the scope of assessment of internal control over business processes, we accumulated business units in
descending order of total revenues (after elimination of intercompany transactions) for the previous fiscal year,
and those business units whose combined amount of revenues reaches approximately two-thirds of total
revenues on a consolidated basis were selected as significant business units.

For the selected significant business units, we included, in the scope of assessment those business processes
leading to revenues, accounts receivables and inventories. Further, not only for selected significant business
units," but also for other business units, we added to the scope of assessment, those business processes having
greater materiality considering their impact on the financial reporting, those business processes relating to
greater likelihood of material misstatements in significant accounts involving estimates or forecasts as these
significant accounts that may have a material impact on our business objectives; or those business processes
relating to businesses or operations dealing with high-risk transactions.

3. Matters Related to Results of Assessment

As a result of the assessment above, we concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of March 31, 2020
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4. Supplementary Matters
None.
5. Special Notes

None.
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